A Journey into the Unknown Books Three to Ten

Messages in Union and Relationship

© 2020-2021 A Journey into the Unknown

BOOKS 3 to 10

Organized by Message Date September 27, 2020 to April 12, 2021

©2020-21 Richard Curtis Greathouse

Messages in Union and Relationship



The Ongoing and Never-ending Fourney of ...

Book 3 ~ Mother Mary ~ The 1st Talon of the Eagle Book 4 ~ Jesus ~ The 2nd Talon of the Eagle Book 5 ~ St. Germain ~ The 3rd Talon of the Eagle Book 6 ~ Cadre of Souls ~ The 4th Talon of the Eagle Book 7 ~ Helen Shuchman ~ The 5th Talon of the Eagle Book 8 ~ Archangel Michael ~ The 6th Talon of the Eagle Book 9 ~ Bill Thetford ~ The 7th Talon of the Eagle Book 10 ~ The Director ~ The 8th Talon of the Eagle

Guest Speakers: Arcturian Council, Aretha Franklin, Whitney Houston

Three new books (Books 11-13) began on April 18, 2021

"Sunday Celebrations with Jesus" "Beyond the Veil: Revelations" "The Alliance (into Oneness)"

https://messages-of-love-and-guidance.weebly.com ©2020-21 Richard Curtis Greathouse

Download Links for the First Two Books

BOOK 1 ~ A JOURNEY INTO THE UNKNOWN

190 Chapters - 428 pages

BOOK 2 ~ A JOURNEY INTO THE UNKNOWN

7 Chapters - 23 pages

Table of Contents

You are each a pioneer in the new ways of Christ	2
Our souls are united in purpose	3
You cannot see us but we are there	4
Love cannot be limited in any way	5
You are Jesus' Hands and Feet	6
Everything is about to change	7
Few have dared to tread these waters	8
Our job is to bring love to a loveless world.	9
Love is the great revealer of truth	10
Don't let news of the world detract you from your mission	11
An aspect of union	12
Only love is real	13
We need you to remain peaceful	14
Love is all there is.	15
Meditate, commune in prayer and rejuvenate.	16
We take care of your soul's needs and you take care of the body's needs.	17
The art of thought	18
Giving and receiving are one in truth.	19
May love prevail	20
A message in a bottle	21
Teach grace, love, forgiveness and compassion	23
Fear is merely a misinterpretation	24
Disease can only be transmitted through thought	25
The solitary path is the most difficult to embark on	27
Remain calm no matter what	28
The mystery	29
Love is wanting to manifest	30

The work that each of you do is important	31
In service to all	32
Jesus introduces Helen Schucman	33
Forgiveness and A Course in Miracles	34
Journey weaves ACIM and ACOL together	35
Reading channeled writings	36
Our essence is retained when we pass over	37
Union is natural	38
Spiritual development never has an ending	39
My words are your words	40
Let's enjoy the mystery of each and every moment	41
Don't get too attached	42
Love and forgiveness go hand in hand	43
What do you feel inspired to do?	44
You harm yourselves with your thoughts	45
Stop and smell the roses	46
You are the accomplished	47
Christ is in everyone, without exception	48
A mature soul in form is very much a type of angel	49
It is imperative that we make our love movement a global affair.	50
You are each an amazing testament to Love	51
Keep in touch with how you are feeling	52
Souls give love first	53
Linear time	54
Judgement	55
Judgement continued	56
How many ways are there?	57
Simplicity	58
You are not trapped by anything	59
A Journey into the Unknown is a Ph.D. level finishing school	60

No matter where you are, God is.	61
Take advantage of each and every opportunity to express Love	62
St. Germain to bring new messages	63
Initiation into the way of the Masters	64
Returning to the Light while in form	65
Together we join the All of All. This is Unity	66
There is no beginning or end	67
The Harvest	68
We each are a literally moving, breathing part of God	69
We lost our Self to find our Self	70
Fear only wants to be loved	71
A bigger and stronger Christ Collective	72
Thank you, dear God for healing the separation between the physical and the no physical.	on- 73
Come over to me. Come a little bit closer.	74
Let us re-gather	75
Is being a follower of anything love?	76
Fear has no power over us	77
Know the truth about yourselves	78
It is time for a collective return to honoring our souls	79
Today I will serve love in whatever manner, thought or deed, that the call for love	ý
takes.	80
Make giving love your top priority	81
Unity - We are one with each other and with God.	82
Belief is extremely powerful	83
We have the power to change this world	84
Make today a day of love in your section of the world.	85
Take a day to honor your soul	86
See the potential	87
The truth will set you free	88

Let us rid ourselves of worry today.	89
Let's count our blessings today.	90
You are a blessing	91
Seize the day	92
This is the second coming	93
Becoming Christ Consciousness is a difficult and lengthy process.	94
Not consciously aware of the plan	96
Don't get discouraged	97
Make your life experience here count	98
Use your humanity for good	99
Love like never before	100
It is so wonderful to connect with each of you	101
We are privileged in our knowing	102
(a Prayer)	102
We are each much greater than our containers	103
Let us welcome the unknown today	104
Many can't receive or respond to our loving inspiration	105
Try to remember that you, my loves, are aspects of God	106
God is now walking the earth	107
You don't have a soul. You are a soul	108
You have a function as a part of God	109
You are here to work on God's behalf because you are part of God	110
The grand purpose is to extend love	111
Christ is in everyone but Christ is not yet functional in everyone	112
It is so exciting to see where we are all headed	113
Be happy for absolutely no reason at all	114
We are both a collective body of Christ and individual bodies of Christ	115
You each are Christ, my brothers and sisters	116
Stay true to your true Self	117
Holy relationships are permanent and entirely based on love	118

The new relationship between the seen and unseen realms is strengthening	119
Talk to us. We hear your prayers	120
You don't leave the non-physical world entirely when you have a lifetime experie on a world of form	ence 121
Have one day a week to honor your Self as soul on that day	122
Find peace and love in whatever presents itself to you	123
Take some time each and every day for YOU	124
Love is always speaking	125
Defy all definitions Be radically different	126
Smile for absolutely no reason at all	127
Learn to accept not knowing	128
People are simply afraid of truth	129
Let us take a journey get ready to disembark	130
Fasten your seatbelts and keep a clear mind	131
Take my hand. We will go where few have ventured	132
You are in very safe hands!	133
Souls grow even under the most extreme conditions	134
There's a little bit of everyone and everything in each of you	136
Hold onto your seats, everyone	137
There's love in every single song	138
Love is a creation that can never die	140
We are raising the bar because it is time to do so	142
Love is what carries us through	144
Watch your step. Watch your step	146
It's so easy to forget	147
Each of you are magnificent blessings to your communities	148
Please know you can open your heart to me at any time	149
Everyone is welcome in my home	150
Remember to be present leave your thoughts behind	152
Those who pray and ask for any type of help are responded to	153

We take the needs of all souls into consideration	155
We are all the same we are one	156
Stop and enjoy God 's handiwork	157
Remember to keep your gardens pruned	158
Stay on top of your feelings	159
Let's have a group prayer	160
Be in natural environments	161
Feeling more a part of the natural world	162
Today, let's practice stillness and being nothing	163
A question for you	164
Close your eyes and melt into thin air	165
You have lost yourself to find yourself	166
St. Germain just revealed the secret of the universe	167
The trip to revelation is priceless	168
Hallelujah! Praise God! The Christ Child is born	169
Our work is really just beginning	170
What does it mean to be Christ?	171
Christ means God in man We are each an aspect of God	172
Let us have a prayer of gratitude	174
What's next for the Christ Selves?	175
Love sees the reality of the situation	176
Keep your thought garden clear of weeds	177
Well, here we are	178
We've Only Just Begun	179
This is our time to shine	180
It is our job to light the way in the darkness	181
The world doesn't know the truth yet	182
Christ teaches discernment	183
Christ is never alone	184
The truth lives inside everyone	185

The world got it all wrong	186
Be aware of your brain's resistance	187
Tomorrow, full speed ahead !	188
Perseverance is my topic today	189
Thought pollution	190
We are here to serve love by being love	191
What is love asking of you now?	192
How will you give love today?	193
Love is the only real, lasting thing here	194
All systems are on "go"	195
Say these three simple words to someone I love you	196
Love is priceless	197
The power of touch	198
The best things in life are simple	199
Let love lead the way	200
Our business is booming the need is great	201
How many different ways can you serve love today?	202
Love is the only answer	203
I will say it again Love is the only answer	204
Let's support love by supporting each other	205
The eagle has landed	206
Nothing can stop us now	207
Charge full steam ahead	208
The Christ Organization is amazing	209
Stay connected to us	210
Let's turn on the lights	211
Love equals power	212
Love is awareness of other's needs	213
Stand up and be counted	214
You had to lose yourself to find your Self	215

Love is always expanding	216
The earth is in on the act too	217
Our message in this upside down carnival world is going to be considered blasphemous by many	218
Christshines the light of truth for all to see, whether they want to see it or not	220
Remember who and what you are	221
We are in the dismantling stage	222
Know that souls near you hear you	223
Christ is the risen sun	224
There are two levels of fear playing out	225
We are reclaiming and redefining everything	227
Own your own power, brothers and sisters	228
The Second Coming of Christ is here!	229
The Second Coming is bigger than the first	230
A recent uptick and intensity in the Christ Organization	231
Relax and enjoy the ride	232
Bless you each!	233
Love equals power	234
Christ replaces ego as the dominant operating system	235
Let your needs be known	236
There may be a surprise or two stay tuned !	237
Keep us close by throughout the day	238
The Christ Organization is just dedicated to serving with love	239
Giving and receiving are one in truth	240
We like what we see (Jesus introduces the Arcturian Council)	241
Expect resistance	242
You each know the world of ego well	243
Start practicing being unfazed	244
You will each encounter fear in different ways	245
Remember that you are looking in at something you are no longer a part of	246

Stay focused. Stay on task	247
Remember, you signed up for this	248
Christ really cannot be defined	249
Christ is God in form	250
You are each breaking in 'a pair of new jeans '	251
Like attracts like	252
Christ transformation	253
Let's review some of our recent talking points	254
You have been taking the hardest class in the universe	255
You have defeated human nature itself	256
I am gobsmacked	257
Let's celebrate your high marks, Christs!	258
A Journey into the Unknown Christ transformation	259
Being Christ is a team sport	260
There is no death or separation	261
We are all the same, my friends	262
You are me and I Am you	263
Easter represents rebirth and freedom	264
Our business is to give love and shine light	265
There's a method to our madness	266
There's more going on than meets the eye	267
Learn to turn the mind off when you're finished using it The number one thir just to be	ng is 268
Trust Rejoice	269
Our mission: to bring love by being love	270
The time has come to reveal myself to you	271
There will be new opportunities	273
Improvisation is built into the script	274
We need a way to be noticed	275
This is the time for revelation, complete and total revelation	276
	-

We must reach even those who simply couldn't care less	277
The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded	as 278
The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded	as 279
The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded	as 280
The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded	as 281
The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded	as 282
The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded	as 283
The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded	as 284
The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded	as 285
Christ is a relationship of love and support	286
Our work for now is ending in a way and beginning in another	288
Stay clear	289
How will you give love today?	290
Love is powerful	291
Love is free from the past	292
Accept the mystery of all life	293
The Second Coming is here!	294
We're ready	295

Books 3 to 10

September 27, 2020 to April 12, 2021

You are each a pioneer in the new ways of Christ...

September 27, 2020 ~ 1:14 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

You are the ground floor of a magnificent structure we are building. You are each a pioneer in the new ways of Christ, as Mary and as Jesus.

We have been following each of you and monitoring your progress for longer than you know. You are each a magnificent jewel, indestructible and eternal.

We are grateful to each of you to be brave enough to buck popular opinion and answer the call to respond to A Journey into the Unknown.

We represent both Mary and Jesus and will be communicating with you through Rick on a weekly basis. Don't be surprised if Mary or Jesus arrive directly to give a weekly message. They both like to do that from time to time.

In great love and admiration for each of you, a disciple of the true gospel.

Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 1:23 p.m.

Our souls are united in purpose...

Sunday, October 4, 2020 ~1:18 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

May I introduce myself to you? I am Mother Mary, the source of love and inspiration. My love is in companionship and cooperation with Jesus' love. Together we form a complete circle of God's love manifested.

We work with those who ask for our help and insight. In doing so, we spread our joy throughout the earth.

You may be following in my footsteps or in Jesus' or in both ways.

It is because you each know the truth about your identity that you can now be free to express Christ Consciousness.

You are each as important and as valuable to our social movement as I AM or as Jesus is. You are me and I am you. We aim to bless and spread love throughout the land.

Our souls are united in purpose and there really is only one purpose, which is to express love unconditionally.

You are my children sharing with my children. Together we are one.

Thank you for allowing me to give this message to you each. It pleases me so to see the work that you have done on yourselves and are now doing for the benefit of all.

With love and admiration, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ.

P.S. Keep up the good work and let me know when and where I can be of assistance. Your prayers to me are heard and responded to. We are in this together."

End Time: 1:37 p.m..

You cannot see us... but we are there...

Sunday, October 11, 2020 ~ 1:38 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

I hope you have not grown tired of me yet. I enjoyed giving a message to you so much last week that I wanted to make it a regular communion. There is so much that I long to say.

I attend your weekly meetings as does Jesus and other spiritual beings. You cannot see us in Zoom boxes but we are there. We listen to your heartfelt words and relish hearing them.

It really wasn't that long ago that we were on the earth, pondering life and ourselves, wondering who we were and what we were in truth.

We discovered what you each know. It's amazing to see how much Christ Consciousness has grown.

Lorraine has talked about her strong connection to me. I wish to tell her that I feel the same way about her. I feel the same way about each of you, carrying out the work Jesus and I started. It is such a beautiful and amazing sight.

You are each practicing forgiveness and gratitude, blessing everyone we send to you. This is what it means to be a Christ, a child of God.

You each walk the talk. Zonia, Christina, Jude, Lorraine and Irene, you are my sisters and I love you so. You have each shown me a thing or two. We give and receive as one.

I focused on the women today but I have much more to say, specifically to the men in this group, next week.

Until next week, With the love of Christ, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ." End Time: 2:00 p.m.

Love cannot be limited in any way...

Sunday, October 18, 2020 ~ 1:28 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is my pleasure to meet with you again. I want to send my love to Georgie, Zonia, Irene, Jude, Christina and Lorraine, my spiritual sisters.

Perilous times call for even more love and compassion. Perhaps it comes more naturally for those of the divine feminine persuasion but you men are doing it too! You have learned to embrace my ways of care and concern for others, nurturing them and helping them to grow.

Love cannot be defined by the body's sex. It cannot be limited in any way, shape or form. You are each limitless and have each tapped into this well that never ends.

John, Jacque, Miguel, Kevin, Bill and Rick, you are mine and I claim you as my own, as you claim me as yours. Your bodies do not define you. Your souls are magnificent reflections of God's love, both the masculine and the feminine.

With love and gratitude, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 1:43 p.m.

You are Fesus' Hands and Feet

Sunday, October 25, 2020 1:33 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

I feel very welcome here in your midst. You each bring me into love's embrace. You are each love in action in the material world. When you give love to another child of God, I am there.

I wanted to talk to you each today about the topic of inheritance. You are my heirs. You do my work on the earth by extending the love you receive from our great Mother/Father. There is no greater calling.

I am one with Jesus. You are his heirs as well. We paved the way on the earth and now you walk in our footsteps. Each step is taken with us by your side.

You go nowhere where we are not with you. We know your situations and your deepest thoughts. We know your fears and worries.

Remember that you are my hands and my feet. You are Jesus' hands and feet. You each represent us in your own unique and individualized ways. I am so appreciated of your willingness to show the world what love looks like. A Journey Into The Unknown merely gives suggestions. Together, we are free to create beyond these basic building blocks.

In love and admiration, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 1:53 p.m.

Everything is about to change...

Tuesday, October 27, 2020 ~ 7:38 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

I have an urgent and unexpected message for this group at this time. I don't want you to become complacent and just expect one message per week. You have already been given a message by our dear Mother Mary, but I'm here to tell you that you may receive more than one per week or even per day.

Everything is about to change including how often these messages are given and how they are given. It is imperative that we be able to communicate with our charges on a more constant basis.

As Mother Mary said, A Journey into the Unknown was a mere starting point. We will be needing to accelerate our times of group communion and this scribe is being asked to facilitate this process.

This is union.

With the greatest of love and admiration, Jesus"

End Time: 7:50 p.m.

Few have dared to tread these waters ...

Wednesday, October 28, 2020 ~ 1:31 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

As we embark on our individual and collective Journey's into the Unknown, let us pause for celebration for everything that brought all of you to this point. Few have dared to tread these waters.

I wish to impart my knowledge and wisdom to each of you, as we are truly a living, breathing team.

I am with you now as we gather.

Love, Jesus"

End Time: 1:36 p.m.

Our job is to bring love to a loveless world.

Thursday, October 29, 2020 ~ 7:56 a.m.

"Good Morning, Brethren,

Breathe with me. Breathe in the newness of the now moment. Breathe again. You are as a newborn baby, free of the past and ready to take on the world. You are ready to respond to the many calls for love that you see before you. You are on my executive team in form and this is our job, to bring love to a loveless world.

Let us begin.

In love's power, Your comrade in Christ Consciousness, Jesus"

End Time: 8:02 a.m.

Love is the great revealer of truth ...

Saturday, October 31, 2020 ~ 8:45 a.m.

"Good morning, Brethren,

The days and nights ahead may be chaotic and frightening for many, but not so much for you. You have your faith, your inner knowing to rely on. You will see truth underneath collapsing forms.

As the Three Little Pigs story taught you, a house of straw cannot stand external forces. We tell you now that a house made of concrete and steel cannot stand either, unless it is grounded in the spiritual principle of love. All human creations not firmly rooted in truth must be revealed. Love will save the day.

Love is the great revealer of truth.

Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 8:55 a.m.

Don't let news of the world detract you from your mission...

Saturday, October 31, 2020 ~ 8:56 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Happy Halloween everyone. Today can be a day to let your hair down, so to speak, and enjoy the festivities. Children and some adults enjoy dressing up like ghosts and goblins, having an abundance of sweet treats and just spending time with those you may know and those you don't.

My encouragement for you each today is to relish the spirit of this day and bring it into every day. Make each of your days a special and unique creation, as you bless its inhabitants with love.

Please don't let news of the world detract you from your mission. Many cannot find unconditional love but they will recognize it when it flows from you."

With love and honor, Your comrade in Christ, Jesus"

End Time: 9:08 a.m.

An aspect of union...

Saturday, October 31, 2020~ 3:09 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

We don't want to inundate you but get you used to an aspect of union instead, namely receiving and processing communication from the unseen realm. There is a method to our madness.

Receiving intelligence from us in the form of communication is the final step in feeling like you are one of us. Instead of a human sending you a text message, you are receiving messages from your unseen friends and family, of which you are a part. This seems unreal to most but will become something that you will see more and more as "normal". It is normal for the state you each live in, the elevated self of form, a free spirit of mature soul with a human identity.

Until tomorrow! Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 3:20 p.m.

Only love is real...

Sunday, November 1, 2020 ~ 11:58 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

I have come once again, to join with you each through the written word. Stay strong in the truth and don't be misled by fear and its messages. These are simply calls for love and blessings, no matter how big and how frightening they may be.

Nothing can harm you my loves. Stay strong in your connection to love. We need you to bless and create miracles during this time. If you become afraid, take a deep breath and ask for our help. Do not become dismayed.

Things will come up for healing in those you witness to. Our offer of healing will come through you each. Stay clear so that we can give maximal support to you and those you minister to.

Only love is real,

Love, Mother Mary your sister in Christ."

End Time: 12:08 p.m.

We need you to remain peaceful...

Sunday, November 1, 2020 ~ 2:19 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Consider limiting your consumption of news media in the upcoming days. Be blissfully unaware. If you are not able to do this, try to keep a lid on the amount. We need you to remain peaceful. People you see in your daily lives will be feeling anxiety over world events. These are your brothers and sisters who are feeling a great deal of fear. Bless them, hold open a door, do any little thing to lighten their load. They do not have your understanding of the truth. They need you to model being okay. Show your love to all, no matter what kinds of thoughts they subscribe to.

Until tomorrow, Your brother in Christ, Jesus"

End Time: 2:28 p.m.

fove is all there is.

Monday, November 2, 2020 3:30 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Take nothing for granted. Everything can disappear as quickly as it appeared. This applies not only to objects, conditions and circumstances but your own experience of union as well. If you neglect our gentle nudging, then you may not feel as strong or connected to me.

If you need to read my written words several times a day, please do whatever works for you and produces a strong feeling of connection or union.

We oftentimes get the short end of the stick. Please know that prayer doesn't have to be separate. We want each of you to pray while you are busy with the mundane things that call your attention.

When you get off track, stop in your tracks, fill your body with light from your soul and begin again. There is no loss in love. If love seems to disappear, please know that this is just perceptual. It never goes anywhere. Love is all there is.

I remember well, how hard staying in a state of union was when I had so many tasks to attend to during my time on earth. We have all been there.

In great love and power, Your comrade Jesus."

End Time: 3:45 p.m.

Meditate, commune in prayer and rejuvenate.

Wednesday, November 4, 2020 ~ 7:33 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

When the fires dim, put on some more logs. When the flames are blazing, relax and enjoy the comfort that your soul in concert with other souls, provide to your body.

Because you are a soul, know that it is the one calling for more logs. It wants you to provide time for it to meditate, commune in prayer and rejuvenate.

You are each becoming proficient in knowing what your soul wants vs. what your small self wants. Each day gives you more and more experience with this concept.

In love and gratitude, Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 7:40 a.m.

We take care of your soul's needs and you take care of the body's needs.

Thursday, November 5, 2020 ~ 7:26 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

We give you everything. We nourish every fiber of your Being. Your soul wants for nothing that you do not already have provided to you.

The body requires movement, nutrition and rest. It alerts you to times during the day when these needs are being asked for accommodation and to be provided for.

Your brain often falls outside of these two categories. It asks for or demands everything under the sun. We ask you each on this fine day to begin to question the brain's demands.

We take care of your soul's needs and you take care of the body's needs. The brain's demands are being left out of the equation. It is often in direct opposition to our ways. It pulls and pushes and we prefer stillness. This where your power is.

With love and admiration, Cadre of Souls."

End Time: 7:42 a.m.

The art of thought...

Thursday, November 5, 2020 ~ 6:00 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

You as soul want to be in charge of knowing when to use your brain. Your brain is a wonderfully complicated computer. It is a fantastic tool to have on your human journey. What it is not doing now is being in charge and running the show. It is good at a lot of things but this isn't one of them.

Each of your souls have moved to the primary position and will use your brain strategically. This is the art of thought.

What is happening with each of you is that your brains are playing tricks on you. They are trying their best to draw you into their grips and away from the soul's focus. Don't be fooled.

Only love is real. So, go ahead and ask the question, is this love? This will clear out any confusion you might encounter.

We love each of you more than you know and are so glad to have you under our wings,

Cadre of Souls."

End Time: 6:12 p.m.

Giving and receiving are one in truth.

Friday, November 6, 2020 ~ 7:06 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

The stillness is outside thought. All knowing is outside thought, in the depth of stillness. All feelings emanating from knowing emerge from stillness.

Humans have a great deal of trouble accessing the dimension of stillness/ knowing/deep feeling because their brains jam up the airwaves with constant chatter. In some, it's as if several radio stations are all being broadcast at the same time, on the same frequency.

But not you, Not all the time and oftentimes not at all. We can reach you each and for that we are very grateful. This is an individualized experience of union. It can't be taught in a book. These messages amount to a Ph.D. level experience.

We provide this to you each because we know you are listening and appreciative of our gifts. Giving and receiving are one in truth. Our appreciation of each of you brings us great joy, which we celebrate with you as a collective.

Until tomorrow Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 7:21 p.m.

May love prevail ...

Saturday, November 7, 2020 ~ 12:53 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Let us pray. May we find commonality with those who hate, fear and distrust us. We cannot hate, fear and distrust them. May love prevail. May forgiveness and compassion become the standard rather than the exception. May our brothers and sisters awaken to the truth of their being and discover their purpose for being on the planet during this time in history, which is to be a portal for love instead of judgment.

Amen.

Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 1:05 p.m.

A message in a bottle...

November 8, 2020 ~ 1:19 p.m.

"Dear Christina and Rick / Changed to Dear Brethren,

We greet you both. Our message at this time is to give you both an analogy, which is the analogy of a message in a bottle. You are both familiar with this concept. There have been many stories of glass bottles with messages secured inside, thrown out to the sea or buried in the backyard somewhere. The messages survived and were sometimes discovered many years or decades later.

A Journey into the Unknown is very much like a message in a bottle. It will survive long after you both have moved on from your earthly experiences.

An added benefit is that it is being received now as well. The revolutionary information this book contains is causing people to question everything, which is its real purpose. Whether someone appreciates it or not is neither here nor there. The book dares its readers to open up to a new way of being.

We are grateful to you both for the hard work and dedication that has gone into this project. It has not gone unnoticed.

Rick, please scratch out, "Dear Christina and Rick". We want this to be a group message. We let you fall into the routine but changed course. You both will not receive messages every Sunday but will receive them as needed. We will instead address the entire group in group messages and you are both members of that group so you will receive them as well, in that context.

We want to express our joy to be included in this group and in your lives. We speak for Mother Mary and Jesus when we say that this is truly a remarkable

experience. We have not had a team such as this, assembled in quite a long time in earth years.

Expect to hear from us often, Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 1:41 p.m.

Teach grace, love, forgiveness and compassion...

Monday, November 9, 2020 ~ 7:15 pm

"Dear Brethren,

When I have spoken of and taught about the concept of illusion, I was referring to typical human thinking, in separation from truth and from God.

This situation has worsened with the proliferation of "alternative facts" and bubbles of conspiracy theories. People believe basic untruths and unfortunately, many are falling prey to not only misperceptions but bold faced lies that have been constructed to demonize others.

Love is not in the equation in the House of Illusion but it is strong in the House of Truth. Please continue to teach grace, love, forgiveness and compassion. The buck stops here in our house.

With the greatest love, Your brother in Christ"

End Time: 7:27 p.m.

Fear is merely a misinterpretation...

Wednesday, November 11, 2020 ~ 10:04 a.m.

"It is Mother Mary. I wish to join with you each in celebration of truth. We celebrate love in all of its forms, no matter what disguise may be worn to hide it. Love is everywhere. This is what we celebrate.

It is true that your brothers and sisters do not consciously know that love is everywhere. They only see the difficult and the unwelcome, but you each see love where most do not. This is what we celebrate today and everyday.

If you can see it when it is not apparent, we know that others will be able to also, when it is time for their true vision to be restored and shine through.

Love is the content, always. It is there, ever in the most fearful of forms. Fear is merely a misinterpretation. Love brings fear to the surface for reinterpretation.

In love and communion, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 10:20 a.m.

Disease can only be transmitted through thought...

Friday, November 13, 2020 ~ 6:43 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. The coronavirus has upended your civilization across the globe. A contagious disease, even an especially contagious disease such as this, can only be transmitted through thought. Thoughts of blame of self attract contagions. The contagion is the mechanism. It really isn't in charge of infecting some and sparing others, as is commonly believed and as it seems. There is a reason why some are infected with it and some are not. This is true with this virus and with all disease.

Contagious disease is a mechanism to grant an unwelcome and unwanted request. No one wants to get sick and yet virtually everyone will have mild and perhaps severe disease in their lifetimes. It is part of being human and it is part of being human developmentally.

Part of being a mature soul is that the need for these types of lessons and experiences is no longer there. Mature souls don't have a singular self focus and no longer blame themselves for anything.

While humanity waits for a vaccine, please set an example for slowing the spread. Wear a mask when in public, practice social distancing and wash your hands as frequently as possible. This isn't "buying into fear". It is practical advice because this is the reality you are living in now and in the foreseeable future.

Wear a mask and bless all you come in contact with. When this has passed, you can all remove your masks and smile once again.

A pandemic is part of the plot. Understand the fear surrounding it, the fear of death, the fear of financial insecurity, and accept that this is what life looks like, for now.

In love and admiration, Jesus"

End Time: 7:07 p.m.

The solitary path is the most difficult to embark on...

Sunday, November 15, 2020 ~ 1:07 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. I have longed to be with you today and to talk about the solitary road. It feels lonely and desolate at times. Even knowing that we in the spirit realm are with you, it can feel like you are all alone, excluded from paths that are more populated.

The solitary path is the most difficult to embark on. There is no one who could possibly join you in the physical sense. This path may be created at different junctures of one's lifetime. It may be preceded by populated paths and may be succeeded by populated paths or may be the final path.

If you were to find yourself on a solitary path, know that this is part of your soul's journey. Having others with you at this time would only interrupt and interfere with what we are accomplishing through your soul.

Soul journeys have different segments. If and when you discover yourself on a solitary road, please know that this is not by mistake. It is the hardest path but reaps the greatest rewards.

In love and as your overseer, Jesus"

Remain calm no matter what...

Monday, November 16, 2020 ~ 6:38 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. Remain calm no matter what may or may not be happening in the larger collective. Watch the parade go by and don't let it impact you one way or another. It's happening. It's interesting and yet it doesn't have the power to move you from your truth, your peace, your joy.

Your friend may say, "doesn't this bother you?" "Isn't this terrible?" This is an opportunity to bless your sister and tell her that you believe in love. She may find this intriguing. The perspective of love really is intriguing. It is so starkly different from the blame and shame alternative.

Stay strong my friends,

In love and great admiration, Your comrade, Jesus"

End Time: 6:51 p.m.

The mystery...

Tuesday, November 17, 2020 ~ 7:19 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. The mystery is my topic for today. So many things are mysteries in life indeed, but none as much as each of you. There truly is a lovely and magnificent quality that emanates from each of you. It's something no one can quite put their finger on. It's beyond human description.

The mysterious aspect of each of you is your connection to union, to the unseen aspects of life. What seems mysterious about you each today pales in comparison to what will seem mysterious tomorrow or next week or next year.

The nature of a being immersed in union deepens and widens. The waters of union emerse and consume the old and increase the new.

You are each love incarnate.

With tears as I gaze upon your beauty,

Jesus, creator of all"

End Time: 7:34 p.m

Love is wanting to manifest...

Wednesday, November 18, 2020 ~ 11:53 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Yesterday, our brother Jesus reflected on the beauty of each of your soul's project. Today we wish to encourage you to see this beauty everywhere and within everyone. When your sisters and brothers are really struggling, know that beauty is there, just beneath the surface. This inner beauty is what we ask you to witness to.

Yes, of course you see the way or ways that fear is manifesting. Know that love is wanting to manifest. It wants to speak. It wants to express, This is what your blessing do. They give a helping hand to something that many don't even believe is there at all.

This is what visionaries such as yourselves do with seamless precision. We thank you for that and yes, we know that we are preaching to the choir.

In love manifest, your cheerleaders Cadre of Souls."

End Time: 12:03 p.m.

The work that each of you do is important...

Wednesday, November 18, 2020 ~ 7:12 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. I wish to speak to you each about the topic of inheritance. Mother Mary has spoken to you each about being our heirs and inheriting all that we have to give. This causes both you and us to be even stronger. When you give your spiritual gifts, both you and the recipient benefit greatly.

'Giving and receiving are one in truth' is a spiritual concept that I want you to always keep in mind. Imagine a vault filled with cash and precious jewels. Each time you give these away, there's more in your vault, not less. You may have to get more vaults, not fewer. With spiritual gifts, there is no such thing as downsizing.

The work that each of you do is just as important as the work that Mother Mary and I did when we were incarnate. At that time, neither of us could imagine that wee would still be promoting our life work of love 2,000 plus years later, all thanks to the willingness of our strong family of human brothers and sisters.

In heartfelt awe and appreciation, Your brother, Jesus"

End Time: 7:26 p.m.

In service to all...

Thursday, November 19, 2020 ~ 7:08 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Mother Mary. Simplicity is what I wish to speak to you each about. We are simple beings, happy with the simplest things, grateful beyond measure for all that has been provided for us.

We are content and strive for nothing. We simply enjoy what we have and where we find ourselves, right now. Tomorrow may bring us completely different things and completely different situations and places.

We are asked, "can you share what you have today?" "Will you share what you have tomorrow, in a new situation, with new characters?"

The answer is always "yes!".

Our prayer is "Dear Father/Mother/Great Spirit of All, please allow me the opportunity to share with and bless others wherever you may need me."

I know each of you better than you know yourselves. I know that you each have allowed the training wheels to come off. You are ready to respond to love with love to whomever we put before you.

We are becoming a well oiled machine. All of the hard work has paid off. Now, we share our Beingness, our Souls, in service to all. There is nothing else as holy and as honorable.

Thank you my children, my sisters and brothers. Until we meet again (soon) Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 7:25 p.m.

Jesus introduces Helen Schucman...

Friday, November 20, 2020 ~ 7:13 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. I would like to use this opportunity to present a dear friend of mine and of yours, one who has worked tirelessly on our project of bringing truth to the earth project on both sides of the veil. Here name was Helen and because she has not reincarnated this is what she still likes to be called and known by. I will let her take over at this point and speak to the group.

Hello everyone. It is Helen. I am the one who received and scribed the seminal book (masterpiece in my opinion), A Course in Miracles. My message to you at this time is simply "WOW". I had no idea of the value or importance of Miracles either during or even after it was finished. The material was hard for me to grasp as it was for virtually everyone since then but to see what happened to it is astonishing. For many years there were many individuals and groups studying the course to find the promise of inner peace. When Mari's continuation arrived, many took the leap of faith to test out the waters and explore love in a much deeper way, along with developing a relationship with Jesus.

This brings us to A Journey Into The Unknown, which is entirely about application of very esoteric spiritual principles in a very down to earth and practical way. This is largely why I previously said "WOW", because I did not really see Miracles headed in this direction. It was surprising to me.

I have been told that I am a welcomed new contributor to this team, so you will be hearing from me along with Jesus, Mother Mary and The Cadre of Souls. I have a lot to say and share.

Love, your Sister in Christ, Helen"

End Time: 7:32 p.m.

Forgiveness and A Course in Miracles...

Saturday, November 21, 2020 ~ 7:47 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is Helen. I send my love and greetings. I understand how surprised and startled some of you were when Rick sent the previous message. It is surprising to hear from those who have "died". None of us really die. We just change form. In my case, I left my body and became formless, although I can make my astral body visible when the need or desire arises. This is the hardest part of being human. We miss those who have left and would give anything to hear from them again.

So, here I am amongst you, wanting to share some of my experiences with you, in ways you can relate to. Writing A Course in Miracles was a strange experience, namely because I didn't understand why I was chose to write it down. What did it mean? What were you supposed to do with it? These questions were always going on in the back of my mind.

We stuck with it but even when I was finished, I wasn't at all sure what the whole thing was for. What will people do with it? How will it help them? Forgiveness is a major theme in the book but practicing it is quite different. How you think of yourselves now, as spirit beings with a body, is clearly stated in Miracles but it would take a long time for this concept to sink in and be practiced. They didn't seem like baby steps because it all seemed so incomprehensible but looking back, forgiveness and the freedom it provides were baby steps towards a complete identity change, which all of you are examples of.

This progress of the teachings and its effect on human evolution has been remarkable to watch. I'm very glad to have had a role in getting the ball rolling.

Much Love, Helen"

End Time: 8:14 p.m.

Fourney weaves ACIM and ACOL together...

Sunday, November 22, 2020 ~ 1:08 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Hello again. It is Helen. I hope you haven't tired of me yet. I really like communicating like this and Hope I can do it frequently.

Miracles was hard to write down because of how complicated it was. The lessons were pretty straightforward but the text was exceedingly complicated for me because of the words Jesus selected. They were common words with very common meanings. So, here I was hearing these words but I didn't recognize the meanings anymore. "Real" and "Illusion" were two examples. Readers today still struggle with them. It was especially hard for me because as I've said last night the whole thing was hard for me to process on a cognitive level. I kept going because I knew that there was something there, something mysterious and powerful, something otherworldly. It could not be ignored. The beginning of the text explains what miracles are. I knew deep down inside that nothing like this was in any book. As far as I knew, it didn't exist in the human realm of knowledge. I say this because I consider myself an educated woman, which was a source of great pride. So, as you can see, writing A Course in Miracles was quite difficult. Rick has had it much easier because he already knew what all the words meant! (*smile*)

Miracles teaches willing readers to to tame their minds because thoughts themselves cause so many problems. Mari's book showed the way of the heart to its audience to replace an entirely masculine approach. Journey weaves the two together. I have much more to say later today.

Love and Inspiration Helen, your Sister in Christ."

End Time: 1:32 p.m.

Reading channeled writings...

Sunday, November 22, 2020 ~ 7:20 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Hello all. It is Helen. Much has been said about the way that channeled writings sound when read. The short answer is that spirit beings, who do not have vocal cords in their etherial bodies, use the filter of the body/mind vehicle that is being used to receive a message. A Course in Miracles "sounded" the way that it did because it was being filtered through a person in the world of academia. If I was still in form, I could channel a piece of writing and it would sound like Miracles. No one else could create that same sense of seriousness.

Jesus channels through others and it doesn't sound like Miracles, but it is still Jesus, using a specially selected filter to create what is needed for that time. No two receivers receive the same way. It's a very unique process, which I've found out more about since I've been back home in the spirit realm. If readers of Miracles expect Jesus to always sound the way he did in that book, they will be sorely disappointed to discover how much they have missed out on in other channeled writings. Each receiver gives a spiritual being a particular flavor.

This now having been explained, it is the message that is to be received, not the form. Jesus and all spirit beings involved in projects where they communicate directly with humans for further dissemination, all teach about love and truth. This is how a reader knows. This said, not all books are for all people. The adage to not judge is still good advice.

Don't forget that Miracles was judged very harshly when it came out. People said "Jesus wrote a book?" I wanted to bury my head in the sand.

More later my sisters and brothers, Love Helen"

End Time: 7:47 p.m.

Our essence is retained when we pass over...

Monday, November 23, 2020 ~ 1:16 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Hello again. It's me Helen. I'm considered one of you since I was fortunate enough to be part of this project from the beginning. I knew at the soul level that I would birth Miracles into the world before I incarnated as Helen. Of course, my small self, my ego, had no clue and provided plenty of resistance to this very lengthy project. Now that Journey is available, the project has moved from the abstract to practical application. Me connecting with this first group that has embraced Journey is also part of project.

I mentioned that we don't have vocal cords. We use the Christ mind to communicate with each other and with humans who are sensitive to it. Rick has had a lot of practice at this point and my thoughts just pour out of him. I'm very comfortable talking to him in this way. After he receives my messages, he uses traditional modes of communication to bring these to the group. I say traditional but email is not that old yet. It's pretty modern. Boy, do I wish that we had fancy computers and email when we were receiving Miracles. That would have made so many aspect much easier.

We all retain our essence when we pass over. It's that feeling that someone gets when they receive communication from any of us. The essence tells you that yes, it is in fact Jesus, Mother Mary, Helen, the Cadre of Souls or anyone. The essence of a soul is filtered through a channel. The channels are all different but the essence stays the same. It's like someone wearing different clothes, different outfits. Underneath, it's the same personal or soul.

I love talking to you like this. Thank you for giving me your time and attention.

Love, Helen, your sister in Christ."

End Time: 1:39 p.m.

Union is natural...

Tuesday, November 24, 2020 ~ 3:32 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Mother Mary, and I will do the honors today of introducing a special guest and new team member. Before I do that, I want to talk to you each about union, which is something that all of you are becoming more and more familiar and comfortable with. We in the spirit realm experience union, our connection to all, to God and to each other.

Union goes both ways. It goes from the world of form to the world of spirit and goes from the world of spirit to the world of form with caveats.

As you know, someone has to be developed enough to be open to us, in order to experience union. The vast majority of humanity is not, unfortunately. Therefore, we in the spirit realm do not experience full union, which is defined when ALL are open to receive from ALL. During this time of Christ Consciousness, we are very excited to experience more and more union from our realm to yours. Helen has had a pivotal role in this as has this fine gentleman, who has a few words to say to the group. This is Bill, who helped give birth to Jesus' A Course in Miracles.

Hello everyone. It is Bill, your brother in Christ. I was a part of the human team that brought you Jesus' first major book in the modern era. I want to thank Christina, Jo and Rick. It takes a team. Each role is dependent on the others. No single role is more important than the others.

I share Helen's feelings about what a strange experience the book provided to us while it was being formed and birthed, but that's our main point, union is natural but it seems very strange from the human perspective.

With great love and admiration, Your brother in Christ, Bill"

End Time: 3:58 p.m.

Spiritual development never has an ending...

Wednesday, November 25, 2020 ~ 1:07 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

We hope you have enjoyed hearing from your old friends and ours. They really didn't go anywhere. They still work tirelessly on bringing truth to earth. Their lives continue in miraculously magical ways. They show you that there truly never is a period at the end of the sentence. Life goes on and on and on and on, forever and forever. Thank you for embracing what is next in your spiritual development, which is A Journey Into The Unknown because spiritual development never has a period. It just has more.

With light and truth, Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 1:15 p.m.

My words are your words ...

Thursday, November 26, 2020 ~ 1:23 p.m. (U.S. Thanksgiving Day)

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Jesus. I wish to impart my gratitude list on this day of Thanksgiving in the land known as "America." I am thankful for how so many have opened their hearts to me and my messages of love, acceptance and gratitude. I am thankful for the willingness in so many to look at themselves, their circumstances and others, in a brand new way. I am thankful to those who do good deeds out of the kindness of their hearts, without expecting anything in return.

Most importantly, I am grateful to those who have responded to the call to awaken, to love unconditionally, to be an integral part of the biggest evolution revolution known to mankind, the love tsunami.

For these things, I am eternally grateful. To each one who may read these words, my prayer is that they be received with whole heartedness, for my words are your words. We are one in spirit.

With Great Love, may today be the happiest day of Thanksgiving. With gratitude for you each,

Jesus"

End Time: 1:36 p.m.

Let's enjoy the mystery of each and every

moment...

Friday, November 27, 2020 ~ 1:16 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Breathe, exhale, relax. Our project is gaining in sustainability each day. We want to share our appreciation for this fledgling team on a soon to be launched rocketship. Who knows where we will go or what we will find once we arrive? Let's enjoy the mystery of each and every moment on our collective creative project.

Cadre of Souls (with which each of you are part of journeying together)."

End Time: 1:24 p.m.

Don't get too attached...

Saturday, November 28, 2020 ~ 1:00 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. I wish to talk to you today about endings. Endings and new beginnings blend together.

We are approaching an end point with the release of Journey and we are also approaching a new beginning for it, as well as for each of you.

Endings can be difficult but they can also be freeing and joyous. We celebrate where we have been and where we find ourselves now. We let life be in the driver's seat, while we gaze out of the windows in the passenger seats.

Life always gives us beautiful, wonderful things that unfold in mysterious ways. If life wants your help, your expertise, in unfolding and opening up something that may need a little help, a little encouragement, a little love, to manifest, then know that this is why life has brought you here to this place.

Don't get too attached. Get back into the car and let life take you to the next destination. Accept endings. Feel your feelings about them and then journey onward to the next step.

Love your ship-captain, Jesus"

End Time: 1:17 p.m.

Love and forgiveness go hand in hand ...

Sunday, November 29, 2020 ~ 1:00 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Jesus. Today is a day of new beginnings. Train you mind to always see it this way. "Same old Same old" isn't in our vocabulary. Talk to that person who you have a negative past with and don't see the negative past. Just see them naked without any baggage. See them raw and vulnerable. This is what the negative things were covering up. Be like a child who plays with the child who just took his toy, as if nothing ever happened. This is forgiveness in action. This is what I need each of you to teach through modeling. Practice what you preach.

Love and forgiveness go hand in hand,

With infinite Wisdom, Jesus"

End Time: 1:12 p.m.

What do you feel inspired to do?

Monday, November 30, 2020 ~ 7:13 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. Continuing our discussion from the past two days about seeing endings as new beginnings, life provides subtle clues and inspiration more often than imposed change. This is where each of you come in. You are creators now in your own right. You co-created by responding to loving inspiration.

Here is a question for you, how has A Journey Into The Unknown inspired you? Which installments or chapters gave you food for thought? Which ones inspired you in a new way? Which ones pushed your buttons and made you judge what you read with harshness? I tell you now that those were probably the ones that have the most value. Why did they upset you so much? As you well know, you are never mad for the reasons you think. Did you delve in and find out the content of the anger?

This book is jam packed with content because everything is being revealed now. A reader can pick and choose and find fuel for their own creativity. What did it inspire you to do now that most of it has been released? Sharing what you know was emphasized in the early part of the book.

Now is the time to search your heart and see if sharing pleases your soul and fills it with joy. Journey is not dogma. It is completely open ended. It doesn't need to be read more than once, unless you want to revisit favorite parts.

So tell me. What do you feel inspired to do? What will be your new beginning?

Love, your brother in Christ, Jesus"

End Time: 7:34 p.m.

You harm yourselves with your thoughts ...

Tuesday, December 1, 2020 ~ 4:40 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. It is I, the one known as Jesus. It is I, the one known as Jesus. Did you forget who I AM? I am Jesus. I am provocative, Not to harm you in any way but to get you to realize that you harm yourselves with your thoughts. I push your buttons until you realize that you aren't a vending machine and that maybe the buttons are telling you something. There is untruth there. There is fear there. Know that I do this out of love because I want you to be Free.

It is time to leave the nest and fly on your own as the elevated self of form. I asked you yesterday to start to think about ways you would like to be of service. If someone is reading and experiencing the multi-media Journey, then they are ready to be mentored, perhaps by you. If someone is new to our way of life, then you have a wide variety of resources to share.

One of these many resources to share are these messages. They are a little more personal and they are very meaningful to most, if not all of you. Like everything, they are to share. You can share them with a new initiate or with a season pro, into the freedom that is love. They represent unity. I promise you now that you can expect regular messaging from your non-physical team. You may not like all of them but you can expect to receive them.

We never leave you, you each represent us in a most beautiful way.

Love, and power, Jesus"

End Time: 5:01 p.m

Stop and smell the roses...

Wednesday, December 2, 2020 ~ 8:03 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Mother Mary. I wish to remind each of you to stop and smell the roses. Take in all that is life is giving you in this moment.

Jesus has spoken to you about endings and new beginnings. Wherever you find yourself, whatever life has brought you, stop to appreciate what life has presented you with. Then, roll up your sleeves and do God's Work. Help transform what your eyes are showing you. Make this place more beautiful, more loving, more divine than when you first found it.

When the time is right, move on to your next assignment. We have more assignments than we have mature souls to be assigned so expect a beautiful, full life ahead, doing the work of blessing and doing, in unity with one another and with your unseen guides, one moment at a time.

Love, your Sister in Christ, Mother Mary."

End Time: 8:16 p.m.

You are the accomplished...

Thursday, December 3, 2020 ~ 4:59 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. I wish to talk to you today about investments, not in financial terms, but in spiritual resources. Your souls have grown quite powerful over time. They are beautiful representations of all the time and energy that has gone into their growth.

We have provided many tools to each one of you to help your souls to topple the egoic operating system. But, these plentiful resources would have gone to waste had you not responded to them. Many of you have been studying and applying for many years.

This is what we celebrate today, your growth and your willingness to continue growing, by simply responding to love. All we are doing now is moving from abstract book based learning to pure application in the world. How each of you do this is as unique as each of you are, one from another.

You are the accomplished. This was no small feat by any stretch of the imagination. This is what we pause to acknowledge on this fine day.

Thank you each for your effort and service. Love, Jesus"

End Time: 5:16 a.m.

Christ is in everyone, without exception ...

Friday, December 4, 2020 ~ 5:08 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Hello everyone. It is Helen. We are in the Christmas season, where we celebrate not only Jesus' birth but all of our births into form because we are all Christ, the children of the divine, the source of All.

Each life is an opportunity for an individualized soul to grow and mature to a point where it controls the form and uses it as its clay, its expression. This is why we came and continue to do so. Life on earth is one opportunity after another to reflect peace, joy and God.

It doesn't matter if you look at a newborn baby as an example or a troubled teen or a struggling single parent or a senior with health and financial issues, Christ is in everyone, without exception.

Miracles referred to this as the holy spirit. Journey referred to it as the soul. This is what we celebrate during the Christmas season. This is my Christmas card to each of you. As you may know, I did not send many when I was in form. Writing down Miracles helped me to broaden my thinking about what Christ is and what Christmas is really about, underneath the trappings of the season.

We can see Christmas beneath the trappings and we can see each other beneath the trappings too.

With infinite love and wisdom, Helen"

End Time: 5:31 a.m.

A mature soul in form is very much a type of angel...

Saturday, December 5, 2020 ~ 6:00 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Archangel Michael. I wish to introduce myself to those who may be unfamiliar with me. I support Jesus and Mother Mary, along with other archangels. I coordinate teams of legions of angelic spirits to carry out a myriad of assignments here and on other worlds.

I don't know whether you realize this or not, but a mature soul in form is very much a type of angel. This places you under my wings, so this means that I too am a member of your team. There are many others who will be coming forward to introduce themselves to you. Jesus, the Cadre of Souls and Mother Mary have all spoken to you on a regular basis and there have been a couple of old friends who have come forward, true pioneers in bringing truth to those in the modern age, Helen and Bill.

Expect more surprises on this incredible Journey. If I told you who they will be, It wouldn't be much of a surprise now, would it?

Thrilled to have you onboard, Archangel Michael"

End Time: 6:18 a.m.

It is imperative that we make our love movement a global affair.

Sunday, December 6, 2020 ~ 1:09 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. It is imperative that we make our love movement a global affair. When every woman, man and child knows what love is and what it isn't, knows who they are and who they aren't, then the project creating the new earth will be complete. Until then, there is much to do.

How is your section of the project going? Are you maintaining relationship with me either through my writings or through direct dialog or both? Are you being a blessing to your part of the world? Are you keeping your garden pristine by picking out the poisonous thoughts? Is judgement and resulting condemnation not in your repertoire any longer? If you see a need and you have the means and ability, do you pitch in and express love in this way?

Keeping track of your progress from image to presence is an excellent way to make your part of the project, your part of the skyscraper, one that will last and last and one that can be depended on to support the next stories.

Love and Blessings Always, Jesus"

End Time: 1:25 p.m.

You are each an amazing testament to Love...

Monday, December 7, 2020 ~ 9:06 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. Support one another during this time of rapid change and rapid transformation. Offer to help anyone who may be struggling. If another Christ is feeling frustrated about their own kingdom, encourage that ONE to stop in their tracks and smell the roses, as Mother Mary said. Encourage frequent breaks and stops at the rest areas at the side of the road. Encourage not over thinking anything. Encourage deep feeling and connection with us instead. All you are each doing is learning to follow our lead and have the small pesky voice sit in the backseat and take a nap.

You are each an amazing testament to love, Love, Jesus."

End time: 9:16 a.m.

Keep in touch with how you are feeling...

Tuesday, December 8, 2020 ~10:21 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. To review my messages from the last two days, keep track with how you are doing as Christ, simply by being in touch with how you are feeling. Reach out to us or to another of our persuasion if you need any support. Be a good listener for each other. Remember, we are asking you to be Christ on top of a full and busy life. It can seem overwhelming until it just becomes standard operating procedure.

You aren't necessarily doing more, you are just Being more. You are more soul now than anything else and this takes awhile to adjust to. Take baby steps into your new way of Being. It really is just a different way of looking at everything. It is a happier and more positive perspective, which is needed now more than ever.

We are right by your side, Love, Jesus"

End Time: 10:34 a.m.

Souls give love first...

Wednesday, December 9, 2020 ~ 8:14 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Humans aren't very comfortable with the concept of coming to know and embracing whatever presents itself before them. Jesus spoke to you yesterday about how identification with soul simply brings you more peace and happiness. It also brings a heightened sense of curiosity about the world and other beings. Souls only want to bring love to those it encounters and what it encounters. Souls don't believe in the narrative that they are alone and have to protect themselves at all costs, first.

Souls give love first and trust that they will never run out. Their love only increases.

This is just a gentle reminder, we know that you each already know and practice soul identification more than character identification. This is what you each share with the world and for that, we are most grateful.

This is the key to happiness.

Love and Power, Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 8:25 a.m.

Linear time...

Thursday, December 10, 2020 2020 ~ 8:55 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. I wish to speak to you each on this fine day about the topic of timing. Linear time works in a certain way and exactly how it works is deeply ingrained into the brain. Some people have a looser concept of it than others and may struggle with being frequently late. Many others of you have a tighter concept of time and a list of expectations and controls around this concept.

Since I am speaking to an audience of souls, I must remind you that the brain's concept of time and our concept of timing in the spiritual realm are entirely different. If you expect a delivery from us at midnight on a particular date, you will most likely be sorely disappointed.

Trust that the right thing shows up when the timing is perfect for it to do so.

With nothing but love, Jesus"

End Time: 9:07 a.m.

Fudgement...

Friday, December 11, 2020

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. I wish to speak to the group today about judgement, specifically judgement at first glance. I've asked you each to not judge, evaluate or condemn each other. This includes putting people you don't know into categories for any reason but specifically, perceived income level, gender identity, skin color or behavior, anything that turns your brother or sister into someone who is automatically not as good as or less than. The reasons matter not. It is never, ever true. No one is less than for any reason, not even someone on death row. Everyone is an expression of God, at differing levels of awareness and maturity. End point. Please see innocence and not guilt in each and everyone you encounter. The buck stops with you.

Love and amazement, Jesus"

End Time: 9:35 a.m.

Fudgement continued...

Saturday, December 12, 2020 ~ 8:27 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. To continue our talk from yesterday, judgement works both ways. Each of you are being judged as we speak, some quite harshly. Some of you have had an entire lifetime of receiving judgement. It is always a bunch of lies, complete nonsense, but it never feels good. It never picks you up and makes you sing your joy. It makes you feel like you are being harmed and you are. That was the intent. That is why judgement is never love.

Even a little criticism doesn't feel good to a recipient. The best thing someone can do who receives any kind of evaluative judgement is to simply walk away, blessing the giver or givers as they do so, knowing that lies cannot have power over an aspect of God. They speak volumes about the giver and nothing about the targeted recipient. Truth spoken.

Love to Love, Jesus"

End Time: 8:41 a.m.

How many ways are there?

Monday, December 14, 2020 ~ 7: 04 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Mother Mary. I came to bless and be blessed by you each, pioneers in the new ways. How many ways are there? There are more than two because those are just general categories. So, let's say that there are two times infinity. That's how many ways of Mary and ways of Jesus that there are. You are each unlimited in your creative responses to love. You are each creators when engaged with the creative juice of the galaxies.

Imagine how we feel when we see the birth of true creators. It is a feeling like no other. It is grandeur in splended-ness.

Shine on, Love and wisdom, Mother Mary"

End Time: 7:14 p.m.

Simplicity...

Monday, December 14, 2020 ~11:00 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. Simplicity is what I wish to speak of today. Mother Mary spoke of it recently and I wish to elaborate.

Living in the world as a person is simply framed, very complicated. What we are striving for is that living as a free spirit, as soul, is not complicated, is simple, is easy and effortless.

Be ready to bless, ready to respond as your intuition guides you. Swat the flies away. Smile. Talk to us. Listen for our responses. Perhaps they will come in the form of words from another person. Perhaps a song will come on that will speak to you. Maybe a situation will have clarity embedded.

Watch and listen. People don't interact with us much unless it is Sunday morning, but souls are learning to. It's really as simple and natural as breathing. This is union.

Love and admiration to true pioneers, Jesus"

End Time: 11:15 a.m.

You are not trapped by anything...

Tuesday, December 15, 2020 ~10:42 a.m.

Dear Brethren,

It is I, Mother Mary. I wish you peace and joy on this day. May you recognize all that you have been given and appreciate your new found freedom. You are not trapped by anything. There is no circumstance, no devious character, no controlling character, no set of your own ideas and expectations that can confine or control you in any way. The power that all of this once had over you is gone, just like a whispering dream.

You each stand as your sovereign Self, free as a dove, in unity with All That Is.

May God's love emanate from each of you, throughout all of time.

Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 10:51 a.m.

A Fourney into the Unknown is a Ph.D. level finishing school...

Wednesday, December 16, 2020 ~ 10:18 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

The elevated selves of form are amazingly beautiful sights to see. We moved from theory to practice. Union was an abstract concept that has turned into an everyday reality.

A Journey into the Unknown is in actuality, a Ph.D. level finishing school. It was the last piece of the puzzle, one that cemented your identity as soul, as deity and one that actually provided an ongoing experience of union. It's not just a book that angered people. Christina made sure of that with the presentation and we are making sure of it with our ongoing messaging.

Something like this has never happened on the earth before. Today, this group goes off into the unknown as free spiritual pioneers. You know what you know the way that you know it and you will be coming to know what your new identity will show you.

Blessed Be, Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 10:31 a.m.

No matter where you are, Godis.

Thursday, December 17, 2020 ~10:20 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

No matter where you are in the world, there God is. When you speak, God is speaking. When you are doing, God is doing. When you are resting, God is resting. When you bless another, God is blessing another. When you cry, God is crying.

This is where your journey has taken you, to this holy and profound realization. And here we pause to let the gravity of this truth settle in.

In love, wisdom and power, Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 10:27 a.m.

Take advantage of each and every opportunity to express Love...

Friday, December 18, 2020 ~10:11 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Hello everyone. It's Helen. I came to share with you each about the progression of the teachings. When they landed in my lap (so to speak), they were largely about not letting the world bombard and overwhelm you and teaching that each soul is responsible for how they respond to the world. The focus was forgiveness and inner peace. Love was certainly talked about in the beginning but it needed its own volume, the magnificent A Course of Love, to show exactly how love works and to encourage movement away from the masculine thinking mind toward the feminine heart.

Journey is all about responding with love, whether in heartfelt thought or deed. You each have many opportunities each day to express love. Try to take advantage of each and every opportunity. Some only present themselves for a moment and then the opportunity is gone. Try to be present and clear so these chances to love can be opened and manifested, each one a gracious gift.

I am amazed at how far the teachings have evolved and to think, it all started with little 'ole me (smile).

Love and amazement, Helen, your sister in Christ."

End Time: 10:30 a.m.

St. Germain to bring new messages...

Saturday, December 19, 2020 ~ 8:16 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. I wish to use this opportunity to introduce you (again) to the one known as my father on earth, St. Germain. He will explain his role and objectives to you."

"Hello, loved ones. It is I, St. Germain. I played the role of Joseph, Jesus' father and many other roles as well. The reason why I am here now is to talk to you each about some new topics that have not been widely introduced or talked about before this time. I will "hijack" the group so to speak, for some time to come. We all feel very strongly that the chapters and messages connected to the latest volume have done their job in cementing your new identities and purposes on the earth.

Now it is time to go further, to go deeper and explore some new territory. Shall we?

With a bond like no other, To infinity and beyond, St. Germain and Jesus"

End Time: 8:31 a.m.

Initiation into the way of the Masters...

Saturday, December 19, 2020 ~1:15 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Take a deep breath. Exhale. Breathe again. Exhale. I have arrived to initiate you into the ways of the Masters, the Great White Brotherhood, without regard to race or gender but in regards to purity of light.

See a single flame from a single candle before you. Watch the flame flicker back and forth. Notice the area surrounding the light. See all of the ascended masters circled around you. Pick up the candle and turn slowly, rotating from left to right. Notice the differing lights and colors emanating from each Master. Notice how deep the rows of masters are, for they are many in number.

Take my hand. I offer you membership into the Brotherhood of Light and I introduce you to those who are gathered.

"May I introduce our newest member, one who has overcome all things and who is victorious in marrying her divinity with her form."

Notice the spectacle of light and the array of sounds. Notice the voices of angels. Notice the presence of Jesus and Mother Mary, those who are the most high, welcoming you into our midst.

This is the beginning.

Namaste, St. Germain"

End Time: 1:33 p.m.

Returning to the Light while in form ...

Sunday, December 20, 2020 ~ 6:44 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Walk with me now. Let me show you the earth. Look at the lights, the movement, the forms. Notice the same light energy emanating from some of the forms that you saw at the initiation. Notice that your form is one of these. Know that the decision to return to light energy while still in form was a decision you made long ago and over time it grew to be pure, pure love, pure power.

Now you are an empowered aspect of God on the earth, one who can move mountains, one whose intention is one with all of the other aspects of Source.

Look again at the earth and see your section of it changing, being altered by your presence. Notice other sections subtle changes, due to the presence of God energy.

This is what we came for. Namaste, St. Germain"

End Time: 6:58 a.m.

Together we join the All of All. This is Unity...

Monday, December 21, 2020 ~ 10:17 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Let's look closely at the energy that is you. It is the same as the energy that is me. It has had different input, different experiences, different amounts of resistance, that's all. It all served its purpose. Being human was a means to an end, not an endpoint in and of itself.

Now, let us begin. Come with me. Let me show you All That Is, this light that is you, this light that is me. This light that is everyone and everything, is all there is. There is nothing else. Everything else is merely a prop on a stage, a prompt, a reminder to remember to grow, to not forget.

These things are part of creation too. They are essential tools to help the light meld into the light. You are me and I am you. Together, we join the All of All. This is unity.

Namaste, St. Germain"

End Time: 10:32 a.m.

There is no beginning or end...

Tuesday, December 22, 2020 ~10:19 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Turn and face me. What do you see? The white light is actually multicolored and each color has minute gradations of different shades. The light from our ethereal bodies has no borders. There is no beginning or end. All other light bodies intersect with ours. This light forms a magnificent web that can hold both light and the absence of light in its embrace.

Now look at each strand of light. It is like a bottomless pool. The light's depth and width are limitless. One strand is not better than any other. They are each powerful contributors to the whole. Each light strand is fed a constant stream of consciousness, of awareness, of all of the creative force.

Light strands of a soul make up a ray and rays form the web, which creates a sun like appearance. Each ray helps support the entirety of the web. The web or collective, is God but only part of God.

God is that magnificent and that vast.

Namaste, St. Germain"

End Time: 10:43 a.m.

The Harvest...

Wednesday, December 23, 2020 ~ 9:56 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Souls are seeds for light growth. Experiences and opportunities where love was expressed in form cause light to expand past the seed stage. As the light expands, the connection to Source expands because the roots grow deeper. As the roots grow deeper, the light's manifestation becomes evident.

Each light strand contains the power of all universes and all of creation. This is God in minuscule form. I Am God as you are God. The I Am energy is God in form.

God energy is love energy because it is benevolent. It only seeks to strengthen itself. Because God is literally everywhere, God energy or love, seeks to expand its influence in a place considered godless. We prefer to think of godless as "not God yet".

God's seeds or souls are very much like fine wine. They have to be kept at certain conditions and aged or matured before they begin to expand. Expansion takes hundreds or thousands of years, depending on the seed.

This is the harvest.

Namaste, St. Germain"

End Time: 10:17 a.m.

We each are a literally moving, breathing part of God...

Wednesday, December 23, 2020 ~ 7:01 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Let us continue. You are fed proper nutrition from our Source, which transmits information on a constant basis. The roots of your Being are continuously maintained and renewed by your conscious awareness and back and forth communication with it. We each are literally a moving, breathing part of God. Each part or aspect of God is entirely unique from another, not separate from, but highly individualized.

Look at me again. There is no other Being that has my exact color strands or rays, which were produced from my application and direct experience in the world and in the spirit realm, where I have held leadership roles. You can think of the light energy of a soul as a bar code. It developed from eons of blood, sweat and tears. As you know, what is true of me is true of you as well.

You have been taught by the world what you are. We have taught you what you truly are and what you are clearly not. I am providing detailed information about the exact nature of a soul, the exact nature of each of you.

Until tomorrow.

Namaste, St. Germain"

End Time: 7:20 p.m.

We lost our Self to find our Self...

Thursday, December 24, 2020 ~ 10:10 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Let us be still. We are not form but form helped strengthen us. Form helped us to discover our true nature, which is beyond thought, beyond ideas, beyond what is known in the physical worlds. Form helped us to develop and maintain relationships with each other, with our Self.

All of our roots are intertwined and immersed in God. The roots blend in together, thus there is only One of us in the many. There is One of us in the multiplicity. We are the individualized expressions of the One Self that represents the One Source of All.

We lost our selves to find our Self and in doing so, we celebrate everything that brought us to this point, where there are no more questions, just a deep knowing of who we are, what we are and Who we represent.

Namaste, St. Germain"

End Time: 10:25 a.m.

Fear only wants to be loved ...

Friday, December 25, 2020 ~ 10:00 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. Today is Christmas Day. We rejoice to see the birth of Christ in so many. We celebrate the second coming, where love embraces all and where love conquers fear, simply by loving it. Fear only wants to be loved and with so many Christs across the land, love will be able to accomplish this like never before.

We celebrate and honor God on Christmas Day because God in form is the Christ. We embrace God's love in all of its forms on this sacred day and we recommit to our new shared identity as the Christ Collective, a mighty force, with only love as our gift.

Love Beyond Words, Jesus"

End Time: 10:16 a.m.

A bigger and stronger Christ Collective...

Saturday, December 26, 2020 ~ 10:09 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Mother Mary. My children, please gather to hear my message today. Please quiet your minds and receive my words with an open heart.

I wish to elaborate on Jesus' words from yesterday, holy Christmas Day. Now that we have celebrated our heritage, the birth of Christ, we celebrate the second coming of Christ, the widespread extension of God into form. We want every man, woman and child to have available the wisdom we seek to impart about their true identity. We can't make them taste it but we can have beautiful bakeries scattered all over the world, with lovely pastries in the windows, enticing those who walk by to come inside and try free samples.

This is the year of application. In one year's time, we will have a bigger and stronger Christ Collective than ever before. Mark my words, dear ones. We reflect commitment, grit and determination.

Until tomorrow, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 10:22 a.m.

Thank you, dear God for healing the separation between the physical and the non-physical.

Sunday, December 27, 2020 ~ 9:58 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Mother Mary. Let us greet this day with a prayer.

Thank you, dear God. Thank you for this day, this holy Sunday, a day of rest.

Thank you for reuniting our family. Those of us in the spirit realm now have union with souls in the physical realm.

We are welcome in their lives and in their homes.

Our inspiration is followed up on and we are able to create miracles as a way of life, as a new way of change on the earth.

Thank you, dear God for healing the separation between the physical and the non-physical.

For this miracle, we are eternally grateful.

With love that is Divine, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 10:08 a.m.

Come over to me. Come a little bit closer.

Monday, December 28, 2020 ~ 10:00 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Mother Mary. Come over to me. Come a little bit closer. This closeness is what I have missed. You see, I am not a character in a story or a book. I AM a living soul, who has been separated from her family members for long, painfully long periods of time and now you are all coming back to me. I want to relish this moment and acknowledge how magnificent it really is.

I have my family back and more members of our family are rejoining union as we speak. We in the spirit realm are able to see things that your souls are blind to. So, in union and relationship, we have a perfect triad of disembodied soul leadership, influencing fully awakened embodied souls, influencing newly awakening embodied souls. This powerful chain will bring everyone home to me, eventually.

Until then, I have many of my missing family members back and for that, I am eternally grateful.

Until tomorrow.

With tears of joy, Love, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 10:12 a.m.

Let us re-gather...

Wednesday, December 30, 2020 ~ 9:00 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Mother Mary. Let us re-gather. I enjoy being the elder statesman, passing along words of wisdom to the next generations of Christ Consciousness.

I am a major figure in some of the world's religions and a minor figure in others. In still others, I am completely absent and my role and contribution were not acknowledged at all. This said, what the world and religion thinks they know about me and the truth of my Being are widely divergent.

I did give physical birth to a very celebrated and misunderstood son but what I really was, was someone who gave birth to this energy, to my own soul. It took root and opened up, eventually consuming my own ideas about myself. I AM the mother of Christ Consciousness and my son, Jesus, was born with a fully active soul. I was able to mother in both ways.

Our message was largely misunderstood. However, it was understood by some. They did everything in their power to bury our message of love underneath layers and layers of religion that made Jesus and me special and worthy of worship. This wasn't our message at all. Our message was that Christ or God was in every one of us, not just us.

This true message has taken two thousand years to finally be revealed in different forms. What is true of me is true of each of us. We are souls of God who have awakened to our shared divinity and will change the world one soul at a time, once and for all.

Until tomorrow.

Love and many blessings, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 9:21 a.m.

Is being a follower of anything love?

Thursday, December 31, 2020 ~ 9:00 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Mother Mary. Let us commune. We all have our journeys to successfully complete. We complete them in both realms, the physical and the spiritual. Part of my own journey is being witness to the widespread repression of the truth, of love and freedom. I saw the fear with my own eyes when Jesus spoke the simple truth.

From this side of the veil, I saw this same fear of love deepen and widen. The teachings became so convoluted that they were hardly recognizable at all. There were all of these good hearted people who had become followers and devotees of a group of man made thoughts, not divine truth.

I ask you this dear ones, is being a follower of anything love? Is it freeing or enslaving? This is always the question to ask about absolutely everything.

So, witnessing what transpired after my departure was very difficult and disheartening for me. I have spoken about the loss that I felt. Let me explain this in a deeper and more meaningful way. I could not communicate with my own children, my own sisters and brothers. The channels were closed. Some of them prayed to me. I heard these prayers but I knew that there wasn't a real exchange, a back and forth dialog among equals, a real understanding of who and what I was. I had become an idealized idol. I wasn't seen in my truth, in our shared truth, but I had to meet people where they were. This continued for millennia.

Until tomorrow, my loves.

Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 9:19 a.m.

Fear has no power over us...

Friday, January 1, 2021

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Mother Mary. Let us greet the new year of 2021 with a collective smile. We will usher in a wave of love like never before. Fear has no power over us.

Let us pray.

Dear God, know that all mature souls on the earth at this time are ready and willing to serve your loving guidance. We will bless everyone in our path and will say and do the perfect thing to help another soul to blossom and flower. Amen.

I have seen the many beautiful photographs in your homes. I know that you yourselves are in many of them. They are snapshots in time, reflections of who you were in that moment, on that particular day. That's all they are, small memories. You are each a mighty and magnificent presence, not an image. Just as I am not an image, but presence.

When people get past images and get to know the real me and the real you, they have tapped into the presence of God through differentiation and individualization. This is where heart to heart union and relationship is born.

Until tomorrow, my loves. Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End time: 9:21 a.m.

Know the truth about yourselves...

Saturday, January 2, 2021 ~ 9:38 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Mother Mary. Blessed ones, know the truth about yourselves. You are not an image. You are not a job. You are not what you like and what you don't. You are not a collector of good experiences and painful ones. You are not a body. You are not an age. You are not a sex. You are not a character in a play.

All of these things have helped you to hone in on who you really are, a divine essence, an aspect of God who has come to the earth to bless others and eventually help them to reach the same realization.

This is your truth, my truth, all of our ultimate truths. Blessed be.

Love, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 9:47 a.m.

It is time for a collective return to honoring our souls...

Sunday, January 3, 2021 ~ 9:03 am

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. Today is Sunday, the first one of the new year. May I suggest a return to the holy celebration of a weekly Sabbath. May today be a time to disconnect from devices and reconnect with your own soul, through stillness, meditative thought, the cessation of the chattering brain and union with the seen and unseen aspects of God.

Allow each Sabbath to unfold as it may but consciously set limits on how involved you will be in this unfolding. A Sabbath can be on any day of the week. Many celebrate it on Saturday. The name of the day does not matter in the slightest. What matters is a collective return to honoring our own souls, in concert with all that is God, on a weekly basis.

Make your Sabbath a celebration of how far you have come by making time for stillness and the recharging that it is sure to bring.

Blessed be.

With a love that is greater than anything in the physical world, Jesus, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 9:17 a.m.

Today I will serve love in whatever manner, thought or deed, that the call for love takes.

Monday, January 4, 2021 ~ 8:13 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Good day to each of you, my loves. It is I, Mother Mary. I have an assignment for those with an open mind and an open heart.

Before you start each day, spend time in communion with us. Fill yourself with light and set this intention: today I will serve love in whatever manner, thought or deed, that the call for love takes.

The perfect opportunities will present themselves to you for your magical blessing and response, if needed. If you will each make this your top priority, then the manifestation of the new earth will be that much closer.

Bless you each for your attention and willingness to serve.

With divine love, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 8:24 a.m.

Make giving love your top priority...

Tuesday, January 5, 2021 ~ 6:00 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. How did you do on the assignment Mother Mary gave you yesterday? Sometimes giving love is pretty easy and sometimes it is quite difficult, isn't it? Today is a new day, a fresh start.

Take up the challenge and make giving love your top priority today and everyday. You will know you were successful when you feel happy and energized to keep going, to keep blessing, to keep doing for others. Your sisters and brothers can use a smile and an extra helping hand. Why not give it a try? You might find that you were what was needed at just the right moment.

Thank you for your attention and willingness.

Love like no other, Jesus, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 6:13 a.m.

Unity - We are one with each other and with God.

Wednesday, January 6, 2021 ~ 5:58 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. Today, I wish to speak to you each about unity. At the soul level, unity is all we know. We are one with each other and with God.

When we gaze out into the world of ideas, we see conflict based on identity, false identity. Our very powerful blessings encourage choosing love over fear or choosing soul over false identification with the mind/body vehicle.

This is how we support the new earth in its infancy, through union.

Love and wisdom, Jesus, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 6:09 a.m.

Belief is extremely powerful...

Thursday, January 7, 2021 ~ 6:23 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. As tragic as yesterday's events in the United States capital of Washington, DC were, they are excellent talking points for me to use to illustrate what I have talked about for a very long time. Belief is extremely powerful. When an individual buys into a belief that they read about, hear about on the radio or watch on TV, the belief gets bigger. This is how beliefs spread.

Some beliefs are not dangerous, but the ones that played out yesterday were dangerous and were due to deliberate manipulation of large groups of people, who each had their own sets of grievances. Their belief that there is a conspiratorial group of people who are out to deprive them of their rights, caused the kettle to boil over. Humans become irrational when their beliefs are even questioned.

Like attracts like means that a lone, aggrieved individual will both attract and be attracted to other aggrieved individuals, who then form large groups and small subsets, further cementing their grievances.

What happened yesterday was a case in point when fear rules the human mind and behavior.

Love and power, Jesus, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 6:42 a.m.

We have the power to change this world...

Friday, January 8, 2021 6:19 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. Let us stay with the assault on the U.S. Capitol Building as a case study on how the maturity of soul can affect thoughts and behavior.

There were those who were called to drive or fly to Washington DC and didn't. They didn't think it was the right thing to do. There were those who gathered to hear the President's speech but did not go past the barriers to the steps of the building. There were those who went past the barriers but stayed on the steps. Then there were those who entered the building, after force was used. In all of these examples, soul maturity played a significant role.

Then, there were the heartfelt prayers of love and peace sent by those who were watching events unfold on TV. These helped this situation from getting even worse because those who were able to listen, heard love's viewpoint.

We have much to do and together, we have the power to change this world into one that only reflects our true nature, which is love.

Love and Power, Jesus, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 6:35 a.m.

Make today a day of love in your section of the world.

Saturday, January 9, 2021 ~ 7:35 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Hello everyone. This is Helen. Jesus has spoken to you in recent days about ideas, belief and the influence of the soul. There has been a deliberate effort to tell large groups of people exactly what they want to hear instead of what is factual, all for political gain and to control these captive minds. It is fear based ego identity, pure and simple. Many religious people have joined this cause to fight for God and what is right in their eyes. Even Jesus has been brought into the conflict.

Everyone who has read A Course in Miracles knows that all of this is simply made up and made real in the minds of those who have built an identity around these false ideas. God and Jesus are not involved in politics or in any conflict. They only represent unconditional love.

Love cannot be destroyed or hurt in any way, shape or form. Love doesn't need to be defended as nothing can offend it. Love is the only true thing here.

Identifying as love is the only true identification needed for complete freedom to create more love. Love is unlimited. Human ideas, concepts and identifications are all limited in their scope and sequence. Therefore, they are not love yet. All things will reflect love one day.

Make today a day of love in your section of the world.

Until tomorrow, Love, Helen"

End Time: 7:57 a.m.

Take a day to honor your soul ...

Sunday, January 10, 2021 ~ 8:13 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Good morning, everyone. It is I, Mother Mary. For those of you who are willing and able, try to carve out at least a section of today, if not the whole day, to honor your soul. Disconnect from media whenever possible, and reconnect with your own soul and our souls through union. Have a weekly Sabbath day when you rest from the world and all of its craziness. Let this be a sacred time of the week that is all about the real YOU.

Our sister, Helen, is with me now and she would like to share a few words with you at this time."

"Hello everyone. This is Helen. I second Mother Mary's suggestion. Jesus taught you many things about your true identity, which I conveyed to you through A Course in Miracles.

Now, my main job is to encourage you to take care of your true Selves. This should be throughout each day. Taking an entire day on a weekly basis, in addition to daily time the other six days per week, seems more than appropriate, given the times you live in."

With great and powerful love, Mother Mary & Helen"

End Time: 8:28 a.m.

See the potential...

Monday, January 11, 2021 ~ 6:44 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Hello everyone. This is Helen. My message for today is about potential. Try to see the potential for Christ Consciousness to spread from a very small group of people to the much wider collective. As messy as things look right now, this potential is still there. The old has to fall away to make room for the new. Grandiosity has to make room for grandeur.

Love, Helen"

End Time: 6:53 a.m.

The truth will set you free ...

Tuesday, January 12, 2021 ~ 9:33 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

The tried and true is breaking down in your society. Of course, what is true in your society may not be actually true, but may have been reliable. Humans confuse the two.

What we wish to speak about today is confidence about the truth. It is always true. You can rely on it. You can trust in it. There are few things in the world that truly meet this mark. When you look out past your gates, you will see deterioration of all kinds of things: the economy, life in general due to the pandemic, democratic norms and racial strife.

Please try to remember that if things always stayed the same in the world, there wouldn't be much room for even the idea of the type of radical change we are suggesting, which is a change in identity from being a person to being an aspect of God who has a body/mind vehicle.

This type of change will usher in a type and amount of peace and love that has only been dreamt about in the imaginations of the few who have dared to be so bold to even consider the possibility.

Don't allow yourselves to get dismayed. No matter what is happening in the collective, know that the truth will always set you free. You can count on it.

In admiration of your bravery, Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 9:54 a.m.

Let us rid ourselves of worry today.

Wednesday, January 13, 2021 ~ 8:17 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Mother Mary. Let us rid ourselves of worry today. Let it be known that it will no longer be welcome in our lives. Instead of worrying if that bill will be paid, trust that it will. Instead of worrying about that relationship that has seen its fair share of bumps in the road, trust that the relationship will be healed, in its own way and within its own time frame.

Instead of worrying about all of the myriad of "what if's" in life on earth, trust that what is needed will always show up in just the perfect way.

Please refrain from judging what shows up. Accept it as it is. Welcome it. Embrace it, even if it isn't what you ordered. We don't really control how life goes, or God's will, even if we think that we do. The human mind can trick us in this way.

Our job is to be in sync with life and to be party to its wonderful benevolence.

God's Speed.

Love, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ."

End Time: 8:30 a.m.

Let's count our blessings today.

Thursday, January 14, 2021 ~ 9:55 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. Let's count our blessings today. There is so much to be grateful for.

I am grateful to each of you for your service, during an especially turbulent time in human history. Keep smiling and take things one step at a time. Let us know how we can support you on your journey.

With great love, Jesus"

End Time: 10:01 a.m.

You are a blessing...

Friday, January 15, 2021 ~ 8:29 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. Let us put all of the pieces together today. I have asked you to practice gratitude for all of your many blessings. Now, I want you to really understand deeply that you are a blessing. You are one wonderful, beautifully wrapped blessing. You aren't one of the many lost souls wandering around, wondering who and what they are. You know who and what you are. You have come home through union and now, you finally know and understand deeply what your mission here is, which is to be the truth for all to see and to be the blessing that others have longed for.

Once someone discovers the gift that you are, they will see that you are layers upon layers of pure, unadulterated love that never run out. They just grow in scope and magnitude.

Be proud of who you have become.

Love and wisdom, Jesus, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 8:43 a.m.

Seize the day...

Saturday, January 16, 2021 ~ 8:33 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Seize the day. Make it unlike any other. Allow it to be its own creation. Respond to those little nudges that life provides. Give that old friend you haven't heard from a call. Write an old fashioned note to that certain someone. Won't they be thrilled to open up their mailbox and see it? Give a gift for absolutely no reason at all. Give the gift of yourself because as Jesus explained yesterday, you are a gift, who is in relationship to everyone and everything. You are a blessing and not a curse. You will certainly be welcomed in any encounter because the world has been waiting for you.

With great love and admiration, Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 8:48 a.m.

This is the second coming...

Sunday, January 17, 2021 ~ 9:28 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. The soul known as St. Germain, who also played the role of Joseph, my father, is with me now as is Mother Mary. Although we are each characters in religion and holiday themed plays, we are very much real entities, as many of you who have strong relationships with us can attest to. Our jobs are to foster and support divinity in form, through soul development.

We wish to take parts of the upcoming weeks to reintroduce ourselves to both groups, those who are familiar with us and who have a relationship with us, as well as those who may not come from a Judeo-Christian background.

This is the second coming, the return of Christ to form and this is the project we work tirelessly on, one soul at a time. We each awakened in form during our time on the earth. Now it is each of your turns to follow in our footsteps, whether that be to carry on with something that began long ago or simply to take your first steps on this path.

We very much wish to be your mentors and look forward to you getting to know us a little bit better, as we are very much a team.

Until tomorrow. With great and magnificent love, Jesus, St. Germain and Mother Mary"

End Time: 9:44 a.m.

Becoming Christ Consciousness is a difficult and lengthy process.

Monday, January 18, 2021 ~ 8:11 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Mother Mary. I send greetings to you each on this fine day.

As those of you who have female bodies well know, we can choose to be mothers and give physical birth to children, but we can do much, much more. It is a chosen aspect and is an amazing responsibility of course, but I am much more than being a mother in the physical sense.

You can also think of me as being the mother of divine energy, Christ Consciousness, because I gave birth to that also in a very real way, and then learned how to become one with it more and more over time, as each of you have done.

While allowing my energy to refocus as divine, my small human self had to learn to move out of the way and stop obstructing the process. Obstructing is one thing the ego is guite good at. Becoming Christ Consciousness is a difficult and lengthy process.

My life as Mary, mother of Jesus, became all about expressing this mysterious Divine Feminine quality in form. Then, after leaving my earthly cocoon of a body, continuing to do so in new and magical ways.

Just like many women on earth have families, raise children and work outside of the home to provide resources, I do many of these same types of things from this side of the veil.

You are each my spiritual children in a way and my sisters and brothers in another way. I want to continue to strengthen my relationships with each one of you. I want you to think of me as "one of my friends in high places" (smile).

I love each of you more than you know, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 8:31 a.m.

Not consciously aware of the plan...

Tuesday, January 19, 2021 ~ 8:15 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Good day to all. It is I, St. Germain. When I played the role of Jesus' father, Joseph. I was not consciously aware of the plan involving our three souls. I was very much a typical man of that day and time period.

My wife, Mother Mary, was a positive influence on me and helped me to see the questioning Jesus was involved in, in a positive light. My humanity wanted to blame myself for not being a good enough father to keep him in line, to get him to conform more and possibly suffer less because if it.

And yet, I saw that there was something very unique and special about both Jesus and Mary. I just didn't know that their divine qualities were in me as well!

Until tomorrow, Love and admiration, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 8:27 a.m.

Don't get discouraged...

Wednesday, January 20, 2021 ~ 8:15 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Good day to you each on this amazing day, Inauguration Day in America, a formal day for ushering in the newness of hope, as each and every day should be. It is I, the one known as St. Germain/Joseph.

Living a life of love is certainly not easy because it goes against the grain of your programming, but it is simple, whereas the programming or ego is quite complicated, isn't it?

It was the same with me during my life as Joseph. Making those moment to moment decisions to choose love seemed easier for Mother Mary and Jesus. It seemed more natural and it became more natural for me the more I did it. The more I disconnected from my ideas about who and what I thought I was and the more I remembered the truth about my identity, our shared identity, the easier living a life of love, of service, was for me.

I had to get out of my own way, just like each of you have done and must continue to do. I had to lose myself to find myself.

Don't get discouraged. If you forget who you truly are, choose to remember in the very next moment. It's simple but it requires a bit of discipline, doesn't it?

Jesus will talk to you tomorrow.

Love and many blessings to you each on this glorious day! St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 8:29 a.m.

Make your life experience here count...

Thursday, January 21, 2021 ~ 7:52 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. Make your life experience here count by being your Divine Self and not the character. The world has had its fill of characters. It seems that everyone wants adulation. Everyone wants to be on their own "reality" show. We need to cancel the "reality" show and start filming real reality shows where all of the mind/bodies reflect pure, unadulterated, non-judgemental love.

My life as Jesus was not accurately recorded but if it had been, it would be known that I was a walking, talking, breathing form of love; teaching or attempting to teach those who would listen, to question their beliefs and conditioning and find their true selves, their freedom, underneath the dictates of the church, society, and their own minds.

This is why we have been working so hard with each of you. We need you to follow in our footsteps, with our support through union. This is a reality show we want to watch!

Love and power, Jesus, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 8:05 a.m.

Use your humanity for good ...

Friday, January 22, 2021 ~ 8:44 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, St. Germain/Joseph. We know what being human is like. We remember quite well. We aren't suggesting that you deny your humanity. We are, however, suggesting that you embrace your human qualities and foibles, while enhancing them with your divine quality of love. This is what we accomplished during our times on the earth and we expect nothing less from each of you now.

Put the brakes on reacting, judging and condemning and put the gas on blessing. Use your humanity for good. You have a powerful team of nonphysical helpers on your side, as did we when we were in form.

This is the new way, a new approach, a new expression of being humanly Divine.

Carry on with love and mastery, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 8:56 a.m.

Love like never before...

Saturday, January 23, 2021 ~ 7:32 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Love like never before. Show gratitude for the smallest details that make your life so much easier. Dishwashers, washers, dryers and refrigerators are all amazing. It wasn't that long ago that everyone had to do without all of these things. Physical life was that much harder. These are all examples of the little miracles that surround you.

Modern conveniences support you so you can have more time for spiritual development. Have you ever thought about that? Ordinary day to day existence was so difficult and so time consuming, for so long, that there wasn't much time for spiritual reading, quiet walks or silent meditation.

Make time for your soul today and show gratitude for all of the amazing and wonderful things in your life that make it easier, enabling you to focus on what is really important: love.

Love and blessings, Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 7:47 a.m.

It is so wonderful to connect with each of

уоп...

Sunday, January 24, 2021 ~ 8:39 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. We have reached a milestone today and celebrate the century mark for providing these messages to support unity between the seen and unseen realms.

I can speak for our whole team in the spiritual dimension when I say that this experience has been nothing short of extraordinary. It is so wonderful to connect with each one of you in this way, which has turned into daily communion between elder guides and mature souls, who are expressing love instead of fear, more and more, with each passing day.

How wonderful it is that we celebrate the one hundred mark on a Sunday, a day of replenishment! As long as this scribe is willing and able (and we think he is), then you can count on us being in your lives in this way, for a long time to come.

Here's to celebrating our next milestone.

Love and blessings, Jesus"

(on behalf of Mother Mary, St. Germain/Joseph, Cadre of Souls, Helen, Bill and Archangel Michael)

End Time: 8:52 a.m.

We are privileged in our knowing... (a Prayer)

Monday, January 25, 2021 ~ 8:13 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Mother Mary. Let us start our next "century" of messages with a prayer.

Dear heavenly Father/Mother/Source of All,

It is our great privilege to serve you during these times of great uncertainty. While the world scrambles for answers to all of life's mysteries and situations that don't seem to have any answers, we are privileged to be in our knowing. We have faith in your plan to turn away from fear and toward love.

With your help, all of your non-physical and physical servants alike can light the way for others to follow in our footsteps. We know who we are and what we are, which are aspects and reflections of you. For this freedom, we are most grateful.

Love and blessings, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 8:22 a.m.

We are each much greater than our

containers...

Tuesday, January 26, 2021 ~ 9:09 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Hello everyone. This is Bill. It has been a good while since I have been able to speak to everyone. This is a popular channel and I've had to wait until it was my turn.

My topic for today is truth. Helen and I felt very deeply that truth was being revealed to us to then further disseminate into the world. We were very grateful to receive something that felt like truth in a world where truth is concealed and everyone wanders around trying to find it but can't.

I know that it must be very strange to read a message from someone who "died" a long time ago, but this is part of the plain truth. There is no death. There is always more. Life continues after the body and character are put to rest.

Here's another part of the truth; you are not a body. I'm proving that to you now by talking to you. Being Bill was an experience and a good one at that. I learned a great deal, but it was only part of who I was.

We are each much greater than our containers. I leave you with this thought to remember today, as you go about all of your activities.

Keep going! Love, Bill"

End Time: 9:24 a.m.

Let us welcome the unknown today...

Wednesday, January 27, 2021 ~ 8:24 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. Let us welcome the unknown today and every day thereafter. We really don't know what is in store for us as we move forward in time and we never really have. We hoped, wished and protected against but we've never really said, "I AM here" to life and whatever it may bring.

Let's start trusting that life will always bring us blessings, no matter what form they come in and even if they don't look like blessings to our eyes.

Did you know that even disasters large and small can have many blessings embedded inside them?

Life is going to go the way it needs to go so you may as well relax and just have the attitude of "I AM here to serve love in whatever way may be needed from me." This is what the universe needs from each of you.

Love and blessings, Jesus, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 8:35 a.m.

Many can't receive or respond to our loving inspiration...

Thursday, January 28, 2021 ~ 9:17 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Mother Mary. So many of your brothers and sisters are so busy with daily activities and their own thoughts that they aren't available to us. They can't receive or respond to our loving inspiration.

This is why we celebrate the homecoming of each of you. Together, we form a powerful entity that is responsive to love. God now has a fully functioning body of souls to do her work on the earth.

Thank you for being a part of this mighty body of God!

Love and blessings, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 9:26 a.m.

Try to remember that you, my loves, are aspects of God...

Friday, January 29, 2021 ~8:03 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, Mother Mary. I want to take this time today to elaborate on my message from yesterday. Jesus' teachings have focused on your true identity. I added another layer.

You are the holy spirit, the elevated self of form, a mature soul. Through union, this has a new meaning. Because you are this, then now you function differently in form because you literally are the body of God, doing God's work in your area of the world.

Identity is one thing. Function is another. Responding to calls for love means that God is responding to calls for love. It does not mean that this separate entity is doing something on behalf of God. No, it is God doing the responsive action.

We will explore this topic much more in upcoming messages. As you go about your day, try to remember that you, my loves, are aspects of God, not separate contract employees.

I know it is hard but we will get there.

Love and blessings, "Professor" (smile) Mother Mary"

End Time: 8:18 a.m.

God is now walking the earth...

Saturday, January 30, 2021 ~ 8:39 a.m.

"Dear Brethren,

Good Morning! It is I, Archangel Michael. One thing that these messages are proving to you is that you do retain your sense of individuality when you leave the physical realm. Each of us is a little different from each other and we each serve God in our own unique ways.

On the earth, individuality is typically used to serve the ego but in the non-physical, spiritual realm, individuality is used to serve God's love.

Well, that's how it used to be. That's how it has been since the beginning of time, but no more.

God has literally become each of you due to the strength of your souls, your holy and divine spirits. God is now walking the earth. She is inside the supermarket. She is riding her bike. He is running through the park. He is cooking dinner and while God is doing these things, God is being a secret undercover agent, doing what God does best, extending love and blessings into the world.

Please let the gravity of what you have each done and allowed to happen to sink in. The many years of study and thoughtful attempts to allow your soul to move to the front burner have resulted in this beautiful sight.

Your soul has become you and a soul is part of God so this means that God has become you, like Mother Mary has spoken of the past two days.

Welcome to paradise.

Love unlimited, Archangel Michael"

End Time: 9:01 a.m.

You don't have a soul. You are a soul...

Saturday, January 30, 2021 ~ 7:20 p.m.

"Dear Brethren,

It is I, the one known as Jesus. Let's connect the dots. In the beginning of our outreach during modern times on earth, we taught about the concept of there being a holy spirit that helped you to communicate with God. Then we taught that you were a holy spirit and not a person with an ego and an ever-changing identity.

Some experienced feeling like they were a soul connected with God through union and a lowly human, fluctuating back and forth, at different times.

In A Journey into the Unknown, we encourage full time identification as soul. You don't have a soul. You are a soul. Now, we are just taking one more small step.

Because you are a soul, you are part of God. What you feel, do and say, God is feeling, doing and saying. God has consumed your old, limited and limiting ideas about yourself and has literally become you. God has your name, your address and your history.

What is true of you is true of everyone else. The only difference between you and someone else might be that they don't know who they really are yet. They don't know that they are an eternal soul and not a person. They don't know that they are part of God, yet.

They will. Everyone will, but for now, those who have allowed the shift in identity to happen as the first wave, will cause a tsunami and others will respond and follow. Love is that powerful and that attractive.

Love and blessings, Jesus, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 7:40 p.m.

You have a function as a part of God...

Sunday, January 31, 2021 ~ 7:55 a.m.

"Good Morning children of God. It is I, Mother Mary. Following up on last night's message from Jesus, God is always extending herself, turning things that aren't God yet into God.

We all started out as tiny soul seedlings and became full fledged contributing members of God's team over a long period of time. God is very much a collective, a family. It is a topic that is too vast to even grasp intellectually.

We just want you to know that you have a function as part of God. The switch has been turned on and you have a role to play. You are connected to all of the other aspects of God but will never know or build relationship with most of the other organs.

God's heart works on behalf of God's muscles but may never know all of the intricacies involved in the muscles. It just trusts that the muscles and all aspects of God are being richly provided for with a stellar and well circulating heart.

Together, our souls form the body of God. We don't have to worry about a thing. Our souls are informed when our services are required.

So, God doesn't have a bunch of souls running around. God is the collective of souls and each soul has a part in the function of the whole. Your part is different from my part but not less than and my part is not greater than. All parts are magnificently important.

Love and blessings on this Sabbath Day, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 8:13 a.m.

You are here to work on Gods behalf because you are part of God...

Sunday, January 31, 2021 ~ 8:15 a.m.

"Good Morning, everyone. This is Helen. So, now you know that God isn't out there somewhere but God is everywhere. You know who you are, which is a mature soul. You know what you are, which is a creation of God. Now you know the why.

You are here to work on God's behalf because you are part of God. You can think of God as being your family name, your last name. Mine was Schucman. What I did reflected on my family. So it us with all of us in the God family.

Being a member of the God family is like being a member of a royal family but much better. It's like that times infinity. Love and joy fuel everything God does. There should be a sense of ease with everything we do in the family of God because we are constantly informed and prompted.

Relax, follow the cues, keep your thought garden pristine and enjoy being a member of a royal family whose only purpose is to serve.

Love, Helen, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 8:28 a.m.

The grand purpose is to extend love...

Sunday, January 31, 2021 ~ 4:00 p.m.

"Hello everyone. This is Bill. I like knowing that I was created by God for a purpose and that I fulfill that purpose when I remember that I am part of God. It makes everything easier.

I feel this sense of purpose and connection in my relationships with other entities and with each of you. We don't tend to forget here in the spirit realm, but we know that humans can be quite forgetful.

Even during the several years that Helen and I worked on the A Course in Miracles project, we had excitement and enthusiasm for working on something outside of ourselves. That's what unity and relationship with God and with each other are all about: remembering the big picture and the grand purpose, which is to extend love.

Each of you are not solitary beings left to your own whims. You have great purpose as part of the God family. This is how your individuality can really shine.

Carry on, Love, Bill, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 4:14 p.m.

Christ is in everyone but Christ is not yet functional in everyone...

Monday, February 1, 2021 ~ 8:45 a.m.

"Good Morning, everyone. It is I, the one known as Jesus. You may have heard of the term, "body of Christ" before. This term has two meanings. The primary meaning refers to each of your bodies. Your body serves you as a mature soul, therefore it is the body of Christ.

Your body serves you as soul and you as soul serve all seen and unseen souls. Therefore your body is part of a much larger body or collection of souls. This is the second meaning of "body of Christ".

Christ means God in form. Christ is in everyone but Christ is not yet functional in everyone. Everyone who is reading this message is a fully functioning soul or Christ. They mean the same.

Today, I have an assignment for each of you. Practice remembering that your body is home to God and that you are part of God. You are connected to all of the amazing array of God.

The collective body of Christ is growing with each passing day. We thank you for your dedication. Don't forget your homework!

Love and blessings, Jesus, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 9:02 a.m.

It is so exciting to see where we are all headed...

Monday, February 1, 2021 ~ 9:05 a.m.

"Good Morning. It is Helen. It is so exciting to see where we are all headed. We've moved from vague, introductory knowledge to concrete knowledge to practice.

You are each discovering what it is like to be a body of Christ and we are all discovering what it is like to be a functioning collective body of Christ. We are still taking baby steps but we will be walking in no time!

Love, Helen, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 9:11 a.m.

Be happy for absolutely no reason at all...

Monday, February 1, 2021 ~ 3:58 p.m.

"Be happy each and every day. Be happy for absolutely no reason at all. There is no reason not to be. You're in the family of God. St. Germain initiated you, remember? You are consciously aware of who you are, what you are and why you exist (to give love), so no more worrying. We will take it from here. Your solo career is over. Now you're one of us, kid.

With love and passion, Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 4:06 p.m.

We are both a collective body of Christ and individual bodies of Christ...

Tuesday, February 2, 2021 ~ 9:06 a.m.

"It is I, the one known as Jesus. Good morning or good day to you all, depending on your time zone.

I wish to speak today about willingness. Just like you may move your arm, when you consciously decide to either put it in a more comfortable position or to use it for a functional purpose, God sends signals to you that ask for a response.

Follow these and see where they lead. We are both a collective body of Christ and individual bodies of Christ and we are learning to move as one cohesive unit. Learn to trust your inner voice and say yes to it more often. It will never lead you astray. It always leads to more and more joy.

Be willing to allow your life to be different now and to reflect your divinity, your true identity, as part of the divine collective.

In love and wisdom, Jesus, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 9:18 a.m.

You each are Christ, my brothers and

c sisters...

Tuesday, February 2, 2021 ~ 9:22 a.m.

"Hello everyone. This is Bill. Well oiled machines provide the best service. This is what we in the spirit realm accomplish through these messages. We are maintaining our collective Christ body. The love we give is the equivalent to food, water and sunlight to each of you.

We enjoy giving these messages but it isn't exclusively about enjoyment. The messaging is very important to what we are accomplishing on the earth by creating a collective body of Christ. They are a real time lifeline of communication between Christ in one realm and your counterparts in the spirit realm.

You are each Christ, my brothers and sisters. Christ is a complex, multifaceted organism when we join together in unity and relationship.

With much love, Bill, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 9:37 a.m.

Stay true to your true Self ...

Wednesday, February 3, 2021 ~ 8:36 a.m.

"Good Morning, everyone. It is Bill. How did you do with your recent assignment by Jesus? Did you remember who and what you really are? Did you remember that your small identity is only part of your experience here? Did you remember why you're here?

Keep remembering until it's just second nature to you because you, my friends, are part of God. Now, that is something so magnificent that it simply must be celebrated each and every moment of each and every day.

Stay true to your true Self as we learn how to move in unison with our shared Christ Mind, joining our spirits together as the collective body of God.

Keep on keeping on! Love, Bill, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 8:48 a.m.

Holy relationships are permanent and entirely based on love...

Thursday, February 4, 2021 ~ 9:05 a.m.

"Hello everyone. It's Helen. Today I want to briefly talk about connection through union. It is different than what we typically think of as connection. Most everyone has connection through relationships between family members, co-workers and friends. These connections change over time due to stress, change of residence, change of job or just losing touch over the years.

Connections between the created and God or between those in the physical realm and the spiritual realm are permanent and based entirely on love. Time cannot destroy them. Circumstances cannot destroy them. They can only grow and strengthen. These are holy relationships.

Some of you enjoy holy relationships with each other. This is now what we have developed between realms. It is a new layer of holy relationship through union.

This is Union 101.

Love and blessings, Helen, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 9:20 a.m.

The new relationship between the seen and unseen realms is strengthening...

Thursday, February 4, 2021 ~ 9:27 a.m.

"Good Morning, my dear ones. It is I, Mother Mary. Helen just spoke to you about union and relationship and how the new relationship between the seen and unseen realms is strengthening.

God is able to reach more hearts and minds through a strong network of servants. It is like a steel web. This fledgling relationship between realms is required to support the earth's further development, as well as the development of all beings who live on the earth or Gaia.

We are doing this in plain sight, but you won't find us on the news channels. Most are more interested in the scandal of the day than what we are accomplishing.

Thank you for reading these messages and for being a part of the love tsunami.

Love and peace, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 9:39 a.m.

Talk to us. We hear your prayers...

Friday, February 5, 2021 ~ 8:33 a.m.

"Good day to you each. It is I, the one known as Jesus. Let us talk briefly about dedication.

We have dedicated ourselves to each of you as you have to us and in doing so, we have strengthened the One Self, by uniting different parts of the whole, through our relationship with one another.

As Bill has said, this is not unlike an intricate piece of machinery. As Mother Mary has said, we are building a web made with the strength of steel.

Communication is a two way street. How can we help support you as an aspect of the Christ Self?

Talk to us. We hear your prayers. Let's work together to overcome any hurdle that may present itself. Who knew that being happy and carefree could seem to be so hard? (smile)

Love and blessings, Jesus, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 8:49 a.m.

You don't leave the non-physical world entirely when you have a lifetime experience on a world of form ...

Saturday, February 6, 2021 ~ 8:40 a.m.

"Greetings from the place you never really left. It is I, Archangel Michael. As many, if not most of you already know, you don't leave the non-physical world entirely when you have a lifetime experience on a world of form. Part of you is still with us and part of you is involved in a point of focus of being someone specific.

All of us in the spirit realm are incredibly happy all of the time. It is so joyous to be love and to support love in each of our individualized ways. Our project on the earth is to instill it with the same high level of joy and happiness and for this to happen, we need the level of intense fear that is present here to be taken down several notches and finally dissipated.

We all want the earth to reflect true reality, our collective true nature. This sounds like a lofty goal but take a good look in the mirror and look at your own experience. You are more loving, more forgiving, more peaceful since you embarked on this path. If you can do this, then everyone can do it. You are each proof that putting the truth into action really works.

Namaste,

Archangel Michael, leader of legions of angels who are here to support the empowerment of YOU."

End Time: 8:58 a.m.

Have one day a week to honor your Self as soul on that day...

Sunday, February 7, 2021 ~ 8:01 a.m.

"Greetings everyone. It is I, the one known as Jesus. I wish each of you a happy and robust Sabbath day, whether it is today or another day of your choosing.

Have one day out of the week that is different from the other six and honor your Self as soul on that day, with less chores, less electronic stimulation, less business and more silence, more meditation and more heartfelt communication with your help mates in the non-physical world, your physical brothers and sisters in Christ and with God.

It is with great honor that we celebrate the one year anniversary of the beginning of A Journey into the Unknown today. These messages are becoming a big part of the book, which is dedicated to union between the seen and unseen aspects of reality and the assumption of true identity, being an aspect of God on the earth.

We thank everyone involved in Journey for their dedication and commitment to presenting this material to willing hearts and minds.

Our project is one year old now but it is really only beginning. Here's to the start of a very successful year two, dedicated to the application of esoteric spiritual principles.

With great love, on behalf of the entire team, Jesus, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 8:27 a.m.

Find peace and love in whatever presents itself to you...

Monday, February 8, 2021 ~ 9:23 a.m.

"It is I, Mother Mary. Greetings to you each. Let us begin our week by returning to simplicity. Take a deep breath with me. Now another. Now another. Smile. One thing at a time, calmly please. Let the frantic nervousness of rushing around stay in the past. Find peace and love in whatever presents itself to you, whether that be balancing your bank account, washing dishes or un-clogging a toilet. Bring your new way of love to each and everything you do."

Love and blessings, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 9:31 a.m.

Take some time each and every day for YOU...

Monday, February 8, 2021 ~ 9:33 a.m.

"Hello everyone. It's me, Helen. Remember to take some time each and every day for YOU. Sit in a comfortable chair. Put your feet up and rest. Feel your astral body light up and wrap around you in a gentle hug. Have a cup of tea and a snack. Then, when you are ready, let love lead the way. If you are forgetting to smile, you are going way too fast. Slow down and enjoy everything, whether it's easy peasy routine or a small disaster. Let love work its magic, keeping you calm and happy.

With love and encouragement, Helen, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 9:43 a.m.

Love is always speaking...

Tuesday, February 9, 2021 ~ 9:09 a.m.

"Love always has the final word. Love is frequently (and usually) misinterpreted as fear and misunderstood. Know that love is always speaking.

Love is in the most fearful of situations. Love may announce a drastic change of direction for the betterment of all involved. Yet, the mind may misinterpret this and react in a fearful way because the old structure was familiar and comforting.

Remember, everything here is for the growth of the soul and everything is for the best, even if it may not seem so.

Start to see love in the difficult and in the unwelcome. It is easy to see love in a flower and a box of candy but can you see it in life's difficult situations?

This is what we want each of you to become more familiar with: making lemonade out of lemons. Keep love's perspective at all times, even when tempted not to.

With great love, Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 9:23 a.m.

Defy all definitions... Be radically different...

Wednesday, February 10, 2021 ~ 8:51 a.m.

"To begin again, to retry, to go in a completely different direction is available to each of you, 24/7. Let the definitions of how you define yourself stay in the past. Defy all definitions.

Be someone who is a mixture of so many things that typically don't go together, that you can't be categorized. Be radically different. Let your freak flag fly, as they say.

Explore what love has to offer you. You are love after all. Let love show you around your new digs. You are bold and limitless and as a member of the family of God, you are powerful.

May this inspire you each on this fine day.

Love and power go hand in hand, Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 9:00 a.m.

Smile for absolutely no reason at all...

Wednesday, February 10, 2021 ~ 9:02 a.m.

"Good day, everyone. It is I, Mother Mary. I am putting you on notice, my dears. I am watching you today and I want to see a big, beautiful smile on your faces, at least once, but hopefully much more than that.

Smile for absolutely no reason at all. No frowning allowed today, please. You have so much to be happy about. You know the truth! Now, that's something magnificent to smile about!

If you can smile today then you can smile each and every day, even if you're standing in a pile of you know what!

Let's all smile more often, shall we?

Love and amazement, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ."

End Time: 9:10 a.m.

Learn to accept not knowing...

Thursday, February 11, 2021 ~ 10:09 a.m.

"Good day to you all. It is I, the one known as Jesus. As you look back over your life, are there things that you don't understand fully? Why did that happen? Why did this happen the way that it did?

Learn to accept not knowing. The mind always wants to find out the reason why but there is no freedom in wondering. It is a bottomless trap.

Freedom awaits those who embrace not knowing and the rejection of worrying about something that has no remedy. There really isn't a problem. It's just that the mind doesn't like what occurred and wants to make it a problem that has someone or something to blame.

This is your newest assignment. If you find yourself looking for the reasons why from the past, remind yourself that it happened for the betterment of all and let it go. Say to yourself, "I want freedom above all else and there is no freedom in the past. Freedom is here and now."

Love and wisdom, Jesus, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 10:21 a.m.

People are simply afraid of truth...

Friday, February 12, 2021 ~ 8:49 a.m.

"Good morning, everyone. It's Helen. My friends, the rules don't apply to you anymore. This was an undercurrent type of message in Miracles. Things aren't as they seem and they don't mean what we think they mean. There is freedom in detachment from meaning.

Instead of believing that something is always a certain way, change that to "many people believe it to be that way." You are free to believe it or not but true freedom comes with knowing and there are few things in this world that are 100% true, 100% of the time, which is the standard for knowing something is true.

People are simply afraid of truth. It may be unpopular. They may be shunned because of aligning with it. They could lose all of their illusionary support systems: friends, their job, their income. So, fear keeps rules and requirements to conform in place.

What is it that keeps people from their freedom? It's fear of love, fear of being different. When you look out into the world, you can see plenty of evidence of this, but this isn't our focus for today.

Today, I want you to each look within and see where you might be afraid of love, of freedom. Awareness is the first step. Then, align with the now moment. This is where love and freedom live.

Let go of the past and the "you" who lived in it. Keep exploring the new, unlimited YOU, a mature soul, aligned with love and with God.

Love and peace, Helen, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 9:10 a.m.

Let us take a journey... get ready to disembark,..

Saturday, February 13, 2021 ~ 8:48 a.m.

"Good day, everyone. It is I, the one known as Jesus. Pack up your bags and let us take a journey. As we get ready to disembark, leave your bags at the foot of the stairs. You won't need them anymore. They only weigh you down. They are filled with things that no longer serve you.

Now, come with me and let's look at things from a new perspective. It's just you and me. Together, we will take a magnificent journey over the next few days (or longer if we like what we see).

When you return, you won't be the same. You will have transformed into the One Who Knows.

Love and blessings, Jesus"

End Time: 9:01 a.m.

Fasten your seatbelts and keep a clear mind...

Saturday, February 13, 2021 ~ 9:02 a.m.

"Greetings everyone. It is I, St. Germain/Joseph. Before you take your journey with Jesus. Let me remind you to fasten your seat belts and keep a clear mind. The baggage Jesus referred to consisted of thoughts and worries. So, none of those please.

Remember that Mother Mary wants to see you each smile more often, so bring plenty of smiles with you. You also need a good dose of joy but I already know that you have plenty of that and that you know where to get more of it, if you were to run low.

Who knows what you will see in the upcoming days? I wish you well on your journey and look forward to speaking to you upon your return.

With great and magnificent love, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 9:12 a.m.

Take my hand. We will go where few have ventured...

Sunday, February 14, 2021 ~ 9:09 a.m.

"Take my hand. We will go where few have ventured. Let me introduce you to the backstage area. Just like theme parks have hidden areas for employees only, areas you didn't even know existed, the non-physical realm is as close to you as the chair you are sitting in.

Let us walk between worlds. We will step out of the physical world and into the backstage area. There is a lot to explore here. This is the Kingdom of all Majestic Beings. There is only love here, love for each other and love for oneself. There is no resistance to love, so love is able to flourish here, unlike the physical world, which still struggles to allow love to reign supreme.

Now, let's turn around and look at the border between the two worlds or realms. It's not unlike a border between one state and another, between one territory and another. We are looking into the physical realm from the nonphysical realm. There are many things I want to show you.

Let's have a seat and get comfortable. We will use the Christ Mind to take us where we need to go. We will be shown imagery, both still and moving, not unlike your movies and TV shows.

The first stop is to a home in the world in the year 2021. There are two men in one of the rooms. I will not show you their faces. They are both looking out of a window. One of the men is well known in the world and the other one is not.

Until tomorrow, Jesus, your tour guide"

End Time: 9:32 a.m.

You are in very safe hands!

Sunday, February 14, 2021 ~ 9:38 a.m.

"Good Morning, travelers. It is I, Mother Mary. I see that you are all off on an exciting adventure. May I remind you to relax and let Jesus do the navigating? No back seat driving allowed. You are in very safe hands!

Love and wisdom, Mother Mary, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 9:41 a.m.

Souls grow even under the most extreme conditions...

Monday, February 15, 2021 ~ 8:40 a.m.

"You may ask about the existence of chairs in the non-physical world. Our ethereal bodies do not have any weight here. Things like chairs and buildings don't either but they give us a sense of structure and familiarity. Those of us who have materialized like having them in our environments, so we create them.

Now, the man you see on the right appears as a shadow from this vantage point. We can also see his light, his soul, because it never really left us. It is connected to all of our souls. However, during his human lifetime or point of focus, it's as if he's been in suspended animation, or frozen in time. This is why Mother Mary told you that she missed you while you were away.

So, we see his light and his shadow form here. It's the same with the man standing next to him on the left. Both men are characters in human dramas, animated by their true Selves, aspects of God.

Neither of these men or characters has any inkling about their true identity. They both took their roles and ran with them in the opposite direction of love.

We would say that they both got lost in the illusion. Nothing or very little of what they believe is actually true and their behavior and words confirm this.

We are always trying to get their attention, to get them to listen to love's point of view and it has resulted in minimal success.

The man on the right is considered influential because he is famous, so his attitudes and behavior have a fearful impact on others. Fear may as well be cement because that's what it does. It locks in place. It is certainly not more powerful than love but it succeeds in temporarily slowing soul growth.

Souls grow even under the most extreme conditions, even if it is in minute ways. When these two return to us fully, we will pat them each on the back and give them a hug because they both had a difficult time of it.

Next up, a visit into the recent past.

Until tomorrow, Jesus, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 9:10 a.m.

There's a little bit of everyone and everything in each of you ...

Tuesday, February 16, 2021 ~ 9:09 a.m.

"I see you turning around. You want to know what it's like here. I will explain everything and will satisfy your curiosity, all in good time.

For now, let's look straight ahead and see what the Christ Mind will show us next.

You will see a little girl in pigtails, wearing a pink dress. Other children are with her. They are at a performance of some type, a talent show. The little girl that we are focusing on can really sing! She has an absolutely beautiful voice that you can't believe is emanating from her small body. It is big and powerful.

This girl is enjoying life and has big plans for the future. Her soul is having a pretty easy time using the character to demonstrate love through. There are no major obstacles at this time. Her family is supportive and everyone is excited to be around this gifted child.

Tomorrow you will meet her and hear what happened next that made exhibiting love quite difficult, to say the least.

Many readers are wondering who I was referring to in yesterday's example. Here's a question for you. Have you ever run as far away from love as you could get? This is my point, my friends. I want you to see yourselves in the examples I give. There's a little bit of everyone and everything in each of you.

Enjoy your day and we will visit with each other again tomorrow.

Love and joy, Jesus"

End Time: 9:26 a.m.

Hold onto your seats, everyone...

Tuesday, February 16, 2021 ~ 9:29 a.m.

"Good morning, everyone. It is Helen. It is exciting to get a glimpse of life from an entirely different vantage point, isn't it? As humans, we all suffer from tunnel vision but thanks to your mature souls and willingness, you are able to be shown things from a much broader perspective.

Hold onto your seats, everyone. Things are going to get very interesting on your journey with Jesus!

I will talk to you soon!

Love, Helen"

End Time: 9:33 a.m.

There's love in every single song...

Wednesday, February 17, 2021 ~ 8:31 a.m.

"Let's scoot over a bit and make room for another chair. We have a special guest today. She's a queen in all respects, so having her on a throne is most appropriate.

Just like schools in your world have guest speakers from time to time, we will be doing this as well when we take our field trips. May I introduce a very special queen, who is dear to all of our hearts."

"Good morning. Good day to those in different time zones. I'm very much still alive. I don't have to deal with an aging body with all kinds of health conditions. They had me on so many medications. I had trouble keeping up with all of it.

I'm free now. I'm all soul. I'm still all soul. You know what I mean. I can see now all of the times that my character said yes to love. That's what we focus on here. The times when she didn't or more accurately, felt like she couldn't, just don't matter anymore. Only love matters.

People talked about me carrying my purse on stage with me. I had so many bad experiences early on when I didn't get paid after a performance that I felt like I had to take my power back.

It brings me great pleasure to have left so much music for people to enjoy today. There's love in every single song, even the sad ones, even the sassy ones. We all worked hard on them. It was our way of serving love.

Will I go back? I don't know. I'm settled in here and am enjoying myself. I visit with all of my old friends.

I grew up in the church and I had this feeling that there was something true in it. Now that I have my blinders off, I can see that there is something true. I mean, look at me sitting next to Jesus himself! Wow! God is good.

Love to you and your families, Aretha"

End Time: 8:55 a.m.

Love is a creation that can never die...

Thursday, February 18, 2021 ~ 8:49 a.m.

"Let's see what the Christ Mind wants to show us today. You each seem to be enjoying our adventure so let's stay awhile longer. This is one of those trips that you don't want to rush home from.

We see shoppers in a large department store. It's Christmas time and there's a celebrity book signing. A woman has brought her daughter to this event and they are waiting in line to have a book signed and to take a picture with the celebrity. Let's focus on the mother.

She is a beautiful soul. Everyone around her can feel her positive energy. Life hasn't been a picnic for her though. She's had two bouts of cancer and a litany of other difficult things to deal with. Yet, she focuses on love and being the presence of love, even when she doesn't feel like getting out of bed in the morning.

When it's their turn, the mother's daughter is beside herself to get to meet her favorite author. Both mom and daughter have a picture taken together with the celebrity. Let's stop here.

This is everyday love. This is spectacularly regular love. Love is rarely front page news but love is alive and love can never be forgotten. Love is in the small things, the special things and the ordinary things. Love is a creation that can never die. It is always finding new ways to be expressed.

The mother has every reason to not focus on love and yet she knows that love is what carries her from one moment to the next, so she allows it to express through her. Everyone around her benefits from her decision. Let love express through you today. Tomorrow we will turn our chairs around and explore the unseen world.

Love and blessings, Jesus, your Captain"

End Time: 9:19 a.m.

We are raising the bar because it is time to do so...

Friday, February 19, 2021 ~ 8:36 a.m.

"Now turn your chair around slowly. This is a type of command center that we've been inside of. There are portals to access the world stage of the earth, as well as other stages.

This is a very busy place, as you can imagine. We have workers behind the scenes in the lives of each and every being. They are the stars, so to speak, but they can't live their lives there without our unseen support. When they go off stage, it will be their turn to provide support behind the scenes.

I want to bring your attention to the entrance and exit ramps. Souls leave here for their assignments, which have been carefully and meticulously thought out and planned.

Other souls are returning to us from their completed assignments. Some lived full, rich lives and some did not, but our measure of a life well lived is simply this; was love given? The answer is always "yes". No further evaluation is needed.

Because we seek to infuse more love into the world and reduce suffering, doesn't mean that we are in the soul evaluation business because we aren't. We each do the best that we can under the circumstances, end of story.

Now, we are raising the bar because it is time to do so. The wellbeing of the planet itself is in dire straights, due to so many unconscious and unloving characters running around.

The Great Awakening has to spread from just a small number of mature souls to a majority, so that the earth and other projects can reflect our true nature and not reflect resistance to our true nature.

Let's end our field trip tomorrow with a very special guest, shall we?

Love and blessings, Jesus"

End Time: 8:58 a.m.

Love is what carries us through...

Saturday, February 20, 2021 ~ 8:34 a.m.

"We've come to our final day of our first otherworldly journey together. I hope you have seen yourself in the businessman, the mother in the department store and the famous singer.

This is why we talk so much about oneness. We all have more similarities than differences. At a common ground level, our souls pretty much go through the same types of things, but love is what carries us through. It is all that matters in the end. It lives on, while situations and difficulties fade away.

Now, to mark this momentous occasion, I have invited a dear friend to speak to you. I think you will be quite pleased."

"Hello everyone. I wish we had A Journey into the Unknown during my time. That would have been quite helpful. I know you all appreciate it.

My life certainly had its ups and downs. Like Aretha and like everyone really, I did the best that I could at the time. My character liked being famous at first. It was like being shot out of a cannon. Everything happened so fast after my first album came out. There were so many top ten singles on it and lots of demands on my time for TV appearances and concert tours.

A lot has been written about me but basically, over time, I lost my way. It became harder to express unconditional love when my character had so many conditions on doing so and so many crutches to help her to do that (drugs and money).

I too, am happy to have left a lasting legacy for the world to enjoy. Aretha and I both had one of a kind voices. Singing was our gift to the world.

I leave you now with the title to my most famous song, "I Will Always Love You".

Take good care everyone! Love, Whitney"

End Time: 8:56 a.m.

Watch your step. Watch your step...

Sunday, February 21, 2021 ~ 8:30 a.m.

"Watch your step. Watch your step. You can pick up your bags of thoughts and judgements but really, why would you? If you can go without them for a week, then maybe you don't need them after all. Maybe they aren't as critical to your being as you thought?

Welcome home, although the spirit realm is your home too. I trust that you each enjoyed yourselves and found out a little bit about commonality and how we each give love in our own ways. Love lives on. It only grows.

You all look refreshed and replenished. Take a day for rejuvenation and I will meet with the group again tomorrow.

Love is power, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 8:41 a.m.

It's so easy to forget...

Monday, February 22, 2021 ~ 8:37 a.m.

"Good day to you each. It is I, St. Germain/Joseph. Let us begin with a prayer.

'Dear heavenly Father/Mother within us all, please keep your light on strong and bright, so we can remember who and what we are and not forget. It's so easy to forget, but with our invocation for your help, we will remember.

Let it be.'

This is the problem here, isn't it? Forgetting. Everything seems to be designed to pull you into forgetting and away from the confidence of knowing.

Today, let's get in the good habit of asking for help through prayer, through connection. Then, with our intent to succeed at remembering to be the light, we will certainly have success.

Here's to your bright light! Love, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 8:47 a.m.

Each of you are magnificent blessings to your communities...

Tuesday, February 23, 2021 ~ 9:12 a.m.

"Greetings! It is I, the one known as Jesus. Spiritual textbooks are one thing but living a rich, spiritual life based on the principles are another thing altogether.

Thank you for being willing to explore ways to do this. Thank you for reading these messages and for connecting with us throughout the day. Thank you for remembering to not forget. The world is designed in a way that makes forgetting really easy. Thank you for taking things one at a time and for trying to see the content underneath the form.

Each of you are magnificent blessings to your communities. I just wanted to thank each of you for this, personally.

We can't bring love to this world without you. You are that important to our project. Thank you again and bless each of you for being the presence of love, in your own way.

Love, Jesus, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 9:22 a.m.

Please know you can open your heart to me at any time...

Wednesday, February 24, 2021 ~ 8:35 a.m.

"Greetings! It is I, the one known as Jesus. This will be the last time that I speak to the group for a short while.

We have other speakers lined up behind Mother Mary, who will take you on an adventure exploring the world that she sees through her eyes. It is sure to be spectacular and I trust that all of you will both enjoy, as well as learn, from this new journey.

While I am away, please know that you can open your heart to me at any time. I am always available to you and am never too busy to hear from a pioneer in the new way.

Love and blessings, Jesus, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 8:42 a.m.

Everyone is welcome in my home...

Thursday, February 25, 2021 ~ 9:01 a.m.

"It is I, Mother Mary. Good day to all of my charges. Today, we will embark on yet another journey. This one is personal to me and close to my heart.

I will take this opportunity to show you things from my daily life experience. No two days are exactly alike but I have some main responsibilities that I want to show you.

Take my hand and let's embark, shall we? The first thing I want to show you is my home. Have a seat, get comfortable and the Christ Mind will show us around.

Everyone is welcome in my home. It is an oasis of sorts. This is where I have lived for quite some time in earth years. I leave here at the start of our day and return at the end.

We experience time outside of time, so our days are longer than yours. I have everything I need through manifestation. If I need something, I just create it by thinking it so.

My home is filled with angels, who like to be here with me. They create serenity and joy. I also have pets. They too experience physical death only. They are eternal, as are all of God's creations. They are welcome in my home.

Many friends visit me here. I welcome souls who are returning from their missions and comfort those who experience heartache while they were away.

Seeing me surrounded by angels is very soothing to my sisters and brothers. If they are returning from earth, it's very likely that they will need a good rest, so that they can heal. Earth life is very stressful to souls. Tomorrow, we will visit the first of several places I go to do my work of healing, as I am a healer.

Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 9:27 a.m.

Remember to be present... leave your thoughts behind...

Thursday, February 25, 2021 ~ 9:57 a.m.

"Greetings! It is I, St. Germain/Joseph. While you take your journey with Mother Mary, please remember to be present, so you can really experience all that she will show you. Leave your thoughts behind.

Just experience the amazing things that our dear sister wants to share with you. I will talk to you soon.

Love, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 10:01 a.m.

Those who pray and ask for any type of help are responded to...

Friday, February 26, 2021 ~ 8:54 a.m.

"Let us continue. This is a very well organized operation, more so than any Fortune 500 company. I have teams of angels and angel like workers who can be dispatched at a moment's notice.

Those who pray and ask for any type of help, whether it be physical or spiritual, are responded to. They receive the type and amount of support that they are able to receive at the time that they ask.

My specific area of expertise is in healing, both matters of the body and of the heart. Help is dispatched and I receive regular updates of progress. Comfort and acceptance are always the first steps of healing.

We have teams who provide this to souls in form and we have teams who provide higher levels of healing. All healing eventually leads to wholeness, but this can be quite a journey. For those of you who have experienced physical illness, you know how difficult things can be.

My team works in literally every place you can imagine. We are in hospice centers, hospitals of all types, rehabilitation centers, doctor's offices, people's homes and churches to name just a few.

You may have heard of the children who were separated from their parents at the Mexican/U.S. border. These families were following their hearts to attempt to cross and then this tragedy happened.

We are still there, helping to comfort the little ones who don't understand why people can be so mean to them as to take them from their parents. I cry now, just describing this. Tomorrow, we will go in deeper into my work on the earth. I love each of you more than you know. I desperately need your help on the earth to spread our message of love. Thank you for being members of our team.

Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 9:19 a.m.

We take the needs of all souls into consideration...

Saturday, February 27, 2021 ~ 8:24 a.m.

"Come. Let me show you some of the places I frequent in the world. In addition to being in places where healing is needed, I also balance that out by going to places where it is not needed. I have a special place in my heart for children. I love to watch them play and be free, especially after a demanding day of school.

I go to orphanages in war torn areas. We comfort scared children who have suddenly found themselves alone in the world. Something as grave as this is a recipe for bitterness, which can make soul development quite hard.

Praying is a socially acceptable act, especially in religious areas of the world. We encourage children to develop relationships with us in the unseen world. If they pray with their eyes closed, the adults won't think they are crazy. Whereas, if they talk to us openly, those in charge may think that they have imaginary friends or worse yet, are mentally ill.

In our line of work, we have to be aware of the social environment because we take the needs of all souls into consideration. We may be focusing on comforting a small child who just lost his parents, but we are also aware of the level of fear in the adults who are in charge, so it is a careful dance. It is never boring. I am so blessed to be in love and to be in service to my brothers and sisters in the world.

We will continue our journey into my world tomorrow.

Many blessings dear ones! Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 8:44 a.m.

The are all the same ... we are one ...

Saturday, February 27, 2021 ~ 8:44 a.m.

"Good day, all. It is I, St. Germain/Joseph. Disembodied souls and the unseen world will always be mysterious to the human brain, which really isn't designed to be able to perceive and understand these types of things.

What we are doing through A Journey into the Unknown is to make it all a little less mysterious. We want those who experience this living, breathing work to be a little more familiar and comfortable with how life works behind the veil.

We want you each to see that we aren't that different from you at all. It's kind of like that scene in The Wizard of Oz when Dorothy and her friends discover that there really isn't a great and powerful wizard behind the curtain. There is just a common man with some special effects. He's just like them after all and maybe they themselves have more power than they realized.

This is the big take-away my friends. We all have different jobs but we are all the same. We are one.

Love and gratitude, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 9:00 a.m.

Stop and enjoy God's handiwork ...

Sunday, February 28, 2021 ~ 6:27 a.m.

"Believe me when I say how happy I am that each of you have rejoined love and have returned to me. You are each my right hand man or woman on the earth. I can depend on you to do your part in our joint mission. Together, we have accomplished much. Imagine what we can do together in the days to come.

Let's carry on our journey during this day of rest. Nothing too strenuous. Let the Christ Mind take us to one of my favorite places to spend the Sabbath. This is a simple flower shop. Nothing reminds me more of God's love than a flower.

What a magnificent artist God is as to create such a thing of beauty! There are so many different shapes, colors and styles. There really are no two that are exactly alike, even in the same variety. I love the smell of a red rose. I remember it well.

The next time you walk by a flower shop or even a garden of cultivated or wild flowers, stop by and enjoy God's handiwork. It's a good reminder about the beauty within us all.

Until tomorrow, Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 6:43 a.m.

Remember to keep your gardens pruned...

Sunday, February 28, 2021 ~ 6:45 a.m.

"Leave it to Mother Mary to take us to such a magnificent place! This will be a hard act to follow, but it is I, St. Germain/Joseph.

I want to take this opportunity to remind everyone to keep your gardens pruned. Thoughts multiply faster than weeds. Make room for God's beautiful flowers to grow instead.

This is what each of you really are, a beautiful flower. I will leave you with this on this fine day. Remember please.

Love and blessings, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 6:55 a.m.

Stay on top of your feelings...

Monday, March 1, 2021 ~ 8:49 a.m.

"Today, let's shift the focus from places and others. Let's take a look in the mirror and see what is reflected back to us. We see someone who is a little bit of everything, really. You are in everything and everything is in you.

How are you feeling today? Are you troubled about something or are you free from worries? Can you smile freely or would a smile be forced? Is anything from the past bothering you today? If so, you are like an orphan from a war torn part of the world. We've all felt lonely and afraid, many times before.

Stay on top of your feelings and ask us for help to release old misunderstandings. This is how to look in the mirror and have the reflection reflect someone who is free enough to enjoy looking at beautiful flowers in a flower shop, as we did yesterday.

We are with you always, my loves.

Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 9:05 a.m.

Let's have a group prayer...

Monday, March 1, 2021 ~ 9:06 a.m.

"Good day, all. It is I, St. Germain/Joseph. Let's have a group prayer...

'Dear heavenly Father/Mother, Please show us how we can be freer today than yesterday and happier today than yesterday. Please show us how our thoughts and judgements, prevent us from smiling freely.

In the name of Christ, Amen'

Let it be so. Love, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 9:10 a.m.

Be in natural environments...

Tuesday, March 2, 2021 ~ 9:12 a.m.

"Let's go to a special place on this last day of our travels together. This is a forest in southern France. I have an affinity for it. I like to see what animals I can find and what beautiful plants I can discover.

This is where I can be reminded of the harmony that exists in God's creations. It inspires me to keep up my diligent work towards harmony in the human world. I know that we will be successful one day in having the same spirit of cooperation in the human world that exists in the natural kingdom.

Wherever you may be in the world, please start a new practice or continue a long standing practice of being in natural environments. You can walk, ride or just sit on a bench or an old tree stump.

Clear your mind, breathe the fresh air and remember your true identity.

With great love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 9:27 a.m.

Feeling more a part of the natural world ...

Tuesday, March 2, 2021 ~ 9:30 a.m.

"Good day to each of you. It is I, St. Germain/Joseph. I will take over from here and will be giving the messages over the next few days.

Mother Mary is leaving you in a forest, so you will be nice and relaxed and ready for new topics. These will be along the same theme, which is feeling more a part of the natural world and less part of the unnatural one.

Love and majestic blessings, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 9:34 a.m.

Today, let's practice stillness and being nothing...

Wednesday, March 3, 2021 ~ 9:06 a.m.

"Hello to all of my charges on this fine day. It is I, St. Germain/Joseph. Today, let's practice stillness and being nothing. Let all of the ideas in your head be temporarily frozen.

Go outdoors if you can and feel the air against your skin. Feel yourself melting into being nothing in particular. Take a deep breath and exhale into the air. You are in sync with nature just by the simple act of breathing.

Our thoughts make us seem separate from the air and yet, how can we be?

Remember this truth today, my friends.

Love and power, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 9:18 a.m.

A question for you...

Wednesday, March 3, 2021 ~ 9:20 a.m.

"Hello, my loves. It is I, Mother Mary. My message today will be a short one, in the form of a question. Have you ever watched a bird narrowly escape the claws of eagle? It acts completely normal afterwards, as if it hadn't even happened. In this way, the bird can teach us all how to move on and leave even the recent past, in the past, where it belongs.

Much love to each of you, Mother Mary"

End Time: 9:25 a.m.

Close your eyes and melt into thin air...

Thursday, March 4, 2021 ~ 6:45 a.m.

"Greetings! It is I, St. Germain/Joseph. Those of us in the non-physical, spirit realm enjoy being able to move about freely, undetected by human eyes. We practiced this a little bit yesterday.

Close your eyes and melt into thin air. Synchronize your being with the air, simply by breathing.

Today, let's aim to practice this more often for longer periods of time. Use that trick from Harry Potter, where he wraps himself in an invisibility cloak. Make your body and thoughts completely disappear and become one with the air.

Tomorrow, we will add another layer.

Love and blessings! St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 6:57 a.m.

You have lost yourself to find yourself ...

Friday, March 5, 2021 ~ 8:38 a.m.

"Greetings, everyone! It is I, St. Germain/Joseph. Today, when we disappear, or more accurately, disengage from the physical world and our own mortal bodies, let's add a new texture or awareness.

Become one with the life giving and sustaining element of air. Let awareness of your physicality dissipate. Then observe your soul's light, bright and strong, brilliantly shining. This is the real You. This is the intelligence of the universe. This is an aspect of God.

You have lost yourself to find your Self. Now, you are the One Who Knows.

Love, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 8:49 a.m.

St. Germain just revealed the secret of the

universe...

Friday, March 5, 2021 ~ approx. 8:50 a.m.

"Today is a glorious and blessed day. It is I, Mother Mary. St. Germain just revealed the secret of the universe. We are each one individually and collectively the universe, all universes and the intelligence behind them.

You're not just a pretty face, my dears. You are everything. You are love and you are loved. You are a masterful painting that is alive and vibrant. You are one with All That Is.

This bears repeating; You are the One Who Knows.

With tremendous love and blessings, Mother Mary"

End Time: 9:02 a.m.

The trip to revelation is priceless...

Saturday, March 6, 2021 ~ 8:33 a.m.

"Greetings on yet another fine day. It is I, St. Germain/Joseph. We are saddened to inform you that once you become The One Who Knows, then you can't go back to not knowing this crucial truth. I'm just kidding when I say "saddened" because actually, we are elated. We are jumping for joy and filled with gratitude.

We want everyone to discover the king's gold within. The trip to revelation is priceless, both figuratively and literally. No beliefs are required. There's nothing to join. The ultimate truth has been laid bare. There were layers upon layers of things to peel away, which usually takes many years.

You are the Christ Child, reborn with purpose. Now, you can light the way for others to follow.

Namaste, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 8:46 a.m.

Hallelujah!Praise God!The Christ Child is born...

Saturday, March 6, 2021 ~ 8:48 a.m.

"Hallelujah! Praise God! The Christ Child is born. It is I, Mother Mary. St. Germain and I have birthed more Christ children into the world. It is a sight to behold, indeed. Jesus will be most pleased to see what has transpired while he was away.

Love and joy eternal, Mother Mary"

End Time: 8:52 a.m.

Our work is really just beginning...

Sunday, March 7, 2021 ~ 7:12 a.m.

"Greetings! It is I, the one known as Jesus. Much has transpired while I was away. Mother Mary and St. Germain not only took good care of you but brought everyone to home base.

Now you are The Ones Who Know that you are each the Christ Child, a mature soul no longer, but one extremely significant step further. You are Christ and this is worthy of celebration.

A mature soul can be likened to a young adult who is learning to be independent, learning to do laundry and not overdraft his or her bank account. It can still be a little awkward now and then, as you learn the ropes. It is amateur hour. It is faking it until you make it.

Christ is confident. Christ is bold. Christ is certain. Christ doesn't question who or what he is she is. Christ knows for sure with no further information needed.

All messaging from this point forward will address each of you as Christ. We will retire the term 'mature soul' because that phase of development is now complete with each of you. It is still very appropriate for those in the Journey into the Unknown finishing school, however.

Now that there are many full fledged Christs in the world, our work is really just beginning. Everything up until this point was laying the groundwork, building the foundation. Now, the work of building the biggest and tallest building in the world begins.

Please take time today to celebrate this milestone, as it truly is one. They call me Jesus Christ. You are now (your name) Christ. Magnificent!

It is my honor to call you my sister or brother.

Love, and gratitude, Jesus"

End Time: 7:35 a.m.

What does it mean to be Christ?

Monday, March 8, 2021 ~ 8:43 a.m.

"Greetings, fellow Christ Selves! It is I, the one known as Jesus. What does it mean to be Christ? It means that your divinity leads you at all times. I don't have to provide a code of conduct. It would be entirely unnecessary. You will always know what to do and what to say. What not to do and what not to say are simply not issues. Love will never lead you astray.

So, relax. Learn to trust that love will use the body mechanism of you in only the most perfect ways. The reason for this is because when Christ has fully become you, then all of the resistance that had formerly been present, is no longer there. Christ now has full reign in your mind/body vehicle.

I want to clarify one point. Christ has become each of you. You did not become Christ. There wasn't a long, difficult marathon and then you were crowned Christ after passing over the finish line. Although it seems like this is precisely what transpired, let me assure you that this is not the case at all. Christ became you when you finally reached the point when you realized that this was your identity all along. Yes, it was a long and difficult path, but it was more about stripping off layers upon layers upon layers to discover what had been concealed all along. Christ isn't an award. It was yours to begin with. It is your birthright. Christ is a collective identity with individualized expression.

We will explore your new identity further in upcoming days.

With a great and powerful love, Jesus"

End Time: 9:00 a.m.

Christ means God in man... We are each an aspect of God...

Tuesday, March 9, 2021 ~ 8:49 a.m.

"Greetings! It is I, the one known as Jesus Christ. Mother Mary and I were the first to fully embody Christ or more accurately, Christ fully embodied our forms, our mind/body vehicles. The stage was set and the misunderstandings began.

We were the first humans to allow the transformation of Christ taking over our forms, but I was not the one and only Christ. We were both the first but not the only ones, as Christ has been in everyone throughout history and is in everyone today.

Christ means God in man. My work has been to sow seeds about this knowledge, starting in 1976 when A Course in Miracles was released to the public. I used the term 'Holy Spirit' in that book. I used the term 'Elevated Self of Form' in A Course of Love. I used the term 'Mature Soul' in A Journey into the Unknown. The idea was that this isn't something that you have or something that only I am, as Jesus, but is something that you are, that we all are.

To follow me means to follow in my footsteps and allow the transformation to happen to you. It is not about believing in something or believing in my specialness. We are all special. We are each an aspect of God.

The plan has always been for Christ to become not only you, but everyone, and now it is happening. We have a solid group of fully embodied Christ Selves across the globe. You are each a Jesus, Mary or combination of both, in your neck of the woods. Now, we are in position to influence life here like never before. One Christ will not cut it. We need wave after wave after wave to make our mark. With all that has gone into our plan thus far, we are really at the beginning. Everything from the past 45 years has been prep work. There will be a rapid acceleration now that the stage is set for this new phase.

I salute you fellow Christs.

In love and power, Jesus"

End Time: 9:12 a.m.

Let us have a prayer of gratitude...

Wednesday, March 10, 2021 ~ 8:38 a.m.

"Good day to all aspects of the One Christ Self. It is I, the one known as Jesus. Let us have a prayer of gratitude.

'Dear Heavenly Father, Mother, Great Spirit, Source of All,

It is with great gratitude that we offer thanks for the miracle that has transpired. We now have a significant group of fully functioning Christ Selves all across the beautiful landscape. We are ready to make our mark here, responding with love to the many calls for love that there are. We are each an aspect of your divine love and we represent you in the smallest and largest of the earth's affairs. From this magnificent day forward, we pledge to bless this place and those who dwell on it, leaving them in a better state than we found them, as they have just been in your mighty presence through us. You go where we go and it brings us great pleasure to serve love with the Christ Mind's collective heart.

Amen'

Namaste, Jesus"

End Time: 8:56 a.m.

What's next for the Christ Selves?

Thursday, March 11, 2021 ~ 6:29 a.m.

"Greetings! It is I, the one known as Jesus. What's next for the Christ Selves? We seek to increase our numbers. The bigger we are collectively, the more influential we will become.

The resources are all there and they have been proven to work at changing identity from person to spiritual person to Christ. Notice that 'spiritual person' is in the middle of the chain of development. It is an important step in the progression, so don't knock it. Spiritual people are wonderful. They are almost there.

We will be unveiling a new project, a service project, for all of the Christ Selves to engage in, if they choose to do so. More information about this will be revealed in the weeks and months to come.

In the meantime, be bold in your knowing and in your power. Be a force for good in the world and make your mark. No two of you are alike. Being Christ is such an individualized expression and experience. To quote one of your popular TV personalities: "It's a good thing."

My biggest advice to each of you is to trust. When things look like they are falling apart, know that they need to do that to reveal something better that will take their place. There's no room for fear in the role of Christ.

My next set of messages will be to reassure you from someone who has been there. Being Christ tends to attract some negative attention and circumstances, so this will be my next talking point.

Bless you each for your service.

Love, Jesus"

End Time: 6:52 a.m.

Love sees the reality of the situation ...

Friday, March 12, 2021 ~ 6:30 a.m.

"Good day to you all. It is I, the one known as Jesus. People will recognize the Christ as you. They will say that you are "Jesus like", which is fine. Due to their religious upbringing, they will think that only I am Christ. They don't know the truth about the concept yet.

You may not be the life of the party anymore. The Christ spirit tones down some of the old personality features that were part of the ego. People may feel like they can talk to you about the deeper topics but not so much with daily chit chat.

It will become known that you aren't going to take sides and that you aren't going to trash talk anyone. You won't be jumping into the fray about the scandal of the day. Love's viewpoint is so entirely different than the viewpoints of separation: us vs. them and the demonizing of celebrities and political figures. You know in truth that you have done all kinds of things back in the day and that some of these were the targets of judgement and criticism. You know what that feels like so you aren't about to do it to someone else. You see yourself in everyone.

Love sees what is going right, what is working in someone's life. Love sees the reality of the situation, not just potential. If the situation is harsh and unpleasant, love sees that and knows clearly where blessings are needed. Love doesn't pretend and look away. Love is bold and is not afraid to look at life as it presents itself. Love accepts the ugly and hurtful and sees them for what they are, which are calls for love.

There is much to discuss about being Christ in 2021, so stay tuned.

Love and magical blessings, Jesus"

End Time: 6:55 a.m.

Keep your thought garden clear of weeds...

Saturday, March 13, 2021 ~ 6:47 a.m.

"Good day to you each. It us I, the one known as Jesus. You are now the gold standard. Christ is the cream of the crop. You will never do any harm and will always do and say just the right things. You set the tone and the example for others to follow.

All you have to do is to keep your thought garden clear of weeds (negative thoughts) and respond to the little nudges love will give you. Being Christ is to be an agent of God, a force for good. You are now part of this hugely complicated organism called God. Don't worry about anything because God is very detail oriented. Just respond with love to love.

From the outside looking in, you are more than just a really nice person. There is something extraordinary about you but only the sharpest sleuths will know what that is. It is wise to let your new identity as Christ be discovered on an as needing to know basis. Let curious ones figure it out and discover the mystery themselves, rather than you telling them. The more clandestine we are as a group, the easier our work will be, at least in the beginning. As time goes on, we won't be able to work in the shadows anymore. By then, each of you will have become bold enough to not mind some extra attention and scrutiny.

Until tomorrow.

Love (from one of the ones who paved the way), Jesus"

End Time: 7:10 a.m.

Well, here we are...

Saturday, March 13, 2021 ~ 7:12 a.m.

"Hello dear Christs! It is I, Mother Mary. Well, here we are. We are finally at the point where we can officially say that our individual and collective journeys into the unknown have finally begun. Everything up until this point was merely preparation, my dears. The title of this work means the journey into the unknown from the point of discovering your own Christ Star, which just recently happened. So, off we go as a collective of God in form. Bravo and God's speed!

Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 7:19 a.m.

We've Only Just Begun...

Saturday, March 13, 2021 ~ 7:20 a.m.

"Greetings Christ Selves! It is I, St. Germain. I am reminded of one of your popular songs from time passed that was sung by Karen Carpenter. She was a bright soul who once lived among you and brought so much joy with her angelic voice. The song is 'We've Only Just Begun". What an appropriate song and sentiment for this moment in time.

Stay close my brothers and sisters. We may give further instructions and support at any time. We are unlimited, as are each of you because love has no limits. There are no fences or barriers of any kind around love.

We will talk soon. Love, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 7:28 a.m.

This is our time to shine...

Sunday, March 14, 2021 ~ 7:42 a.m.

"Greetings on this fine day. It is I, the one known as Jesus. Today, we will finish our final victory lap as the ones who have the master keys to successful living here. Living a true and honest life here produces happiness and peace for oneself that can then be spread around liberally to others through service.

We found what everyone searches so frantically for and cannot find, only producing discontent and disconnection along their paths.

Today is our day of celebration for our freedom and gratitude for this sacred wisdom and knowledge. We are like those who Moses brought to the Promised Land, where we find new promises of hope and cause for optimism.

I brought you to the land of the free, where opportunities for service are in abundance and where resources for spiritual development are plentiful. This is our time to shine.

Until tomorrow.

Namaste, Jesus"

End Time: 7:57 a.m.

It is our job to light the way in the darkness...

Sunday, March 14, 2021 ~ 8:00 a.m.

"Hello my loves. It is I, Mother Mary. Let us pray.

'Dear God, Source of All,

We thank you for bringing us to this place, to the Promised Land, where we can do your work on the earth, in joy and peace, spreading love wherever we may go. For this privilege, we thank you.

Blessed Be.'

With this prayer, may you each enjoy and seize this day that stands before us. It is yet another opportunity to bless and encourage our brothers and sisters who have not yet found the Promised Land. It is our job now to light the way in the darkness.

With much love and grace, Mother Mary"

End Time: 8:09 a.m.

The world doesn't know the truth yet ...

Sunday, March 14, 2021 ~ 8:10 a.m.

"It is I, St. Germain. The world doesn't know the truth yet and they don't know about us yet either. Until they figure out the mystery that is unfolding before their very eyes, we will work in the shadows and bring love to those who call for it. We will bring love to a world that is sick from a lack of it. This is what we are called to do and this is what we must do.

May God bless each of you. Love, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 8:17 a.m.

Christ teaches discernment...

Monday, March 15, 2021 ~ 6:25 a.m.

"Greetings everyone. It is I, the one known as Jesus. You will be the one who can explain things in the context of love.

This is precisely what I did and many did not like what they heard. It went against the establishment, against the grain of society, against the dictates of the church. Free thinkers and free speech, even radical free speech, is more tolerated in today's society.

People don't really understand what love is, by and large. They think it's nice and that it feels good. It is something you fall in and out of, according to those who say they know about such things.

Whether it is in private or in a setting with a larger audience, Christ's talking points will always be centered around true, unconditional love, in the context of today's modern society. Christ teaches discernment. Examples may be: "This is an example of unconditional love." "This is an example of something that is not love yet."

Christ will also talk about the true identity of those gathered to hear, as well as the importance of forgiveness and the nonexistence of the past. We will tackle these subjects in upcoming sessions.

With great excitement and love, Jesus"

End Time: 6:45 a.m.

Christ is never alone ...

Monday, March 15, 2021 ~ 6:47 a.m.

"Greetings from the heavens. It is I, Archangel Michael. The purpose for my message today is just to provide a simple reminder for each of you.

While there were many times when you felt alone as a person, this will never be the case as Christ. Christ is never alone. You are surrounded by angels and angel like beings at all times. You will have the protection that love always provides.

My job is to make sure that each of you are supported by members of my teams and that is precisely what will happen. I will be stopping by a little more often to give a message to this group, so we will talk soon.

In honor and service, Archangel Michael"

End Time: 6:57 a.m.

The truth lives inside everyone...

Tuesday, March 16, 2021 ~ 6:30 a.m.

"Greetings everyone. It is I, the one known as Jesus. Let's get down to brass tacks today. Christ is in possession of a body of knowledge that is The Truth. It is knowledge unknown to most all of humanity, now or in the past. It is for the most part, inconceivable. It cannot be perceived by the five senses. The closest most get to the truth is if they happen to be behind another car while stopped at a red light and the car in front of theirs has a bumper sticker that says, 'We are spirits having a human experience.'

Churches are still plentiful and powerful. They claim to know the truth and yet they fall far short, mostly offering re-wrapped superstition in its place.

Christ knows the truth. In A Journey into the Unknown, even more mystical parts of it were woven into the fabric, so this by itself sets Christ apart from most everyone. However, knowing something as fact is one thing but being a physical representation of that set of facts is another.

Christ is the embodiment of the truth. Christ might be that guy who lives next door and yet that person is not just anyone who might live next door. That person is living, walking, breathing truth. The truth isn't in any book although there are books that point to it. The truth lives inside everyone. When someone finds it, their job is to be it and to inspire others to discover it inside themselves.

Until tomorrow.

Love is (passion for the truth), Jesus"

End Time: 6:52 a.m.

The world got it all wrong ...

Tuesday, March 16, 2021 ~ 6:54 a.m.

"Hello down there! Just kidding! It is I, St. Germain. Jesus is telling you your own story. He's telling you his own story and the story of everyone reading these messages. The story of Christ is not just a singular story. It is a multifaceted, multidimensional story that has commonality throughout all of them. It is the story of oneness in the many, not a story of specialness in the one. The world got it all wrong.

Love is power, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 7:02 a.m.

Be aware of your brain's resistance...

Wednesday, March 17, 2021 ~ 7:57 a.m.

"Greetings on yet another fine day. It is I, the one known as Jesus. Some of you are having misgivings about recent messages that refer to each of you as Christ, instead of a mature soul. This is clearly embedded deeply in my literature and yet there seems to be a disconnect between knowledge and realization.

My advice to you is to let it sink in. Be aware of your brain's resistance to the realization of this reality. Observe the resistance. Move forward and allow the realization of your true identity to take hold. The steps are the same for any resistance.

Being Christ is true whether you think it's true or not, whether you think you are deserving of this honor or not. Remember that this loud voice of doubt is not really you anyway. It's time to get to know the real YOU and let the false you talk itself out of a job.

Holy Spirit, Elevated Self of Form, Mature Soul and Christ are all terms that describe your true identity. Christ comes at the end because it describes full realization of the Divine Self in form, of God in form. This is what each of you are.

Use today to remind yourself of your true identity and explore what it means to be a Christ Self in 2021.

Love is understanding, Jesus"

End Time: 8:12 a.m.

Tomorrow, full speed ahead!

Wednesday, March 17, 2021 ~ 8:14 a.m.

"Good day, my loves. It is I, Mother Mary. The idea of being Christ may be overwhelming but please remember that it is the idea that may be bothering some of you, not the concept itself. It is all of the thoughts that surround the concept.

Embrace the concept and disengage from the thoughts surrounding it. The idea of an actualized form of God has attracted a great deal of fear throughout history and each of you have inherited at least some of that.

Give yourselves time to meditate and clear our fearful thoughts about being Christ.

Tomorrow, full steam ahead!

Love is support, Mother Mary"

End Time: 8:21 a.m.

Perseverance is my topic today...

Thursday, March 18, 2021 ~ 6:30 a.m.

"Good day to you each. It is I, the one known as Jesus. Perseverance is my topic today. Remember your identity as soon as you put your feet on the floor in the morning. Say, "I Am Christ" to yourself and remind yourself regularly throughout the day.

See regular human drama for what it is, clouds that need to blow away, revealing what is true beneath them.

Non-duality means that only one thing is true. Just like clouds are only water droplets waiting for their chance to be released so they can give life, drama is just a collection of thoughts that await their freedom by being let go from being kept in bondage. They conceal the truth of any situation. Thoughts give life when they are released.

Bless those who experience duality, as if both things are real. Their brains tell them this, but it is a lie. So many thoughts are lies and are unreal creations in actuality.

Swat away the flies. See the truth and teach the truth to willing hearts. Only love is real. Persevere in fostering true vision.

Love is patient. Love, Jesus"

End Time: 6:49 a.m.

Thought pollution...

Thursday, March 18, 2021 ~ 6:50 a.m.

"Hello loves. It is I, Mother Mary. There is climate change on the earth and there is thought pollution. Everyone is competing to see whose thoughts are the 'right' ones and whose thoughts are the 'wrong' ones. Whose thoughts make them 'better' than someone else's?

They are all just thoughts, judgements about who is right and who is wrong. Who is holy and who is a sinner? Who gets to see another day and who gets 'canceled'?

All of this is the playground of the ego, my friends. Christs cannot let the sneakier waves drag them into an ocean of thought pollution. Keep your gardens clear so that you can see nothing but truth and be able to receive inspiration on what to do next.

Love is clarity. Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 7:01 a.m.

We are here to serve love by being love...

Friday, March 19, 2021 ~ 6:48 a.m.

"Hello my dearest ones. Christ is now a large and growing organization. The key word is organization.

We are an organization of organized, non-conforming (by the world's standards) free spirits. We let love lead the way in everything we set out to do. Love is what propels us forward and is what binds us together.

May our Christ entity thrive on this day and every day. How can it not? We are each one, individually and collectively, aspects of the divine. We are here to serve love by being love.

Blessed be! Love, Mother Mary" End Time: 6:58 a.m.

What is love asking of you now?

Friday, March 19, 2021 ~ 6:59 a.m.

"Good day, excellent ones, beings of light. It is I, St. Germain. What is love asking of you now? Are you clear about it or unsure? Ask your inner guide for any clarity that is needed. Then, take one step at a time toward completing your mission.

Take plenty of breaks, enjoy a cup of tea and then, when you're ready, move forward again. This may seem quite simple and it is! It really is. Being Christ is the simplest, most natural thing in the world. You were born for this very reason.

Enjoy your new role in life because it's what you were always meant to do, which is to simply be your natural self, your Christ Self.

Until tomorrow! Love and blessings, dear ones, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 7:11 a.m.

How will you give love today?

Saturday, March 20, 2021 ~ 8:14 a.m.

"Blessings to you each. It is I, the one known as Jesus. Our company, the Christ company, is in the business of giving away its product (love). The more we give away, the stronger our company is.

So, today and everyday, we are having a massive sale. No matter the form, all love is completely free and without any conditions whatsoever.

We make sure to stock each of your warehouses so they are constantly full. They are so full that they are overflowing. How will you give love today? What do you feel inspired to do? This is your business and your job, to give away our organization's product.

When people receive our product, they will feel so inspired and so amazed at its quality that who knows? Maybe they will want to join our company and open up their own office!

With every smile, every kind word, every polite gesture, every kind act, you each make our organization stronger. So, let's all get out there and demonstrate what true, unconditional love is all about!

Love is amazing. Love, Jesus"

End Time: 8:31 a.m.

Love is the only real, lasting thing here ...

Saturday, March 20, 2021 ~ 8:32 a.m.

"Happy Spring, my dear ones. It is I, Mother Mary. Put your thoughts to the side. Put your beliefs to the side and know that love is the only real, lasting thing here. Even my beautiful spring flowers will wilt and fade away, but the energy that created the flowers never will.

YOU are that same energy, my loves! So, what will you create today?

Love and blessings times infinity, Mother Mary"

End Time: 8:37 a.m.

All systems are on "go"...

Saturday, March 20, 2021 ~ 8:39 a.m.

"All operations have been given the green light. All of our offices across this beautiful planet are open 24/7. Our help desk is open 24/7. Our messaging center is thriving and ready to serve, so all systems are on "go".

Here's our first call! "Hello, how can we serve you today?"

I AM proud to be a part of the Christ Organization! Love, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 8:43 a.m.

Say these three simple words to someone... I love you...

Sunday, March 21, 2021 ~ 7:26 a.m.

"Good day everyone. It is I, the one known as Jesus. One of the easiest ways to give away our commodity is to simply say, "I love you". Many people are rarely, if ever, told this and many people have a great deal of trouble saying it.

No, no one has to deserve hearing these words and no, you don't have to have a certain level of relationship to say these simple three words to someone. You can say them to someone you barely know or even someone you have never met before. Say it. Say it. Say it. People will be glad you did. It will make a difference.

Another easy and surefire way to give love is to say "bless you" or "God bless you". Don't wait until someone sneezes. There aren't any demons coming out. Just look someone straight in the eyes and say it. You know that you are giving a tremendous gift when you bless others but so many of your brothers and sisters never hear that they are being blessed. This is a way for them to hear these beautiful words and know that they are worthy of being blessed. It will be a huge pickup.

All of our offices are simply thriving. Each of you has been giving love to others in both simple and creative ways. Keep up the fantastic work! We are buzzing with the joy that comes from giving love.

Love and magical blessings, Jesus"

End Time: 7:44 a.m.

Love is priceless...

Sunday, March 21, 2021 ~ 7:46 a.m.

"Hello loves. It is I, Mother Mary. Love is priceless. It is invaluable and yet the world suffers from a lack of it. You are each billionaires when it comes to love. Give it away at every turn and you will never ever run out.

I love Jesus' instructions to say "I love you" and "Bless you". Imagine if everyone said these beautiful words on a daily basis. The world will be a better place today because you are each going to use these simple ways of extending God's love into your neck of the woods.

Love is powerful. Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 7:53 a.m.

The power of touch ...

Sunday, March 21, 2021 ~ 7:55 a.m.

"It is a glorious day, everyone. It is I, St. Germain/Joseph. I want to make a contribution to the topic of simple ways to give away love, which is through the power of touch.

People are still not touching others due to Covid 19, but this too shall pass. Until it does, use the power of touch with those in your own households. Touch hands and give hugs. They are healing in and of themselves. So many are touch deprived after a year of social distancing.

The Christ Organization is on fire with joy. Each of your offices is full of love because the more you give, the more your receive. So, plan on office expansions. You will need new rooms, new wings and new floors. This is what love is all about, expansion!

In joy to be part of the love movement, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 8:07 a.m.

The best things in life are simple...

Sunday, March 21, 2021 ~ 8:09 a.m.

"Good day to each and every one of you. It is I, Archangel Michael. The truth was hard to understand and grasp for so long but now look at what has happened. You each became the truth, the simple truth or better stated, the truth became you.

You are love and you give love. You give and give and give and will never run out of love to give away. This is such a beautiful thing to see from my vantage point. It took so long and yet it is so simple.

The best things in life are simple. You are each uncomplicated representations of truth, of love. The complexities were just human made thoughts that needed to be devalued and discarded. That's all.

We are at your service, 24/7. With a great and powerful love, Archangel Michael"

End Time: 8:18 a.m.

Let love lead the way...

Monday, March 22, 2021 ~ 6:33 a.m.

"Let love lead the way. Discover where it takes you. Love is not here to serve you. You are here to serve love. Remember these words at the start of each day for a most successful day in the office, serving love.

Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 6:36 a.m.

Our business is booming... the need is great...

Monday, March 22, 2021 ~ 6:42 a.m.

"The Christ Organization is open for business and our business is booming. The need is great. The only things that can stop us are our individual thoughts that say, "I can't do that". Yank it out by the roots and do it anyway. Giving unconditional love is completely free in regards to price and completely freeing in regards to the effect it has on the giver.

Thank you for serving love with all of your being. Love, Jesus"

End Time: 6:48 a.m.

How many different ways can you serve love today?

Monday, March 22, 2021 ~ 6:50 a.m.

"We don't want anything. We already have everything we need. Our offices across the world are fully operational and are thriving. The customer base is lined up around the block. There are opportunities everywhere to give a smile, share a laugh, open a door, offer a word of encouragement, thank someone and to just simply listen. How many different ways can you serve love today?

Love is contagious. Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 6:58 a.m.

Love is the only answer...

Tuesday, March 23, 2021 ~ 8:14 a.m.

"Good day to you each. It is I, the one known as Jesus. Each of you, as a fully functioning office of the Christ Organization, has your own brand, your own flair for how you serve others with love. This is the most amazing thing about our collective. It is quite individualized.

Large organizations in the world produce singular products. Our organization uses a singular fuel to make an unlimited amount of products, dispensed in an unlimited amount of ways. Love can be in a batch of cookies or in a ride to the market. Love can be in a borrowed necklace or an extra set of hands taking out the garbage.

Love listens. Our talking point today, in as few words as possible, is that love produces more love in our house. When more people join us in the house of love, the house of fear will become disenfranchised. Love is the only answer.

Thank you for being a blessing to the world. Love, Jesus"

End Time: 8:28 a.m.

I will say it again ... Love is the only

answer...

Tuesday, March 23, 2021 ~ 8:46 a.m.

"Hello my loves. My favorite thing about love is that it is relatable and understandable in its simplicity. The same cannot be said about the house of fear, which is confusing and hard to grasp. There seems to be a horror around every corner. The uncertainty of 'normal' life is this pervasive sadness in the air for things that cannot be explained adequately.

I second Jesus' profound statement. Love is the only answer. Horrible tragedies will continue to happen in the house of fear but now we have a very strong network that offers a very different solution. I will say it again. Love is the only answer.

Love and blessings, Mother Mary"

End Time: 8:56 a.m.

Let's support love by supporting each other ...

Tuesday, March 23, 2021 ~ 8:57 a.m.

"Hello everyone. It is I, St. Germain/Joseph. Please remember that we are an organization and love is our fuel. It is what binds us together. Please let the other offices know what your individual needs are. Let's share resources with one another.

Do you need extra copies of specific books? Do you need help with funding a special love project? Can you organize a message board for sisters and brothers to communicate their needs?

Remember, we have offices all over the world. Let's support love by supporting each other."

Love looks for ways to help. Love, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 9:04 a.m.

The eagle has landed ...

Wednesday, March 24, 2021 ~ 7:10 a.m.

"Greetings! It is I, the one known as Jesus. Love is compassionate and embracing. Love is kind. Love looks the other way and doesn't let shadows define it.

I am describing each of you. This is Christ. This is God in form. This is you. This is us. This is us together.

My wish for each of you is that not only today, but each and every day from here on out, is a beautiful day for all of the Christ Selves. The eagle has landed.

Love and blessings, Jesus"

End Time: 7:18 a.m.

Nothing can stop us now...

Wednesday, March 24, 2021 ~ 7:19 a.m.

"Hello, my loves. It is I, Mother Mary. In a significant way, our work of allowing Christ to consume the ideas that formed the small self, is complete. It was a long and sometimes difficult path of letting go of things that did not serve, but only blocked the Christ light.

Now, we have started down a new and exciting path together. We are individually and collectively Christ and we tread in new, unexplored territory. This is the new. This is the unknown. Nothing can stop us now. We are too big and too powerful to be stopped in our tracks.

Carry on, my loves.

Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 7:26 a.m.

Charge full steam ahead...

Wednesday, March 24, 2021 7:27 a.m.

"Greetings, earthlings! (smile) You know who this is. It is I, St. Germain/Joseph. I like to make jokes. It lightens things and makes them more fun.

I have the great pleasure today of ushering in our third century of messages. It brings us great joy to have this level of instant communication with each of you. In the days not so long ago, it would be years before our words were able to be read. Fortunately for us, the words were still worth reading by that time. They weren't like stale bread! (smile)

Charge full steam ahead, offices of Christ. Let's see what kind of trouble we can stir up today, shall we? (smile) Truthfully, some may perceive love as a troublemaker, as strange as that sounds!

To quote the Eagles: "Take it easy, don't let the sound of your own wheels drive you crazy."

Love, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 7:36 a.m.

The Christ Organization is amazing...

Wednesday, March 24, 2021 ~ 7:37 a.m.

"Hello everyone. It's Bill. St. Germain has a way of stealing the show, doesn't he? Seriously, he's a hard act to follow but I just want to say that the Christ Organization is amazing. I'm very happy to have had a role back in the day in helping to usher this in. It's kind of like watching a machine get built and then seeing it get turned on and function beautifully, knowing all along that you had at least a tiny part in getting everything going.

Bless each of you for listening. Love, Bill"

End Time: 7:45 a.m.

Stay connected to us ...

Thursday, March 25, 2021 ~ 7:00 a.m.

"Good day to you each. It is I, the one known as Jesus. While at the office, stay connected to us through prayer, through a feeling of connectedness, through a feeling of being charged up, like a cell phone being plugged into a wall socket. This is commonly known as a transmission.

You can each receive a transmission at any time or throughout your tour of duty. There's no risk of receiving too much energy. Through regular transmissions, or charging sessions, you will have plenty of positive energy for today and for a backup reserve, as well.

Energy transmissions also help us at the Help Desk by allowing us to provide inspiration for ways love can be expressed through you. You are love beings but don't forget to provide time to nourish your own soul through transmissions, meditation or by reading/listening to inspired and inspiring material.

Bless you each, Jesus"

End Time: 7:15 a.m.

Let's turn on the lights ...

Thursday, March 25, 2021 ~ 7:17 a.m.

"In the Christ Organization, we have purpose. There's a reason to get up each day. We aren't in a constant state of confusion, trying to figure everything out. We know who we are, what we are, what we do here and how we function. The puzzle pieces are all in place.

Let's turn on the lights. The Christ Organization is open for business. Our commodity is free and service is always with a smile. Easy Peasy.

In support, Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 7:25 a.m.

Love equals power...

Friday, March 26, 2021 ~ 7:13 a.m.

"Greetings. It is I, the one known as Jesus. Serving love is fun and carefree. It is not at all like all of the uncertainty that came when we didn't know what we were serving. Now we know. Just keep a clear mind and enjoy the things life brings you: people and situations. Ask what can I do? What can I say? What is the best outcome for all involved? This is our work. This is the work of Christ. This is the work of the Christ Organization.

Love equals power. Love, Jesus"

End Time: 7:20 a.m.

Love is awareness of other's needs...

Friday, March 26, 2021 ~ 7:22 a.m.

"Hello dear ones. It is I, Mother Mary. You are each doing what we do in the spirit realm. The only difference is that you are more of a front line responder. You have immediate resources at your disposal. It's a bit trickier with us because we have to go through you to get you to respond, whereas you can now respond directly and in congruence with the one will. You are in service to love and you are in direct service. We support each of you but you're the ones on stage. You're the stars of the shows. Pretty cool, huh?

Love is awareness of other's needs. Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 7:29 a.m.

Stand up and be counted ...

Friday, March 26, 2021 ~7:31 a.m.

"Hello everyone. It is Bill. Stand up and be counted. Our offices are all the same in one way but different in another. We all serve love but we do so in our own unique ways. What kind of stamp does love have after it passes through your office, after being enhanced and blessed by you? Lori Christ's offering is a bit different from Robert Christ's offering. Love is used from both aspects of God but the outcomes are each unique.

Food for thought. Love, Bill"

End Time: 7:40 a.m.

You had to lose yourself to find your Self...

Saturday, March 27, 2021 ~ 8:30 a.m.

"Greetings everyone. It is I, the one known as Jesus. When you are Christ, everything is a blessing, everything is a gift. Everything leads to, drum roll please...being God in form.

Each and every dark path, selfish adventure and tragic occurrence all lead to the Christ realization eventually. There's no use in fighting it or pretending that it isn't real or thinking that I was the only one who could do it or who had to do it. No, all of this is quite pointless.

You are who you are. You are Christ and Christ is you. The days of wandering through the forest to find yourself are over. You had to lose yourself to find your Self.

Now that God is here on the earth, God seeks to influence events and decisions on the earth. God has already done that with your mind/body vehicles. That's what becoming Christ is all about. Now, God seeks a sphere of influence past your mind/body vehicles. Yes, God seeks world domination. Love wants to rule the earth. These will be our next talking points.

Love is influential. Love, Jesus"

End Time: 8:47 a.m.

Love is always expanding...

Saturday, March 27, 2021 ~ 8:49 a.m.

"Good day to each of you. It is I, Mother Mary. Jesus' message was a heavy one, so to speak, but being Christ is a monumental occurrence. It is a once in a lifetime occurrence and it isn't just about you or a group of Christ Selves. Love is always expanding. Love always multiplies itself.

Not only does the earth need more love but it seeks for itself to be more of a form of love. When the earth or Gaia becomes a larger and more powerful form of love, it will not tolerate any human nonsense that doesn't generate from a place of love.

So, as a brief summary, our precious mother earth is part of the love movement too. This isn't just about humans and their behavior towards each other and towards the earth. The earth is evolving too.

Love and blessings as always, Mother Mary"

End Time: 9:00 a.m.

The earth is in on the act too ...

Saturday, March 27, 2021 ~ 9:01 a.m.

"Blessings everyone. Jesus has a way of giving you a realization by hitting you over the head with it, doesn't he? This is Archangel Michael. Yes, the love movement is bigger than the human population and includes everything, with nothing excluded.

As Mother Mary explained, the earth too is in on the act. The earth is sick from overpopulation and overuse of its resources. It needs to heal and the only way that it can heal completely is by raising its vibration from 3D to 4D to beyond, eventually.

The earth can no longer be home to anyone who seeks to abuse it for their own selfish purposes. Jesus will speak more about being an influencer in upcoming days.

Love is power. Archangel Michael"

End Time: 9:12 a.m.

Our message in this upside down carnival world is going to be considered blasphemous by many...

Sunday, March 28, 2021 ~ 7:35 a.m.

"Good day to you each. It is I, the one known as Jesus. Being influential is probably the easiest part of being Christ because you do it naturally. You don't even realize you're doing it. Your message of 'I Am here' is being broadcast and received by nearby souls. You don't have to say or do anything. Others know on some level and most of these will treat this knowing with suspicion.

Remember from A Course in Miracles that egos fluctuate between suspicion and viciousness. They hide this with a smile and a nod but it's there. It's really what they are thinking.

Long story short, people will be suspicious of you and will not have any idea why. This is okay in the short term. Their souls are being woken up and that's a testament to your presence.

Now, not everyone will keep you at arm's length. Some will have already started the awakening process and will be thirsty for more. These are opportunities for you to do more than just be presence, if this appeals to you. Presence can simply involve referring someone to a sister or brother in Christ, but the Jesus' and Marys among you will use these cases as teaching opportunities.

I mentioned viciousness earlier. You will, unfortunately, encounter this from time to time, as I certainly did. I'm not trying to scare you. I just want you to be aware that our message in this upside down carnival world is going to be considered blasphemous by many. It's strange to say that love, forgiveness and peace will be perceived this way but they will. Some of the details of the truth will make it even harder to swallow. As I said in A Journey into the Unknown, develop a thick skin and see suspicion and viciousness for what they are, which are fearful reactions. On the soul level, everyone will be grateful for you each because you represent freedom from the cages that enslave them.

Love, the one who knows, Jesus"

End Time: 8:00 a.m.

Christ...shines the light of truth for all to see, whether they want to see it or not...

Sunday, March 28, 2021 ~ 8:02 a.m.

"Good day beautiful ones. It is I, Mother Mary. This is a quick reminder that Christ makes the world even more beautiful. It shines the light of truth for all to see, whether they want to see it or not. Remember this my loves.

Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 8:05 a.m.

Remember who and what you are...

Sunday, March 28, 2021 ~ 8:06 a.m.

"Greetings everyone. It is I, the wise guy, St. Germain. Please don't take any of the reactions Jesus spoke of personally. Sometimes of course words and behavior hurt, but remembering who and what you are will help soften the blow.

You are surrounded by angels and are each a messenger of God now. As time goes on, you will care less and less and will be more cavalier about it all. The religious and sometimes the spiritual people can just get over themselves. It's what their souls want anyway: freedom from them! (smile)

I love you each because we are one and the same in truth. St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 8:16 a.m.

We are in the dismantling stage...

Sunday, March 28, 2021 ~ 8:17 a.m.

"We are in the dismantling stage in the world. There is great fear that the world that has been known in a certain way will not be that same way any longer. This is a very good thing from our standpoint, from Christ's standpoint, but not from the world's. Its occupants feel threatened. As Jesus mentioned, on a deep subconscious level, they all know that you are here. Christ has returned.

Namaste, Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 8:23 a.m.

Know that souls near you hear you...

Sunday, March 28, 2021 ~ 2:44 p.m.

"When you go somewhere, know that you are the star of the show. Whether it's a routine place you're going to or someplace that came from an out of the blue inspiration, the other souls in that place will know you are there. Silently announce your presence and your words will be heard and acknowledged by the other souls. When you silently bless them, they will respond with joy. It's as if royalty entered the room.

The characters are going to be doing and saying all kinds of things but that doesn't matter in the slightest. We know that it seems like you are talking to a wall but you aren't. Know that the souls near you hear you. They know that Christ is there in a fully realized way. It gives them hope.

If you get the chance, let a character hear you say 'bless you'. It lets them in on what's really going on, plus it feels really wonderful to hear someone say those words and really mean them.

Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 2:52 p.m.

Christ is the risen sun...

Sunday, March 28, 2021 ~ 2:54 p.m.

"Hello everyone. It is Helen. Have you ever gone to a beach on a cool, overcast day? There are always a few people there on days like that.

Compare that with a warm, sunny day when there are throngs of people. Expect that you will attract people the way the sun attracts them on a warm day. The people won't know why but their souls will. Christ is the risen sun.

Love and blessings, Helen"

End Time: 2:59 p.m.

There are two levels of fear playing out...

Monday, March 29, 2021 ~ 7:30 a.m.

"Greetings. It is I, the one known as Jesus. It has long been anticipated that Christ would return to the earth one day but few knew when or how. When is now and how is underneath everyone's noses.

As much as I have stated that the ego is not real, it does mimic reality and it is still a step ahead of artificial intelligence in that it does have a sense of awareness. So, I will offer you this news behind the news.

The surface reality sees polarization with two groups that have their index fingers pointed at each other, blaming the other for their misery. Even long dead people are not exempt from this blame and shame. While this is true on the surface, at the ego level, there is something deeper at play.

Egos, both individual and group, are sensing threat but they don't know where it is coming from. They can only see the obvious threat and the media helps create this by demonizing individuals and groups, making them the monster in the room that is to be feared.

On a deeper level, however, without knowing exactly who and what we are, egos are really terrified of Christ. Christ will put them all out of a job and that is more frightening than the evil other, who they know does not have that power.

The fear of the return of Christ is at the root of what seems to be the fear of other people. The 'holier than thou' syndrome that is also playing out is the ego's warped sense of virtue signaling to God, in case there really is a Second Coming and a judgement between those who are worthy to be saved and those who are not.

There are two levels of fear playing out but the root level is the fear of you, my friends. The return of Christ means the end of the world as it was known and this has people shivering in their boots

Love means business. Jesus"

End Time: 7:55 a.m.

We are reclaiming and redefining everything...

Monday, March 29, 2021 ~ 7:58 a.m.

"Hello my darlings. It is I, Mother Mary. I frequently try to sweeten the pot with my messages but I really can't this time. People have always had conflict with each other, wars, both physical and ideological. This isn't new. This is the same old same old on a different day and time.

There is something new now but no one knows what it is. No one will even dare to guess that the Second Coming has arrived and that Christ has set up shop, lots of them, all over the world. It is just too outlandish to even think about.

So, here we are. We are reclaiming and redefining everything. God is claiming what is God's to claim, which is everything my loves, everything.

Until tomorrow. Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 8:07 a.m.

Own your own power, brothers and sisters...

Monday, March 29, 2021 ~ 8:11 a.m.

"Everyone has been hoodwinked all of these years and now reality will be, figuratively speaking, smacking them in the face, because here we are. We are everything egos try to be and constantly fall short of.

When you walk into a room, souls know Who is there. Egos don't know Who is there but are terrified of it.

Own your own power, brothers and sisters. The nonsense stops with you. The Second Coming is the return of sanity to an insane world. We cannot save anyone. They have to do that for themselves. They have to save themselves from themselves. We just point the way to the Yellow Brick Road. We point to grace and value. We point away from valueless-ness.

This is our show now. We are live and people are watching.

Love, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 8:21 a.m.

The Second Coming of Christ is here!

Monday, March 29, 2021 ~ 8:23 a.m.

"Yes, this is a big deal. This has been in the planning stages for eons and now it is here. The Second Coming of Christ is here! We rejoice with All of All. May God bless each Christ Self to do what only each one was designed to do, which is to love in his or her own unique ways, lighting the path for others to follow.

Blessed Be, Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 8:27 a.m.

The Second Coming is bigger than the first...

Monday, March 29, 2021 ~ 8:28 a.m.

"Blessed Be. The Second Coming is bigger than the first. God is here in a place that has always rejected God. Love has returned to where it was a scarce commodity. Blessed Be.

In power, Archangel Michael"

End Time: 8:31 a.m.

A recent uptick and intensity in the Christ Organization...

Monday, March 29, 2021 ~ 1:47 p.m.

"Greetings again. It is I, the one known as Jesus. We are what's behind all of the intensity in the human led drama. They smell a rat. They smell something that isn't to their liking but they can't detect where it's coming from and they won't figure it out until we decide to announce ourselves and go public.

We aren't quite ready to come out of the closet, so to speak. It took 45 years to build the Christ Organization. Now, we are settling in and getting all of our ducks in a row. There is much underfoot that few of you know about yet but as with all things, you will know as soon as you need to know.

If you perceive a recent up-tick and intensity in the Christ Organization, it's because there is one. Know that all is well and everything is as it should be.

Stay close. Love, Jesus"

End Time: 1:56 p.m.

Relax and enjoy the ride...

Monday, March 29, 2021 ~ 1:58 p.m.

"Hello everyone. It's Helen. Here we are, a collective energy that is upsetting the apple cart. It's exciting to see all of this from my vantage point. From yours, it must be simply thrilling.

Relax and enjoy the ride. The Second Coming of Christ is upon us.

Love & hugs, Helen"

End Time: 2:03 p.m.

Bless you each!

Monday, March 29, 2021 ~ 2:04 p.m.

"Hello everybody. It's Bill. I second Helen's message. This is just amazing. I thank each of you for doing your work to dis-empower your egos and let your Christ Selves reign supreme.

Bless you each! Love, Bill"

End Time: 2:07 p.m.

Love equals power...

Tuesday, March 30, 2021 ~ 7:33 a.m.

"Let's have a roll call and an office meeting of sorts. How are things going in your office? What kinds of experiences have you had as Christ so far? It is I, the one known as Jesus.

Remember, most of your work, at least 95% of it, is simply witnessing. You aren't saying or doing anything. You are communicating with souls through your mere presence. Christ is holy and holy means whole. The power each of you have at your fingertips would be incomprehensible to a human brain so I won't even attempt to try to explain it. This energy, God energy, knows what to do. Be confident in your knowing. Everywhere you go, God goes. Every place you go is now part of your kingdom.

From our end, we are seeing each of you settle into your new role. This will take some time. It's like any major life change, such as moving, changing jobs or careers or starting a family. Here you each are, a vice president of the Christ Organization!

Take time to enjoy the smell of the new carpet and fresh paint. There will be a day approaching quickly when you will want to look back and remember your days as a newbie, so take it all in.

Love equals power. Love, Jesus"

End Time: 7:51 a.m.

Christ replaces ego as the dominant operating system...

Tuesday, March 30, 2021 ~ 7:53 a.m.

"Blessings, my loves! It is I, Mother Mary. We communicate through telepathy. This means that when you consciously give a silent blessing to a sister or brother, it is heard by the soul. Trust this.

When you verbally bless someone, their brain processes it and the character can receive it. It's like we are talking about two different things, a character and a soul, and we are simply acknowledging that most characters are unaware of their souls and they don't realize that they are a soul and not a character. This is the reality here.

Therefore, verbal blessings and all types of loving care and consideration are helping to meld the soul and character one step closer to the Christ realization.

With every little thing Christ does, Christ is helping to birth more of itself. Christ replaces ego as the dominant operating system. This is our work. We are very much like honeybees pollinating plants.

Here is a beautiful red rose for each of you. 🐺

Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 8:06 a.m.

Let your needs be known...

Tuesday, March 30, 2021 ~ 8:08 a.m.

"Greetings sisters and brothers. It is I, St. Germain/Joseph. I just want to remind each of you to let your needs be known. If you need anything for your ministry as Christ, let us know and let each other know. Another Christ may have exactly what you need and it is just sitting around gathering dust. Perhaps a small amount of money for shipping could bring you what you need.

We need a way for the Christ Organization to communicate needs with one another. Hint hint. Our messaging center from us to you is going strong but we could strengthen our communication between Christs, especially Ones who live nearby other Ones.

I will leave all of you honeybees with this seed.

Love is power, St. Germain"

End Time: 8:20 a.m.

There may be a surprise or two... stay tuned!

Tuesday, March 30, 2021 ~ 8:23 a.m.

"Greetings from the heavenly dimension. It is I, Archangel Michael. As you can see, it is now all hands on deck. You will be hearing from the entire team more often. Plus, there may be a surprise or two in the messaging, so stay tuned. This is 'Must See TV'. The Second Coming is no ordinary, ho hum event. It's lights, cameras, action!"

In deep appreciation and admiration, Archangel Michael"

End Time: 8:29 a.m.

Keep us close by throughout the day...

Tuesday, March 30, 2021 ~ 8:30 a.m.

"This is just a reminder to start your day with a charging session, however that looks for you, and then keep us close by throughout the day. Being Christ will be a wonderful blessing to you and to everyone in your kingdom.

Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 8:32 a.m.

The Christ Organization is just dedicated to serving with love...

Tuesday, March 30, 2021 ~ 8:33 a.m.

"Hello all. This is Helen. I am beside myself with joy. I just had no idea that all of the really abstract concepts from Miracles could manifest like this. The Christ Organization is just dedicated to serving with love. It's so simple but I didn't see it coming when I was knee deep in writing it all down for 7 years. Hindsight is 20/20 but foresight is more difficult, isn't it?

Thank you for welcoming me back into your lives. I feel complete.

Love, Helen, your sister in Christ"

End Time: 8:39 a.m.

Giving and receiving are one in truth...

Tuesday, March 30, 2021 ~ 8:40 a.m.

"Hello everyone. It's Bill. I am reminded of one of the principles in A Course in Miracles which was 'giving and receiving are one in truth'. Helen and I gave through dedication and now we are receiving the bounty from our efforts.

Thank you and may God bless each of you. Love, Bill, your brother in Christ"

End Time: 8:43 a.m.

We like what we see... (Fesus introduces the

Arcturian Council)

Tuesday, March 30, 2021 ~ 7:15 p.m.

"Greetings. It is I, the one known as Jesus. I will do the honors of introducing a group that some of you may be familiar with. They are the Arcturian Council. They have some interesting observations to share through their spokesperson."

"Namaste. We were invited by Jesus to come to the earth following a recent intergalactic summit that he attended with us. The purpose of our visit is to find out more about the awakening process, Christ awareness, Christ consciousness and finally Christ transformation.

We are dealing with the same frequency change issues on our planet and have found the transition from Christ consciousness to Christ transformation to be the most challenging one to make.

Jesus has shared his writings with us as well as the concept of the Christ Organization and explained the amount of support involved. He is very excited about the potential for this concept and its effects on members of your community.

We took his word for it of course but we wanted to see for ourselves. We can say that we like what we see. We are taking notes on our observations and want to find ways to adapt this concept to the needs of our community members.

Keep up the good work.

In oneness, Arcturian Council"

End Time: 7:33 p.m.

Expect resistance...

Wednesday, March 31, 2021 ~ 9:05 a.m.

"Greetings. It is I, the one known as Jesus. My topic today is resistance. Expect it. You're usually dealing with your own resistance that emanating from within yourselves. You're each used to this.

What many of you are not used to is resistance emanating from those around you. You may not even know exactly what is causing it. Was it something you did? Was it something you said? Was it something you didn't say? Was it something you didn't do? You may never know but expect that some of your relationships may be altered or even end.

I will tell you why this is happening and will continue to happen. You're not the same person anymore. You're not the life of the party. You have nothing to offer of value to many and what you do have to offer isn't wanted. You're off the list. Maybe some will simply stop liking you.

What's happening is that many will not like the Christ energy that is now your dominant energy. It may make them uncomfortable. It's an unwanted reminder.

Please don't take any of this personally. We need all of our offices to be strong throughout any storm. We will never win a popularity contest and yet Christ doesn't want to anyway. Christ simply asks, 'remember me?' They can run but they can't hide. Christ is their true identity too. Running away from yourSelf will never work.

In truth, Love, Jesus"

End Time: 9:26 a.m.

You each know the world of ego well...

Wednesday, March 31, 2021 ~ 9:29 a.m.

"Hello loves. It is I, Mother Mary. The world that has been, the world of ego, is entirely different from the budding world of Christ that is under construction now.

You each know the world of ego well. It's all you knew for a very long time, so you will have a good understanding of where those around you are coming from. The same cannot be said about them. They will not have a good understanding of you and where you are coming from. Expect this, as Jesus said.

When you are not surprised by how things unfold, it lessens the impact a little. Not a lot, but a little.

Blessings always! Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 9:37 a.m.

Start practicing being unfazed...

Wednesday, March 31, 2021 ~ 9:41 a.m.

"Christ simply doesn't care if it is liked or not. Christ is nothing but love. Love will accept more love but it also accepts hate, whether it be mild dislike or the toxic variety.

Start practicing being unfazed. You wouldn't bother people so much unless you were striking a nerve. Getting their attention is the first step toward their awakening. In this way, people's dislike of you is always a gift to them.

We are here but we weren't invited. Try to remember this please.

Love, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 9:49 a.m.

You will each encounter fear in different ways...

Wednesday, March 31, 2021 ~ 9:50 a.m.

"Greetings comrades! It is I, Archangel Michael. Resistance is an interesting, history laden topic. I'm glad that Jesus brought it up. If it wasn't for resistance, Christ would have been victorious long ago. Jesus wouldn't have been killed the way he was. He would have been treated like a king and then everyone else would have realized that they were kings and queens too. We could have been done with all of this nonsense for once and for all 2,000 years ago. Well, as we all know that isn't what happened. Every atrocity known to mankind has continued to this very day.

So, long story short, not much has changed. You will each encounter fear in different ways. You will be excluded and made to feel not welcome. This is where that thick skin that has been so often talked about will come in handy.

Smile. You have a winning card now. Archangel Michael"

End Time: 10:01 a.m.

Remember that you are looking in at something you are no longer a part of...

March 31, 2021 ~ 10:02 a.m.

"Our advice is for you each to remember that you are looking in at something you are no longer a part of. You are walking through a zoo but you aren't inside one of the cages. You are free to leave.

Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 10:05 a.m.

Stay focused. Stay on task ...

Wednesday, March 31, 2021 ~ 10:06 a.m.

"Hello everyone. It's Helen. Stay focused. Stay on task. Let Christ work its magic. Being liked has always been overrated in my viewpoint anyway. We have each other and that's what matters.

Love, Helen"

End Time: 10:11 a.m.

Remember, you signed up for this...

Wednesday, March 31, 2021 ~ 10:12 a.m.

"Hello everyone. It's Bill. Remember, you signed up for this. It's a tough job but somebody has to do it.

Love, Bill"

End Time: 10:14 a.m.

Christ really cannot be defined...

Thursday, April 1, 2021 ~ 6:30 a.m.

"It is a blessed day indeed. It is I, the one known as Jesus. You, as an office of Christ, would be a penthouse version in that Christ is always cream of the crop. You are each a model of the possibilities that freedom brings. You are like the prettiest girl in school who never has a date but is secretly admired from afar. You are a model without all of the expensive clothes. You are plain and simple in one regard and mystical and alluring in another.

Christ is mysterious. Christ really cannot be defined. It can manifest in so many individualized ways, an unlimited amount of them.

Enjoy being Christ. No two days will be exactly alike from here on out. Appreciate being Christ. You may wish you knew about this a long time ago. It really is such a gift. It is a gift of a lifetime and all we want to do is model it or better said, allow it to model itself through us.

We aren't here to convert anyone or change their minds about anything. We are just here to show something, to demonstrate something, to model it. Leave the details to Christ please.

Love and blessings, Jesus"

End Time: 6:48 a.m.

Christ is God in form...

Thursday, April 1, 2021 ~ 6:49 a.m.

"Greetings comrades. It is I, Archangel Michael. I talked a bit about royalty yesterday. Christ is royalty. There is no such thing as royal blood, which actually means ruling blood, but there is such a thing as a royal essence.

A royal essence is Christ. There's no doubt about it. Christ is God in form so it's like being a king or queen in form. I'm just telling it like it is. You are what you are. You just can't help it.

In service, Archangel Michael"

End Time: 6:58 a.m.

You are each breaking in 'a pair of new jeans'...

Tuesday, April 1, 2021 ~ 6:59 a.m.

"Before you could buy prewashed jeans, you had to buy stiff and uncomfortable ones and break them in yourself. They become your favorite pair of jeans over time and fit you in just the perfect way.

This is what's happening now in all of the Christ offices. You are each breaking in a pair of new jeans but this is a pair that you will never outgrow and it will never go out of fashion. They don't deteriorate over time. They just keep getting better.

Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 7:06 a.m.

Like attracts like...

Thursday, April 1, 2021 ~ 6:15 p.m.

"Greetings all. It is Helen. Like attracts like so those with a good amount of Christ energy will be attracted to you. It's the ones who have dormant Divine energy who will not want much to do with you. They are the ones who smell a rat. These folks are still in the vast majority. They may perceive you as some sort of threat at one end or someone who isn't worth their time on the other.

We are just trying to lay out the landscape for each of you. Now let's talk about the juicy part. Just speaking of your power, you are each like a bottle of 100 proof alcohol, so you can see how people are going to have trouble processing and categorizing you. It is in fact, a very rare thing to come across someone who has this incredibly strong energy and aura. I don't think I came across anyone who even came close when I was in form.

I'm just trying to find an easy to relate to concept to compare each of you with. You are a rare breed because you are fully activated Christ energy. The energy of immature souls just doesn't compare, strength wise. They might be like a light beer on a good day.

The more powerful you are, the more vision you have and the more power your blessings have. Your blessings pack a wallop, just like a bottle of 100 proof alcohol would. The effects are of course, entirely different, but you get my point.

Hugs and blessings! Love, Helen"

End Time: 6:37 p.m.

Christ transformation...

Thursday, April 1, 2021 ~ 6:38 p.m.

"Christ transformation is my topic, my friends. This is Bill. People got to be pretty adept at Christ awareness and a practical Christ consciousness over the past 45 years. Now we are doing something new, which is Christ transformation.

What we are doing with our messaging is to find ways to support each of you with this. It is the most difficult transition because it's a complete transition.

This is why we are giving so many analogies to help each of you to get a good grasp on what this is and what it means for you. We feel like our strategies have been most successful, which is why the Arcturian Council wanted to come and learn more.

We are a hot topic in the intergalactic community because the difficulty level is high. All form is transforming and everyone is looking at what we're doing so they can come up with ways to support those in their realities.

All eyes are on us. They are saying, 'how did they do that?' (smile)

Love and support, Bill"

End Time: 6:52 p.m.

Let's review some of our recent talking points...

Friday, April 2, 2021 ~ 6:34 a.m.

"It is a blessed day, indeed. It is I, the one known as Jesus. Let's review some of our recent talking points.

We have talked about your energy levels and the power that each of you have. We have talked about external resistance and the forms that may take. We have talked about people not liking you. We have talked about Christ transformation and how it differs from Christ awareness and Christ consciousness.

We have talked about how Christ works and that Christ is in control. It uses the body/mind vehicle and the body/mind vehicle does not use it. 9 out of 10 times, Christ just is. It does not choose to speak or do through the body, except in the minority of the time.

Finally, we talked about the mystery of Christ and how you will never know exactly what it is doing but you can trust that it is in full operation, giving love to love.

All good teachers give a review session before exams. (smile)

It is my greatest pleasure to teach the hardest class and you are all passing with flying colors!

With the greatest love, Jesus"

End Time: 6:49 a.m.

You have been taking the hardest class in the universe...

Friday, April 2, 2021 ~ 6:50 a.m.

"Greetings comrades! It is I, Archangel Michael. So, now you know. You have been taking the hardest class in the universe and didn't even have a clue. Good teachers make the class really fun and engaging. It has been so great that you didn't even know the gravity of the situation. Did you? Well, now you know and grades were just posted in the hallway outside your office door. Each of your grades is an A+. Stellar work everyone! The Christ Organization is simply on fire.

In complete support, Archangel Michael"

End Time: 6:56 a.m.

You have defeated human nature itself...

Friday, April 2, 2021 ~ 6:39 p.m.

"Hello everyone. Christ awareness was difficult because it was so hard to grasp exactly what it was. It was like putting your feet in the water. Christ consciousness required some swimming skills and Christ transformation is like being an Olympic swimmer.

It is quite difficult to move from having swimming skills to being an Olympic level swimmer. This is why Jesus said that Christ transformation is the hardest class. There are some tremendously difficult courses out there, especially in science, math and technology, but I second Jesus' comment that this is the hardest class in the world.

You have defeated human nature itself. It's not nearly as powerful as it once was and this is a tremendous accomplishment. Getting an A+ in this class really can't be compared to getting an A+ in any other class. Again, the difficulty level is so much harder.

I want to pat each of you on the back. This is amazing (understatement of the year).

Love, Helen"

End Time: 6:52 p.m.

I am gobsmacked...

Friday, April 2, 2021 ~ 6:53 p.m.

"We introduced Christ awareness to the world and Mari introduced Christ consciousness. It's very humbling to be a party to this new part, Christ transformation. We had no idea this was the goal or that it was even possible.

I'm gobsmacked. Love, Bill"

End Time: 6:56 p.m.

Let's celebrate your high marks, Christs!

Friday, April 2, 2021 ~ 6:57 a.m.

"Let's celebrate your high marks, Christs! We can each grab a beer, tea, coffee or hot chocolate and have a toast. Three cheers for the Christ Organization. Three cheers for the Christ Organization. Three cheers for the Christ Organization. Bravo everyone!

Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 7:01 a.m.

A Fourney into the Unknown... Christ transformation...

Saturday, April 3, 2021 ~ 7:00 a.m.

"Greetings everyone. It is I, the one known as Jesus. I have compared A Journey into the Unknown to a Ph.D. level finishing school and now you can see why. I purposely did not use the term 'Christ transformation' early on. I didn't want to scare anyone away.

Likewise, I didn't want to lose anyone if I called the grouping of messages that followed Mother Mary's and St. Germain's gentle guidance (to discover your Christhood) a 'class'. So, I kept it a secret. I kept it undercover and then sprung it on you after we were finished.

I knew what being Christ was like and I could share that with you in broad, generalized terms. The truth is however, that I don't know what your experience of being Christ will be like anymore than you do. Like I said, it is so individualized. I trust that you will each love the experience. How can you not?

Our sessions in the messages will be to address any issues that are coming up. If one of you is experiencing something, it's very likely that others are as well.

I hope that you see me differently now. I hope you see everyone on our team differently now. I hope you see us as family, not special entities in the sky who can do things you can't do. We are as real as you are and we are bonded together through love.

Love, Jesus"

End Time: 7:18 a.m.

Being Christ is a team sport...

Saturday, April 3, 2021 ~ 7:20 a.m.

"Greetings my loves. It is I, Mother Mary. I noticed that the grades were posted. I couldn't be more pleased. You pretty much know as much as we do now and what we don't know, we will discover together. Being Christ is a team sport.

Love and blessings, Mother Mary

P.S. Congratulations!"

End Time: 7:24 a.m.

There is no death or separation...

Saturday, April 3, 2021 ~ 7:26 a.m.

"Hopefully by now, we have stripped away the specialness that has been associated with us and especially from hearing from us on a daily basis. It's one thing to read that there is no death but it is an entirely different thing to experience communications from 'dead' entities.

Hopefully by now, the separation that existed between those in one dimension and those in another has also been healed. Not only is there no death but there is no separation either. Christ can see this and know this as truth.

Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 7:32 a.m.

We are all the same, my friends...

Saturday, April 3, 2021 ~ 7:34 a.m.

"We all have different jobs to do and have had a wide variety of different experiences but those are the only differences. Underneath experience and job description, we are all the same, my friends.

Your job from here on out is to be Christ or better said, allow Christ to be you. The world has waited all of these years for the return of Christ energy. It won't save anyone but it will point in the right direction. They were wearing their ruby slippers all along. Christ just points this out.

In love and service, Archangel Michael"

End Time: 7:39 a.m.

You are me and I Am you ...

Saturday, April 3, 2021 ~ 7:41 a.m.

"Greetings. It is I, St. Germain. I hope you see your unseen team members as versions of yourself because that's what we really are. You are me and I Am you. Well, this is true except for one small thing. I'm better looking. (smile)

I am very pleased to be on your team and to see the progress you have each made.

Love, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 7:45 a.m.

Easter represents rebirth and freedom...

Sunday, April 4, 2021 ~ 6:45 a.m.

"Greetings on this holy day of Easter. This is another day in the world that is filled with both great meaning and grave misunderstanding. First, let's focus on what it is.

Easter celebrates renewal and resurrection from the old, from the ways that were. It represents freedom from the past, freedom from everything that binds us and restricts us. Easter is a day like Christmas that can truly be celebrated every moment of every day. Easter begs us to let the pain of the past stay in the past and not bind us or identify us in any way, shape or form. Easter represents rebirth and freedom.

I demonstrated freedom and the continuation of my life following the crucifixion, but Easter is not just one man's story. It is not just my story. It is everyone's story and this is something that the world has misunderstood. Easter has as much to do with each one of you reading this as it had to do with me.

Easter truly represents the end of crucifixion, the end of bringing the past into the present. The resurrection represents the potential for Christ awareness, consciousness and transformation in each and every one who walks the earth.

The joy of Easter is that its messages and gifts are available to all who ask for them, at any time of the year. Apply the meaning of Easter to your own life. The gifts of Christmas and Easter are for all. They are the gifts of birth and rebirth.

It has been my pleasure to bring you this message on this holy and solemn day. Happy Easter, everyone.

Namaste, Jesus"

End Time: 7:10 a.m.

Our business is to give love and shine light...

Monday, April 5, 2021 ~ 6:47 a.m.

"It is a blessed day indeed. It is I, the one known as Jesus. The Christ Organization is open for business and our business is to give love and shine light.

Please resist the temptation to dilute our unified message by getting caught up in and commenting on the various dramas on the world stage. It's beyond your pay grade. You are each simple, salt of the earth types who left the world in a big way, so please don't jump back in it.

It is true that we are causing things in the larger collective to be revealed but it is always to heal them. It is always to point the direction to each of you.

So, long story short, leave the driving to us and don't worry about what this might mean or what that might mean. It's just not part of the Christ Organization. It's part of the dismantling of the ego, which the Christ Organization has replaced. It's all fear and the bulldozers are taking care of it. No worries please.

In wisdom, Jesus"

End Time: 7:02 a.m.

There's a method to our madness ...

Monday, April 5, 2021 ~ 7:03 a.m.

"People are in so many different places in regards to their development as soul. We are working right alongside each of them to prosper and be part of the Christ Organization one day. You are the end product and most are just not there yet, so we are helping them to get there, just like we helped you to get there. This is really all you need to know. There's a method to our madness.

In service, Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 7:08 a.m.

There's more going on than meets the eye...

Monday, April 5, 2021 ~ 7:10 a.m.

"There's more going on than meets the eye. This has always been the case. We always want good outcomes for all involved. We always want love to grow. How we go about this work from the backstage areas may not make any sense to you, which is why we want you to learn to trust that we know what we're doing, even if it doesn't seem that way.

The bottom line is that we want our Christ Organization to grow to be the most powerful influencer on the planet. Just don't worry about how we do this. Just be the best version of Christ in your own beautiful, individualized way and like Jesus said, "leave the driving to us."

In awe, Archangel Michael"

End Time: 7:20 a.m.

Learn to turn the mind off when you're finished using it... The number one thing is just to be...

Monday, April 5, 2021 ~ 7:21 a.m.

"Hello my dearest ones. It is the mind that wants to figure everything out. If you like reading thrillers, read them. Then put the book down and go about your business of being Christ. Learn to turn the mind off when you're finished using it. You use it. Don't let it use you.

Don't get caught up in the 24/7 news cycle. If you watch the news at all, start it, pray for those you see or hear about and then turn it off. Don't let it consume you. You are Christ now and you have more important things to do. The number one thing is just to be.

We see you and we know what's going on and how to support.

Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 7:29 a.m.

Trust... Rejoice...

Monday, April 5, 2021 ~ 7:30 a.m.

"We have to tear things down so we can rebuild them, this time with a good foundation. Love has never been the foundation for anything here, until now with the Christ Organization.

Just tune out all of the noise from the demolition. Trust. Rejoice. Your property is finished. Now, other properties are being worked on. The end result will always be the same, which is more Christ Organization offices.

Love, Bill"

End Time: 7:36 a.m.

Our mission: to bring love by being love...

Tuesday, April 6, 2021 ~ 7:02 a.m.

"Greetings. It is I, the one known as Jesus. Let's share heart to heart. Why is love so frightening? When did love become the enemy? Why has love been so challenging to embrace and live by? Moving mountains may be an easier process.

It is good from time to time to simply reflect on big picture ideas. The earth is such a beautiful place in its natural state and yet there is something in the air here. The fear is so thick that one can feel it.

Population density doesn't always mean that the fear is greater in cities. There are rural areas where a rigid set of ideas makes it hard for love to expand. The bottom line is that anywhere there are people, there will be widespread fear, with heavy pockets of it in many regions.

Love remains an unwanted gift, a sign of weakness, and yet we will continue to model it and offer its many blessings. This is our mission: to bring love by being love.

Persevere. Love, Jesus"

End Time: 7:22 a.m.

The time has come to reveal myself to you...

Wednesday, April 7, 2021 ~ 6:10 a.m.

"The time has come to reveal myself to you. I have no name. Some call me the Director. I Am in charge of reproducing divine energy in form. The team you are now accustomed to hearing from all work under my wings. You can think of each of them as choreographers. They show you how to dance.

The Christ Organization has been and still is in rehearsals. We have not had our Broadway premiere opening night yet. We are still tweaking here and there. Your dressing rooms or offices are all open and ready for your use. You know this much.

What you don't know is that there is still a great deal of mystery about our project, even among those who are directly involved in it. We are the production that has the best and most talented staff and creative artists (you) but we don't know if we will have a hit on our hands. Will we get good reviews? Will we get an audience? Will the press love us or hate us?

Because we are working with an audience of human beings, these things do matter, even to us. They will tell us what our next steps are. There is no danger of our production disappearing because of bad reviews because obviously, we don't depend on funding. Our resources are unlimited.

To be honest and perfectly clear, we have been in what are known as 'previews'. Little snippets about our organization have gotten out and we have been able to test market reactions. This is where we are now.

I gather information and report it to those above me. When I get the green light, then the lights go on and we will be ready for opening night. Until then, keep doing a great job in your new roles. We see that you have developed strong relationships with the choreographers. Their feedback about each of you has been fantastic. So, break a leg. The show must go on.

Yours, The Director"

End Time: 6:43 a.m.

There will be new opportunities...

Thursday, April 8, 2021 ~ 6:45 a.m.

"The angels sing. I announce the arrival of the one Christ in many forms. Christ is here and the new age has begun. It is my pleasure to introduce each Christ to the world.

I stand before you, ready to make this announcement and proclamation, so that the entire world can witness this monumental event.

This is the script, long planned. When The Director gets the green light, the doors open and the show will begin. The Christs who have worked in the shadows will now be in the spotlight.

Your work as Christ will continue as it has been but there will be new opportunities to answer questions and reach a larger audience, for those who want to take this step.

This day is fast approaching. There will be another layer of experience in being Christ and demonstrating unconditional love to the world.

With bated breath, Archangel Michael"

End Time: 7:03 a.m.

Improvisation is built into the script...

Thursday. April 8, 2021 ~ 7:04 a.m.

"Improvisation is built into the script. What will you say and how will you say it if a news reporter wants to ask about the Christ Organization?

Trust that you will always say the right thing in the right way. Christ always speaks from a place of truth, a place of love. If you don't feel comfortable, then just silently bless them and go about your day.

As with anything, the attention the Christ Organization will bring will take some getting used to. It will add another layer of opportunities but isn't something to fear.

For the news media, this will be an opportunity to change their focus from scandal to celebration. The potential for them to be our partners is certainly there.

Yours, The Director"

End Time: 7:16 a.m.

We need a way to be noticed...

Friday, April 9, 2021 ~ 6:58 a.m.

"Now I have provided an overview about the Christ Organization's impact on the world. There has to be a method for information to be presented. We need a way to be noticed. If someone notices us, then they can gather facts together in order to fully understand who we are and what our message is.

This is all my responsibility as The Director. Your individualized energy will stand out and be showcased. The world will see that there is a group of people with a visible marker that clearly delineates them and causes them to stand out.

This is why I've compared the revelation of our existence to an opening night of a performance. This is about revelation. The message is "We are you. You are looking at yourSelf. It is time to discover who you really are."

It will be an opportunity to reexamine things long denied, things that have been swept under the rug. Christ will not be ignored any longer. There has not been a finite point when people have stopped their inaccurate perception of Christ being 'other than' or something that is a figment of overactive imaginations.

The showing of Christ will allow those who will admit it to know that they are Christ too. If it takes a production number, so be it.

Yours, The Director"

End Time: 7:23 a.m.

This is the time for revelation, complete and total revelation ...

Friday, April 9, 2021 ~ 7:25 a.m.

"Greetings, my dears. This is the time for revelation, complete and total revelation. All cards are on the table. Everything is out in the open for all to see. Those who perceive must perceive in order to understand information. As The Director said, this next part is designed with perceptually minded individuals as the focus. They must see it to believe it so they will see it. We will give them what they insist on and it will be a glorious sight indeed.

Many blessings. Love, Mother Mary"

End Time: 7:31 a.m.

We must reach even those who simply couldn't care less...

Friday, April 9, 2021 ~ 7:34 a.m.

"We must reach even those who simply couldn't care less. It is our mission to announce the arrival of Christ to everyone with ears to hear and eyes to see and this is what we shall do.

The Christ Organization will go first and other groups will follow suit. All flavors of Christ will be revealed. Everyone will be shown the truth about their identity. They can still choose to ignore us but they can't say they didn't know.

No one will be punished for not transforming but they will not be permitted to reincarnate here. They will have to develop their skills elsewhere. Gaia herself is transforming and will only support beings who support her transformation and their own.

This is a blessed time to be on the sacred earth/Gaia.

Bless you each for your dedication and willingness.

Archangel Michael"

End Time: 7:45 a.m.

The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded ...

Saturday, April 10, 2021 ~ 6:05 a.m.

"The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded. **I Am the first talon.** I Am the one known as Mother Mary."

End Time: 6:08 a.m.

The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded ...

Saturday, April 10, 2021 ~ 6:09 a.m.

"The eagle has landed. Let those who gave ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded. **I Am the second talon.** I Am the one known as Jesus."

End Time: 6:11 a.m.

The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded ...

Saturday, April 10, 2021 ~ 6:12 a.m.

"The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded. **I Am the third talon.** I Am the one known as St. Germain."

End Time: 6:13 a.m.

The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded ...

Saturday, April 10, 2021 ~ 6:14 a.m.

"The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded. **We are the fourth talon**. We are known as the Cadre of Souls."

End Time: 6:16 a.m.

The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded ...

Saturday, April 10, 2021 ~ 6:17 a.m.

"The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded. **I Am the fifth talon.** I Am the one known as Helen."

End Time: 6:19 a.m.

The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded ...

Saturday, April 10, 2021 ~ 6:20 a.m.

"The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded. **I Am the sixth talon.** I Am the one known as Archangel Michael."

End Time: 6:21 a.m.

The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded ...

Saturday, April 10, 2021 ~ 6:22 a.m.

"The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded. **I Am the seventh talon.** I Am the one known as Bill."

End Time: 6:23 a.m.

The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded...

Saturday, April 10, 2021 ~ 6:24 a.m.

"The eagle has landed. Let those who have ears to hear know that the trumpet has sounded. **I Am the eighth talon.** I Am the one known as The Director.

These proclamations are being made in accordance with universal law. The Christ Child has been reborn in the many and the mighty.

The reclaiming of the earth shall proceed. What is God's, shall return to God."

End Time: 6:30 a.m.

Christ is a relationship of love and support...

Sunday, April 11, 2021 ~ 7:15 a.m.

"Christ has been officially introduced to this reality. Collectively, we are the eagle. Each of you make up the body of the eagle. Now that declarations have been made, we can proceed. We are not an invading force. It's just that the new owners have moved in.

The Christ Organization coexists with all other realities. They are not a threat to us. Love cannot be threatened.

Christ energy is supported by All That Is. All other energies do not have a true support system. So, in this way, our energy can only grow.

Energies that vibrate at a lower frequency will feel threatened but we continue regardless.

Let us pray.

'Dear Creator of All,

We gather in acknowledgment of the great task set out before us.

We claim our place on the great and powerful Gaia to work cooperatively with her while she heals.

Love is what fuels us both. We have a symbiotic relationship that supports one another.

Let it be.'

Christ is a relationship of love and support. The relationship between humans and Gaia has suffered because She was not treated with love and respect.

The Second Coming of Christ will heal the broken relationship between humans and Gaia. It will also bring the awareness of oneness between groups who are divided by their thinking. Gaia supports all and needs support from all.

Our day and our place in history is here and now.

With the power of the eagle's second talon, Jesus"

End Time: 7:45 a.m.

Our work for now is ending in a way and beginning in another...

Monday, April 12, 2021 ~ 6:30 a.m.

"The powers that be know we are here now. We have staked our claim. Now, the job is two fold. It is each of your jobs to simply be, do or be and do. You are full fledged creators now and the choice is always yours to make.

The eight talons and our legions of assistants will not only support each of you, but will work to create a new wave of those who are ready to give egoless living a shot.

When the timing indicates, the world will find out about its newest neighbors. Some will like us and many will not. Some may want to move away and escape from Christ, but there will be fewer places to do so over time.

Love is settling in and our offices are all open. We have shared everything that we can share at this point. This next part is unscripted and completely unknown.

You will receive regular messaging when the situation warrants it or just as a check in, but they will not be as frequent. Let's go back to a weekly message. Expect one each Sunday moving forward.

Our work for now is ending in a way and beginning in another. We all need time to watch things unfold. As has been said, you each know as much as we do at this point.

I will commune with you on Sunday.

Love, blessings and gratitude, Jesus"

End Time: 6:47 a.m.

Stay clear...

Monday, April 12, 2021 ~ 6:48 a.m.

"Keep your thought garden pristine. Get rid of those ugly weeds. Yank them up by the roots. You're the new sheriff in town, my friends. Stay clear so this magical Christ energy can have its fullest effect possible.

Love and encouragement, St. Germain/Joseph"

End Time: 6:51 a.m.

How will you give love today?

Monday, April 12, 2021~ 6:52 a.m.

"No worries, my loves, just excited anticipation for what's already here, right in front of you. How will you give love today?

Love unlimited, Mother Mary"

End Time: 6:54 a.m.

Love is powerful ...

Monday, April 12, 2021 ~ 6:55 a.m.

"Love is powerful. It always has the last word.

Cadre of Souls"

End Time: 6:55 a.m.

Love is free from the past ...

Monday, April 12, 2021 ~ 6:56 a.m.

"Love is free from regrets, should haves, could haves, would haves and might haves. Love is free from the past.

Remember that beautiful summer day when you had your first kiss but let the painful memories stay in the past where they belong. Today is a new and exciting day. Be here today, not some other day long passed.

Archangel Michael"

End Time: 7:00 a.m.

Accept the mystery of all life ...

Monday, April 12, 2021 ~ 7:01 a.m.

"Accept the mystery of life. Let it unfold as it wants. Christ's job is to accept this unfolding and to enhance it when called to do so.

Love, Helen"

End Time: 7:02 a.m.

The Second Coming is here!

Monday, April 12, 2021 ~ 7:03 a.m.

"The light of Christ will heal the world and all relationships with one another. The Second Coming is here!

Blessings, Bill"

End Time: 7:05 a.m.

We're ready...

Monday, April 12, 2021 ~ 7:06 a.m.

"We're ready. The show must go on. This is a show where the cast isn't pretending to be something they aren't. This cast isn't joking around. They know who they are and what they are. They know that they are individually and collectively Christ, God in form. Now this is a production that I Am proud to be part of.

The Director"

End Time: 7:10 a.m.

End of Books 3 to 10 A Journey into the Unknown

©2020-21 Richard Curtis Greathouse